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Dear Shareholders,
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited ("the Company)

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 27t Annual Report along with the Audited Financial
Statements of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY:

The highlights of the financial statements of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 are as under:

(INRin lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated
PARTICULARS

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Income from Operations 12,265.21 8,421.83 33,125.10 15,195.77
Other Income 1,069.99 1,633.16 2,250.58 1,253.76
Total Income 13,335.20 10,054.99 35,375.68 16,449.53
Expenses 9,872.59 8,595.98 34,900.23 22,215.51
Depreciation & Amortization 797.29 733.91 1,143.98 1,008.15
Total Expenses 10,669.88 9,329.90 36,044.21 23,223.66
Share of Loss of Associate - - (611.72) 70.45
tF;rff” before exceptional items and |, ger 55 725.09 (1,280.25) | (6,844.58)
Exceptional Items 317 - (566.57) 2,603.00
E;?(‘;'rte?:fr exceptional items and |, 5,4 55 725.09 (1,846.82) | (9.447.58)
Tax Expense 625.41 (258.66) 365.75 (2,195.25)
Profit After Tax 1,722.91 983.75 (2,212.57) (7,252.33)
OCI Income (Net of Tax) 2.04 (5.77) (34.93) (24.25)

OVERVIEW OF THE FY 2023-24

During the year under review, the Company’s standalone revenue from operations stood at INR
13,335.20 lakhs as compared to INR 10,054.99 lakhs in previous year. The standalone profit after tax
stood at INR 1,722.91 lakhs as compared to INR 983.75 lakhs in previous year.

During the year under review, the Company’s consolidated revenue from operations stood at INR
35,375.68 lakhs as compared to INR 16,371.62 lakhs in previous year. The consolidated loss after tax
stood at INR 2,212.57 lakhs as compared to INR 7,252.33 lakhs in previous year.

2. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) vide its order dated July 04, 2023,
accepted the application made by the Company for voluntarily surrendering its NBFC License in
accordance with the RBI press release dated December 01, 2022.

The Company itself and through its subsidiaries is an integrated provider of financial services to
corporate and institutional clients through asset management and investment banking platforms. The
Company brings together some of India’s most experienced banking professionals, backed by global
and domestic marquee investors to provide world-class products and services to its clients. The
Company is also engaged in the business of Structured Finance Advisory and also acts as a Sponsor
to various Scheme of Alternative Investment Funds.
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3. DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources for future business requirements, the Board of Directors of the
Company has not recommended dividend on the equity shares of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024.

4. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply
to the Company as no dividend was declared or paid in the previous financial years.

5. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
There was no change in the authorized and paid-up share capital during the financial year 2023-24.
6. DEBENTURES

The Company has issued Secured Unlisted Unrated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture
aggregating to Rs. 1,56,47,00,000 during FY 23 - 24. The total debentures outstanding as on March
31, 2024, is Rs. 2,44,17,00,000.

7. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company believes that its success is largely determined by the quality of its workforce and their
commitment towards achieving the goals of the Company. To enable the employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries to participate in the future growth and success of the Company, the Company has
implemented InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme
(“Scheme”).

In terms of Section 62 of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014, the disclosures for F.Y. 2023-24, is annexed in Annexure | to this report.

8. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The Board has adopted in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financials reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company.

The Company also has procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the
operations were observed.

9. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES.

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has four wholly-owned subsidiaries viz. InCred Asset Management
Private Limited, InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited, InCred Alternative Investment
Services Private Limited and InCred Overseas Holdings Private Limited (Foreign Body Corporate).
Further, On July 11, 2023, the Company has acquired Equity share Capital of Booth Fintech Private
Limited alongwith its subsidiary viz., mValu Technology Services Private Limited. Further, on November
08, 2023, Booth Fintech Private Limited has incorporated another wholly owned subsidiary viz., InCred
Value Plus Private Limited. Consequently, mValu Technology Services Private Limited and InCred
Value Plus Private Limited became the step down subsidiaries of the Company.

Further, on July 25, 2024, InCred Overseas Holdings Private Limited has acquired 90% of Ordinary
Shares of InCred Global Wealth Pte. Ltd (Foreign Body Corporate). Consequently, w.e.f. July 25, 2024,
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InCred Global Wealth Pte. Ltd. became the subsidiary of InCred Overseas Holdings Private Limited and
step down subsidiary of the Company.

On January 01, 2024, the Company has incorporated subsidiary viz., InCred Global Insight Partners
Private Limited, which ceased to be subsidiary of the Company on February 15, 2024.

As on March 31, 2024, in accordance with the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has one Associate Company viz. Alpha Fintech Private Limited and does not have any
joint ventures. Further, Oro Financial Consultants Private Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Alpha
Fintech Private Limited.

The statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries pursuant to first
proviso to sub section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in
form AOC-1, is provided in Annexure Il.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared consolidated
financial statements comprising of the balance sheet as on March 31, 2024, profit & loss accounts as
on March 31, 2024 and the cash flow statements of the Company which shall be laid before the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company. The audited consolidated financial statements together with
Auditors’ Report forms part of the Annual Report.

10. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year under review within the meaning
of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

11. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

M/s P N A M & Co. LLP (formerly known as M/s. Soni Chatrath & Co. Chartered Accounts) (FRN
:001092N) were re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at 24" Annual General Meeting
of the Company to hold the office as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) year
until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Financial Year 2026-27 at such remuneration
as was mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the said Auditors.

However, M/s PN A M & Co., LLP, vide its letter dated September 04, 2024, have resigned from the
position of Statutory Auditor of the Company as the number of statutory audits currently handled by its
partner was exceeding the permissible limit in accordance with the ICAI Code of Ethics, causing the
casual vacancy in the position of the statutory auditors of the company.

In this regard, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on September 4, 2024 noted and accepted the
resignation of M/s P N A M & Co. LLP. The Board also placed on record its appreciation to outgoing
Auditors for their contribution to the Company with their audit processes and standards of auditing. In
this regard, after obtaining their consent and eligibility certificate under Section 139(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on September 4, 2024 appointed
M/s M S K A & Associates (Firm Registration Number: 105047W) as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company under Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, to fill the casual vacancy consequent to
the resignation of M/s PN AM & Co. LLP.

As required by Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment is also to be ratified and
approved at a general meeting of the Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the
said appointment for the ratification and approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM of the Company.
Further, the Board, subject to the approval of the shareholders, approved appointment of M/s M S K A
& Associates (Firm Registration Number: 105047W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
period of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the ensuing 27th AGM till the conclusion of the 32" AGM
to be held in the year 2029 at such remuneration plus out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes, as
may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors. Appropriate
resolution seeking Members approval for the appointment of M/s M S K A & Associates as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company is appearing in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company.
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The Audit for the financial year 2023-24 was conducted by M/s P N A M & Co. LLP (formerly known as
M/s. Soni Chatrath & Co. Chartered Accounts) (FRN :001092N) and there are no qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in his report. The notes on financial
statements referred to in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
comments.

The Auditors’ Report along with the financial statements of the company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, form part of the Annual report. During the year under review, there were no frauds
reported under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Board.

12. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, the maintenance of cost
records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act is not
applicable on the Company and hence such accounts and records are not maintained.

13. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Act, copy of the Annual Return of the
company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act read with Rule 11 of the companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 for FY 2023-24 is placed on the website of the company
and is accessible at the web-link: https://www.incredcapital.com.

14. DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Considering the nature of activities carried out by the Company, the particulars regarding conservation
of energy and technology absorption as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to your company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review, the Company had spent an amount of INR 99.84 lakhs towards foreign
exchange whereas foreign earnings were INR 20.66 lakhs.

15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company was required to spend
2% of its average net profit, calculated as per the provisions of Section 198 of the Act, made during the
three immediately preceding financial years on activities under Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR”)

During the year, the Company was required to spent Rs. 21,75,393/- towards its CSR obligation. In this
connection, the Company had spent an amount of Rs. 55,01,600/- to K.C.Mahindra Education Trust,
an eligible fund specified under Schedule VII, amounting to an excess spent of Rs. 33,26,207/-. Further,
as per the provisions of the Section 135 of the Act, a Company can carry forward its eligible excess
amount spent towards its CSR obligation for a period of three financial years. Thus, in the light of the
above provision, the Company is eligible to utilize the excess amount spend during the FY 2023-24
towards the CSR obligations in the immediately succeeding three financial years.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Section 135 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
was not required to constitute Corporate Social Responsibility Committee since the amount required to
be spent as a CSR activity was not exceeding the threshold limits of Rs. 50 Lakhs as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has also formulated a policy with respect to its activities under CSR (“CSR Policy”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and containing details specified therein which is available
on the website of the Company at https://www.incredcapital.com/investor-relations/
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An annual report on activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure Il to this Report.

16. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 5 (five) Non-Executive
Directors.

During the year under review, Mr. Varun Shah resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Mr.
Mitesh Kamariya was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f April 24, 2023.
Further, Mr. Mitesh Kamariya has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Mr. Abhijeet
Shinde was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. January 17, 2024.

Subsequent to the year under review, Mr. Abhijeet Shinde resigned as a Company Secretary w.e.f July
24, 2024,

The Board places on record its appreciation for the invaluable contributions and guidance provided by
Mr. Varun Shah, Mr. Mitesh Kamariya and Mr. Abhijeet Shinde during their association with the
Company.

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, none of the Directors on the Board of your Company are disqualified from being appointed or to
continue as Directors.

17. BOARD OF MEETINGS

The Board met at regular intervals inter-alia to discuss, review, and consider various matters. During the
year the Board met 10 (Ten) times during the period under review. These meetings were held on April
24, 2023, June 17, 2023, July 11, 2023, September 06, 2023, October 09, 2023, December 08, 2023,
December 27, 2023, January 17, 2024, February 13, 2024 and March 15, 2024. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

18. COMMITTEES CONSTITUTED BY THE BOARD

The Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant statutory and
regulatory provisions of applicable laws and statutes.

The Company is not statutorily required to constitute an Audit committee and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as required under section 177(1) & 178 (1) of the Act respectively for the
year under review. However, the Company has constituted a “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee” (“NRC”), which is responsible for the implementation, administration and superintendence
of the “ESOP Scheme” and during the year under review, the NRC met twice viz., April 01, 2023 and
December 27, 2023.

The Company has also constituted Finance Committee. 12 (Twelve) meetings were held during the
period under review. These meetings were held on August 29, 2023, September 13, 2023, October 26,
2023, November 29, 2023, December 08, 2023, December 13, 2023, January 17, 2024, February 19,
2024, February 29, 2024, March 05, 2024, March 07, 2024 and March 15, 2024.

19. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
As per the requirements of section 177(9) of the Act, your Company is not mandatorily required to

establish vigil mechanism for the directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or
grievances.
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20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The disclosures regarding, details of loans given, guarantee given, security provided and investments
made by the Company are provided under notes forming part of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

21. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, the contracts or arrangements with related parties have been on arms’
length and in ordinary course of business. The particulars of such contracts or arrangements with
related parties referred to Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC-2 under Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are specified in the Annexure IV annexed to this report.

22. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company does not mandatorily require to have a formal Risk Management policy. However, it
internally manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its
ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The company’s management systems, organizational
structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behavior together forms a system that governs
how the company conducts the business and manages associated risks.

23. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the year under review, there were no transactions as one time settlement and no loans were
taken from Banks or Financial Institutions, accordingly no valuation was required to be obtained, hence
the above information to be given is not applicable.

24. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors, hereby declare that to the best
of our knowledge and belief:

a. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c. We had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. We have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. We had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

25. General Disclosures

Your Directors state that for the period ended March 31, 2024, no disclosure is required in respect of
the following items and accordingly confirm as under:

a. The Company has neither revised the financial statements nor the Board’s report.

b. The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment pursuant to Section 22 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013.

c. There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between March 31, 2024 and the date of this report.
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d. No significant or material orders which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations
in future were passed by Regulators/Courts/Tribunals.

e. There was no issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise
during the period.

f. ~ The Company has not issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) to its employees under
any scheme during the period.

g. The provisions of Section 149 & 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

h. The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the
Company Secretaries of India.

i.  No petition/application has been admitted under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by National
Company Law Tribunal.

26. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors express their sincere gratitude to Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies,
other government and regulatory authorities, lenders, financial institutions and the Company's bankers
for the ongoing support extended by them. The Directors also place on record their sincere appreciation
for the continued support extended by the Company's stakeholders and employees and the trust
reposed by them in the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Saurabh Jhalaria
Director Director

DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07908327

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 04, 2024

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited



Annexure |

n&oEital

Disclosure under the Employee Incentive Scheme pursuant to the provisions of Rule 12(9) of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on financial year ended March

31, 2024

Particulars Disclosures
Number of options granted (in FY 2023-24) 52778
Number of options vested (in FY 2023-24) 259773
Number of options exercised (in FY 2023-24) 109756
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 109756
Number of options lapsed / cancelled (in FY 2023-24)- includes both 45659
vested and unvested
Weighted Average Exercise Price INR 600.94
Variation of terms of options None
Money realised by the exercise of options 50781193
Total number of options in force 508061

Details of options granted to Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”’): NA

Details of employees who received a grant of options in any one year of options amounting to

five per cent or more of options granted during that year:

Mr. Arjun Badhwar
Mr. Prateek Indwar

Details of identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or
exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions)

of the company at the time of grant:

NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Saurabh Jhalaria

Director
DIN: 07908327

Bhupinder Singh
Director
DIN: 07342318

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 04, 2024
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Annexure |l
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

1 | Sr.No. 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

2 Name InCred Asset | InCred Wealth | InCred InCred Booth Fintech | InCred Value | mValu
of the | Management and Alternative Overseas | Private Plus Private | Technology
Subsidi | Private Limited | Investment Investments Holdings Limited Limited Services
ary /| (Formerly Services Private Limited | Private Private Limited
Associa | Known as | Private Limited
te InCred Capital | Limited
Compa | Investment
ny Advisors and

Managers
Private
Limited)

3 Registe | 1203 B Wing, | 1203 B Wing, | 1203 B Wing, | 39 1203 B Wing, | 1203 B Wing, | 1203 B Wing,
red The Capital, C | The Capital, C | The Capital, C | Robinson | The Capital, C | The Capital, C | The Capital, C
Office 70, G Block, | 70, G Block, | 70, G Block, | Road, 70, G Block, | 70, G Block, | 70, G Block,

Bandra Kurla | Bandra Kurla | Bandra Kurla | #18-02, Bandra Kurla | Bandra Kurla | Bandra Kurla
Complex, Complex, Complex, Robinson | Complex, Complex, Complex,
Bandra East, | Bandra East, | Bandra East, | Point, Bandra East, | Bandra East, | Bandra East,
Mumbai — | Mumbai — | Mumbai — | Singapore | Mumbai — | Mumbai — | Mumbai -
400051. 400051. 400051. 068911. 400051. 400051. 400051.

4 | Nature | The Company | The Company | The Company | The The Company | The Company | The Company
of is acting as | is primarily | is acting as | Company | is engaged in | is engaged in | is registered
Busine | Investment engaged in | Investment is acting | the business | the business of | with an AMFI
ss Manager to | the business | Manager to | as holding | of auxiliary to | auxiliary to | under  ARN:

various of distribution | various company | financial financial 275918 and
Alternative of  financial | Alternative activities activities also registered
Investment products by | Investment with APMI
Schemes mobilizing Schemes having
which is | funds and registration no:
registered with | assets of APRNO00175.
SEBI as a | various Further,  the
Category Il | classes of Company is
and lll AIF and | investors. The also acting as
providing Company has an Authorised
Portfolio obtained the Participant for
Management registration as InCred Capital
Services. Mutual Fund Wealth
distributor Portfolio
from Managers
Association of Private
Mutual Fund Limited, which
of India has broking
(AMFI) w.e.f. licence. The
March 17, Company also
2022. trades in
commodities

5 | No. Of
Branch 1 11 1 Nil Nil 1 5
es

th

° rF]Qge port 18t April 2023 18t April 2023 | 18t April 2023 5323Atgg;fstl 1t April 2023 8" November 18t April 2023

period to 31 March | to 31tMarch | to 31%March March to 315 March 2023 to 31 to 31 March
2024 2024 2024 202 4’ 2024 March 2024 2024

7 Reporti
ng
currenc Rupee Rupee Rupee SGD Rupee Rupee Rupee
y
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Exchan
ge rate
on the
last day
of the
financia
| year

Not Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

83.37

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Share
Capital

3,300 lakhs

817.58 lakhs

303 lakhs

9,078.99

45.08 lakhs

50

15.83

10

Reserv
es and
Surplus

(1582.54)
lakhs

32,390.35
lakhs

(2,174.60)
lakhs

(6.66)

1,213.06

(15.89)

1303.89

11

Total
assets
(Fixed
assets
+
Investm
ents +
Other
assets)

2,668.86 lakhs

64,012.44
lakhs

1,901.56
lakhs

9,078.90

8,139.59

395.88

3062.42

12

Total
liabilitie
s
(Deposi
ts +
Borrowi
ngs +
Other
liabilitie
s +
Provisi
ons)

951.40 lakhs

30,804.50
lakhs

3,720.61 lakhs

6.57

2,422.83

361.77

1,742.70

13

Investm
ents

NA

12,895.97
lakhs

NIL

1,544.43

1,369.72

187.50

8.91

14

Turnov
er

2308.30 lakhs

20436.62
lakhs

901.72 lakhs

1,501

24.73

0.32

15

Profit/

(Loss)
Before
Tax

(235.36) lakhs

(752.88) lakhs

(2,350.36)
lakhs

(7,993.50)

(245.22)

(15.89)

(409.45)

16

Provisi
on for
tax

3.82 lakhs

288.85 lakhs

(590.68) lakhs

38.35

17

Profit/
(Loss)A
fter Tax

(239.18) lakhs

(1041.73)
lakhs

(1,759.68)
lakhs

(7,993.50)

(283.57)

(15.89)

(409.45)

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NA
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NA
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Part “B”: Associates

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associate Companies

Alpha Fintech Private
Limited

Oro Financial
Consultants Private
Limited (wholly owned
subsidiary of Alpha
Fintech Private
Limited)

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint
Venture was associated or acquired

January 30, 2023

January 30, 2023

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures
held by the company on the year end

No.

influence

Associate Company

15797 64,50,000
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint INR 1,57,970 INR 64,50,000
Venture
ina®
Extend of Holding% 25.54% 100%
4. Description of how there is significant Wholly owned

subsidiary of Associate
Company

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture

is not consolidated N.A. N.A.
6. Net worth attributable to shareholding

as per latest audited Balance Sheet (1,085.72) 524.55
7. Profit/Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation (611.72) -

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation | (745.46) -

1. As on March 31,2024, the Company does not have any joint ventures

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NA
3. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Saurabh Jhalaria
Director

DIN: 07908327

Bhupinder Singh
Director
DIN: 07342318

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 04, 2024

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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5.

6.

7.

ANNEXURE Il
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

The Company’s CSR mission is to contribute to the social and economic development of the
community through a series of interventions. Company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in
community development, social responsibility and environmental responsibility and encourage
each business unit or function to include these considerations into its operations. The Company,
for Corporate Social Responsibility activities, strives to promote education and ensure
environmental sustainability/ ecological balance etc.

The CSR Policy adopted by your Company is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.incredcapital.com/investor-relations/

Since the amount to be spent by a Company under CSR activities does not exceed INR 50 Lakhs,
the Company does not require to constitute CSR Committee.

Impact assessments of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

Amount available for set off in pursuance of sub -rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the amount required for set off for the financial year:

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set | Amount required to be set-
off from preceding off for the financial year, if
financial years any
(in INR) (in INR)

=

2022-23 - -

2. 2021-22 - -

- 2020-21 - -

Total

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 1,087.70 lakhs

CSR obligation

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (INRin
Lakhs)

a. Two percent of average net profits of the company as per 21,75,393
section 135(5)

b. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or NIL
activity of the previous financial years

C. Amount required to be set off for the financial year NIL

d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b- 7c) 21,75,393

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent| 14141 Amount transferred to [Amount transferred to any fund specified

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

for the Financial | ynspent CSR Account as under Schedule VIl as per second
Year. (in Rs.) per section 135(6). proviso to section 135(5).

Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Trust transfer.

Rs.55,01,600 @ | @ - | -

ital

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Sr. | Name | Items Local | Locati Project Amou | Amou | Amou | Mode of | Mode of
No. | of the | from the | Area | on of duration | nt nt nt Impleme | Implementatio
proje | list of (Yes/ | the alloca | spent | transf | ntation n- Through
ct activities | No) Projec ted in the | erred Direct Implementing
in t for curre | to (Yes/No) | Agency
Schedul the nt unspe
e VIl of State Distr proje | finan nt Na | CSR
the act. ict ct (in | cial CSR me | Registrat
INR) year accou ion No.
(in nt for
INR) | the
projec
tas
per
sectio
n
135(6)
(in
INR)
NIL
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. | Name of ltems Local Location of the project Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the from the Area spent for Implem Implementation
Project list of (Yes/N the entation through
activities 0) project (in on Implementing
in INR) Direct Agency
schedul State District (Yes/No | Name CSR
e VIl of ) Registr
the act ation
number
1 Nanhi Kali | Promoting Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 55,01,600 Yes K.C. CSR000
Education Mahind 00511
ra
Educati
on
Trust
(d) Amount spent in administrative overheads: NA
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b + 8c + 8d + 8e): INR 55,01,600
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL
8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sl. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount
No. Financial |transferred to|spentin the fund specified under remaining to
Year. Unspent CSR| reporting | Schedule VIl as per section | be spentin
Account Financial 135(6), if any. succeeding
under section |Year (in Rs.). financial
135 (6) (in Rs.) Name ofl Amount | Date of |Years. (in Rs.)
the (in Rs). | transfer.
Fund
1. 2022-23 NIL NIL - NIL - NIL
2. 2021-22 NIL NIL - NIL - NIL

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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3. 2020-21 NIL NIL - NIL - NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of preceding financial
year(s): NA

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year. (asset — wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset (s]: NA

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc: NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset):NA

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profits
as per section 135(5): NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Saurabh Jhalaria
Director Director

DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07908327

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 04, 2024

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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Annexure IV
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

1. Name(s) of | 2. Nature of | 3.Duration 4.Salient 5.Justificatio 6. Date of | 7. Date on
the related | contracts/arr | of terms of | n for entering | approval which the
party and | angements/t | contracts contracts/arr into such by the | special
nature of | ransactions /arrangem angements/tr contracts/arr board of | resolution
relationship ents/trans ansactions angements/tr directors was passed
actions including ansactions in general
the value, if meeting
any
Not applicable since all the transactions have been entered at arm’s length with related parties.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

1. Name(s) of the | 2. Nature of | 3. Duration of |4. Salient terms of 5. Date of | 6. Amount
related party and | contracts/ contracts/ Contracts approval by | paid as
nature of | arrangements arrangements arrangements the board | advance, if
relationship /transactions ftransactions- /transactions of directors | any
including the value, if
any (INR in lakhs)
InCred Financial Ir?vestments in Market £y 23,04 1,150.00 NA NA
Services Limited Linked Debentures
InCred Wealth and .
Investments in Market
Investment X 7,540.00
Services Private Linked Debentures FY 23-24 NA NA
Limited
InCred Overseas Investment in
Holdings Pte Subsidiary FY 23-24 9,058.43 NA NA
Limited
InCred Wealth and | Investment in Market
Investment Linked Debentures FY 23-24 9,900.00 NA NA
Services Private
Limited
InCred Capital
Wealth Portfqllo Purchase of FY 23-24 3,031.16 NA NA
Managers Private Investments
Limited
InCred Wealth and
Inve§tment . Purchase of FY 23-24 5,749.61 NA NA
Services Private Investments
Limited
InCred Financial Purchase of FY 23-24 150.00 NA NA
Services Limited Investments
InCred Financial 1293.88
Services Limited Sale of Investments FY 23-24 ’ : NA NA

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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InCred Wealth and
Investment Sale of Investments | FY 23-24 5,056.68 NA NA
Services Private
Limited
InCred Wealth and | Purchase of CCPS of
Investments Subsidiary Booth 104713
Services Private Fintech Private FY 23-24 e NA NA
Limited Limited
Purchase of Equity
InCred Financial Shares of Subsidiary 1736.49
Services Limited Booth Fintech Private FY 23-24 e NA NA
Limited
InCred Wealth and
Investment
Deemed Investment
S_er\_/ices Private in Subsidiary FY 23-24 510.55 NA NA
Limited
Remuneration paid to
KMPs KMPs FY 23-24 318.40 NA NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh
Director

DIN: 07342318

Place: Mumbai

Sd/-

Saurabh Jhalaria

Director
DIN: 07908327

Date: September 04, 2024

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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Chartered Accountants
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audired rhe accompanying standalone financial statements of InCred Capiral Financial Services Privare
Limited (“the Company™) which comprises the Standalone Balance sheet as at 31" March 2024, the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Standalone Cash Flows Statement and the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {(hereinafter referred to
as the "standalone financial statements”™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our reporr. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The board report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude thart there is a material misstatement of this other informartion,
we are required to report the fact.

PNAM&CO LLP 20d Flowr, F-14/15, Shivam House £ +91 11 2140 0294 /295
LLPIN: ABA-8514 Middle Circle, Connaught Place e infoEpnam.co
ICAI FRN: 0010928 / N500395 New Delhi 110 001 WWWW.PNam.co
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements, that give a true and fair view of
the standalone financial position, standalone financial performance including other comprehensive income,
standalone cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the safeguard of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that gives true and fair view and is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative bur to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken based on these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

PNAM&CO LLP 20d Flowr, F-14/15, Shivam House £ +91 11 2140 0294 /295
LLPIN: ABA-8514 Middle Circle, Connaught Place e infoEpnam.co
ICAI FRN: 0010928 / N500395 New Delhi 110 001 WWWW.PNam.co
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*»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audir evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thar we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Standalone Balance sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the Standalone Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

PNAM&CO LLP 20d Flowr, F-14/15, Shivam House £ +91 11 2140 0294 /295
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f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report

in Annexure ‘B’

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i,

1v.

V.

PNAM&ECO LLP
LLPIN: ABA-8514.

The Company does not have any pending litigation which may impact its standalone financial
position in its standalone financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contract, including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There is no amount that is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company as on the close of the year.

(a) The management has represented thar, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note no. 45(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note no. 45(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

20d Flowyr, F-14/15, Shivam House L +91 11 2140 0294 /295
Middle Circle, Connaught Place e infoEpnam.co
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vl Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable

for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

ForPNAM& Co. TLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.: 001092N/N500395

Digrtally signed
PARV by PARY BANSAL

Date; 2024.09.04
BANSA T8:15:46 +05'30"
Parv Bansal

Partner
Membership No.: 515167

UDIN: 24515167BKB]BY 1153
Place: New Delhi
Date: 04" September 2024
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date 1o
the members of InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited on the accounts of the Company for the year ended

31st March 2024,

Omn the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to

us during the course of our audit, we report that:

ii.

i1, a.

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative details
and the situation of Property Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets
are verified once in every three years. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification of fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property as on 31 March 2024,

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year.

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iij(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned
any working capital limits during the year ended 31st March 2024, therefore reporting on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the investment made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of all loans and guarantee provided to companies, firms, LLPs or any other parties are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

{__In IINR Lakhs,}

PNAM&ECO LLP
LLPIN: ABA-8514.

S.no. ] Loans Guarantees | Security
Aggregate amount granted / provided during the
year
- Subsidiaries and associates 17.843.01 =) -
- Orthers 32,705.00 13,500.00 | -
Balances outstanding as at balance sheet
date
-~ Subsidiaries and associates 2,088.07
- Others 30,336.10 13,500.00 -
20d Flowyr, F-14/15, Shivam House L +91 11 2140 0294 /295
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The investments made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided. during the year, are, in our opinion, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the company’s interest,

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company as part of its business
of providing loans to individuals and corporates, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated by the Company. All the receipts and repayments of such loans are
regular and there are no overdue amounts as on the balance sheet date.

In respect of loans and advances, there are no amounts overdue as at the balance sheet date therefore
reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

No loan granted by the company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties,

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, LLPs or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii}(f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within

the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable, therefore reporting under clause 3 (v) is not applicable.

i The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus, reporting under clause 3(vi)
of the Order is not applicable.

vil. a.

According to the information and explanatons given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service taxes, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the vear by the Company with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the informarion and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income tax, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2024
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income-tax,

and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

viii, There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income thar have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

PNAM&ECO LLP
LLPIN: ABA-8514.

20d Flowyr, F-14/15, Shivam House L +91 11 2140 0294 /295
Middle Circle, Connaught Place e infoEpnam.co
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PNAM&CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

In respect of loans, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
and borrowing or in the payvment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the vear and there are no outstanding term loans at
the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short- term
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies therefore reporting under clause 3(1x)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally} and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors}) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is not a Nidhi

Company as defined in section 406 of the Companies Act, 2013 therefore reporting under clause 3(xii) is
not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinien, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transacrions have

been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv, In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is
not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 therefore
reporting under clause 3(xiv) is not applicable to the Company.

PNAM&ECO LLP
LLPIN: ABA-8514.
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PNAM&CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company:.

a. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvij)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial vear and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 44 to the standalone financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audir report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant
to any ongoing project, that has been transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of
sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

For PNAM& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
TCAI Firm Rep. No.: 001092N/N500395

PARV
BANSAL

Parv Bansal
Partner

Diggitally sigred by
PARW BANSAL
Date: 2024.00.04
181606 +05'30"

Membership No.: 515167

UDIN: 24515167BKB]BY 1153

Place: New Delhi

Dare: 04" September 2024
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PNAM&CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of InCred Capital Financial Services Private
Limited as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls svstem over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March
2024, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

‘The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed 10 be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Tnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of marterial misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

PNAM&CO LLP 20d Flowr, F-14/15, Shivam House £ +91 11 2140 0294 /295
LLPIN: ABA-8514 Middle Circle, Connaught Place e infoEpnam.co
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PNAM&CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thart (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrels over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For PN A M & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.: 001092N/N500395

[Bgitally signed by
PARV PARY BAMSAL

Dite: 2024.09.04
BANSAL 555 cosar
Parv Bansal

Partner
Membership No.: 515167

UDIN: 24515167BKB]BY 1153
Place: New Delhi
Date: 04" September 2024
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InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CING BT 20MHT996PTCI55036
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

; MNote As at As at
Pariculirs No. 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
A, ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 406,15 329.97
(b} Capital work in Pragreszs 4 079 1079
{e) Goodwill 1,046,584 |.363.54
{d} Other intangible assets 5 4,61 %21 5.1%8.40
{e) Financial assets
Mon Current Investments i 78,230,749 57.115.61
Others non-current financial assets 7 SOB.B3 63.18
if} Deferred tax assets (Net) n 20020 458,31
(g} Other non current assers 8 78.83 51.51
Total non-current assets 85, 2HL65 64.591.6]|
2. Current assets
{a} Financial assets
Current Investments g9 g, 20782 3.232.20
Trade receivables 10 apz2. 75 | 35604
Cash and cash equivalents " 1,593.47 75931
Loans 12 32,204.31 .
Others current financlal assets 13 345.83 1,140.49
(by Current tax assets (Net) 14 200,82 892,03
(g} Other current assets 15 161.00 30.03
Total current assets 40, 804.9% 410,01
Total Assets 1,26.095.64 72,001.72
B. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1. Equity
{a) Equity share capital 6 1,321.14 1.321.14
(b Other equity 17 i2,723.85 60,354,349
Total Equity 64,0:44.99 61,675.53
2. Liabilities
Non Current liahilities
{a) Financial llahilities
Mon-current barrowings 18 2216518 9.09%.68
Lease Liabiliey 282.21 129,45
Other non-current financial latbilities k] 13.00 13,010
(b} Non-current provisions 20 50,16 51,10
Tatal non-current liahilities 22,519.55 9,293.24
Current liahilities
{a) Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 177.82 162,09
Trade payables 21
(i} tatal autstanding dues of micre and small enterprises . .
{1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 340,58 A06.33
Barrowings 22 36,9609.45
Other current financial labilities 13 1,935.66 341.24
(h} Other current liabilities 24 91.0% 112,84
{c) Currant provisions 25 7.54 1045
Total current labilities 39,531.10 1,032.95
Total Liabilities 62,050.65 10,326.19
Lot Liabilitics and Eauity 12609564 Z200L7Z.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financlal statemeants
A per our report of even date.

For PN AM & Co. LLP

Mote | & 2

Chartered Accountants
1EM Firm Registration No. 001 092M/N500395

Migitally signed
PARv tyy PARY BAMSAL
[ale: Ho3a.09.04
BANSA L EE::ﬁ-S? 0530
Parv Bansal
Partner
Membership Moo 515167

Place : Mew Delhki
Date ; 04 September 2024

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

BHUPIND e
ER SINGH i i

Bhupinder Singh

Directar

DIN - 07342318

Place : Mumbai

Date : 04 September 2024

SAURABH i
JHALARIA ™

Saurabh Jhalaria

Director

DN - 07908327

Place : Mumbai

Date : 04 September 2024




InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CING UBT120MH 1 996PTCI55030

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

: Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars
No. 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
i Income
{i} Revenue From cperations 26 12.265.21 8421 .83
i) Other Income 27 1,060,909 1.613.16
Total revenue from operations (1= i + i) 13,335.20 10,054.99
)} Expenses
(i} Employae henefits expensas 28 3,300.00 4. 858.83
{ii) Finance costs 29 4.172 66 514.45
{iii} Depreciation, amartization and impairment I&5 797.29 733.49]
{iv) Others expenses EN ] 2.399,93 3,222.70
Total expenses (1 =1+ i + §ii + iv) 1066288 9,329.90
(i Profit/{loss) before tax and exceptional items (I =1 - 1) 266532 725.09
{IV) Exceptional items 317.00
V) Profit/{loss) before tax (V = Il - IV) 2,348.32 F25.00
(V1) Tax Expense: 31
{i} Current tax 451 42
(i) Deferred tax 163.99 (298.45)
{iif} Pertaining to earlier years 34.79
Total tax expense (V1 = i + ii + iii) B25.41 {258.66)
VI Profit/{loss) for the period (VI = W - Vi) 1,722.91 9E3.75
{VH) Other comprehensive income
(A) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i} Rameasuremeants of the definad banefit plans 6,16 (10,223
{iid Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to pruFir or loss i 2 4 .45
Subtatal (A = i+ i} 2.04 (5.771
{B} Items that will be reclassified vo profit or loss
(i} Mat Gain/ (Loss) an Instruments through other comprehensive Income
(i} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B =1 +ii) = z
Total other comprehensive income (VI = & + B) 2.04 (5.77)
{1¥) Total comprehensive income for the period {IX = VI + VIl 1,724.95 977.98
(X} Earnings per share (EPS)
(Face vilue of INR. 10 each)
Basic (INR.| 32 13.51 B.6@
Dilisted {INR.) 13.04 B.l4
The accompanying notes ara an integral part of the standalone financial statements Note 1 & 2

As per aur report af aven date

For PN AM & Co. LLP
Charterad Accountants
ICAl Firnm Registration Mo, GO1092N/N500395

gyl s b

PARV PAAV BANSAL '
[hafes 20344900

BANSAL RTINS P05°30°

Parv Bansal

Parther

Membership No.: 515167
PMace : New Delhi

Date - 04 September 2024

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Digitally signed

BHUPIMND by erurnocs

SINGH

EH SINGH [rate: 20240904

P58 05730

Bhupinder Singh
Dhrector

DIN - 07342318
Place : Mumbal

Date - 04 September 2024

Drataby nigiwl try

SAURABH saumam
FlALARR
JHALARIA piszozenn o
10025 <A
Saurabh Jhalaria
Director
DIN - 07908327
Place - Mumbal
Date * 04 September 2024



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CING BT 20MHT996PTCI55036
Standalone Cash flow statement for the vear ended 31st March 2024

All amaounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

A Cash flow from operating actlhvities

Profit/ {Loss) before tax 234832 F25.09
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows from cperating activities
Depraciation and amortisation Ta7. 29 73391
Prafit on sale of investments {7.831.9% (1.476.806)
- MTM an Borrowings 2,392.41
- Imterest (ncome on Loans (759,000 (1,410,925
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through PEL (128.04}
Rent expense on deferred lease rentals 10.78 G.50
- Allowance tor credii loss I61.47 (102.67)
- Assets written off 3129.08
Lass on sale of flxed assers (3 BA
Intarest on Borrowings 3,983 42 377.66
- Interest on unwinding of financial llabilities 4654 35,54
- Interest on unwinding of financial assets {1052 (6.23)
Share based payment to employeas H44.51 2.777.34
Dperating profit/loss before working capital changes 2,314.66 1,532,117
Adjustments for {increase) / decrease in operating assets:
- Trade receivables 429 87 1,018 07
- Other financial assets 137.83 (1,118.48)
- Other non-financial assers {1 58.55) 333.39
Adjustments for increase / {decreasel in operating liabilities:
= Tragde payables (5B.65) (1,908,917
- Depasits - (2.44)
« Dther financial liabilities 1,594 42 (539,76}
- Dther non-financial Nabilitles [l - 1] (56.95)
- Pravisions 11.30 2.94
Cash generated from / {used in) operations 4,249.09 {937.98)
Direct taxes (paid) net of refunds | 3080 (491.46)
Net cash flow from (used in) aperating activities (A 4,379.8% {1.,429.44)
B. Cash flows from investing activitles
- Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (13,71 (18,34
« Purchase of Intangible assets {ncluding under development) .
CCapital work in progress (G700
< Proceeds from sale of fixed assats - 915
- Mel Proceeds from Loans 3242117 26,888.95
~Interest Income on Loans 75900 1.410.82
Invastment in Subsidiary {13,594.59% (45,739.85)
+ Proceeds from sale of Subsidiary E74.8] .
- Purchase of Investments 11,311,383 {2,76,227.76)
 Proceeds from sale ol investments 1,26,377.78 2,68,993.08
Net cash flow from / {used in) investing activities [{:1] (459,334.21) {24,693.58)

. Cash flows from financing activities

- Share Capital 161,63
< Securities premium (Met of Share |ssue expensesh - 13,716.78
« Proceeds from Borrawings 1,00,249 82 13,270.00
- Repayment of Borrowings 153,379.90) (4,532,000
- Interest payment on horrowings (B2E Gn) (47 97
Payment of lease labilities {259.07) (164,23}
Net cash flow from / {used in) in financing activities (5] 45, 78849 22,404.20
Met increase J/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 834.16 (3.718.82)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 75a.1) 447813
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [Refer Note | below] 1,593.47 759.31
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year 834.16 {3,718.82)




InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CiN: U671 20MHT996PTCIA5036

Standalone Cash flow statement for the vear ended 31st March 2024
1Al amaounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise siatad)

Nores 1o Standalone cash flow statement

I. Components of cash and cash eguivalents
Cash on hand

With hanks - on current account & flxed deposits

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For PN AM& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firm Registration No. 001092N/MN500395

Crigitally signed by
P"‘:\RV PARY BANSAL
Drage; 2024.09.04
BANSAL H::l 7135 40530
Parv Bansal
Partner
Membership Mo 515167

Place | Mew Delhi
Drate | 04 Seplember 2024

158347 759.31

1,593.47 759,31

Mote | & 2

For and on behall of the Beard of [Hrectors of
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

Cigitally signed

by BHUPINDER Dty el oy
BH L.IPINDJN s SAURABH [0 T,
ER SINGH bste: 2024.00.04 JHALARIA S
15:12:14 405'30°
Bhupinder Singh Saurabh Jhalaria
Director Directar
[N - 07342318 M - 7908327
Flace ; Mumbal Place : Mumbal

Drate 04 Seprember 2024 Date © 04 September 2024



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CIM: UGBT120MHT 996PTCIS5036

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 24
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity share capital of INR 10 each issued

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1.275.74 989.98
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the year 1,275.74 98998
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 285.76
Balamce as at the end of the year 1,275.74 1,275.74

B. Preference share capital
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

f
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year = -
Additians during the year - 60.35
Changes during the year - (60.35)
Balance as at the end of the year - -

Balance as at the beginning of the year 45.40 45.40
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 4540 45.40
Changes during the year

Balance as at the end of the year 4540 45.40
Taotal 45.40 45.40

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CIM: UGBT120MHT 996PTCIS5036

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 24
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

C. Other equity

Particulars

Share application

Reserves and Surplus

Share based
payment reserve

money pending
allotment

Contingency
resgrn'e

D
Rei
I

Securities
premium

Statutory
reserve

Balance as at 31st March 2022

Profit / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)

Transfer / utilisations:

Share application money pending allotment

Utilisation on conversion of Share capital

Premium an private placement

Amounts utilised towards share issue expensas
Transferred to statutory reserve from retained earnings
Employee stock option expense

Reserves acquired on amalgamation/merger

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Profit / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)

Transfer / utilisations:

Share application money pending allotment

Utilisation on conversion of Share capital

Premium an private placement

Amounts utllised towards share issue expenses

Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve

Transferred to/from statutery reserve from /1o retained earnings
Employee stock oprion expense

Reserves acquired om amalgamation,/merger

Balance as at 31st March 2024

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

ForPNAM & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mo, D0T092N/N500395

PARY
BANSAL
Parv Bansal
Partner
Membership No.. 515167

Place : New Drelhi
Date : 04 September 2024

= .54 291.72

719.06 36,364.38

(31.50)

2,777.34

{2.94)
20,885.01
- (531.65)
196.75

3,017.56

915.81 56,7 14.80

- - 644.51

- {420,07)
(915.81) :

3.662.07

56,294.73

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
BHUPINDER S

SINGH oo

Bhupinder Singh
Director
DIy - 07342318

Place : Mumbai
Date : 04 September 2024

SAURABH 2t
JHALARIA TS
Saurabh Jhalaria

Director
DN - 7908327

Place : Mumbal
Drate : 04 September



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CIMN: UG7120MH] B96PTC3I55036

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 st March 2024

Note | : General information

1.1, Corporate information
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited ('the Company”) was incorparated in India on 27th March 1996 under the provision of Companies Act, 1956 having
CIM UB7 1 20MH1 396PTC355036.

The Campany was registered with REl to carry on the business of Non- Banking Financial Company without accepting public depasits ("NEFC") and was granted
Certificate of Registration (CoR} bearing No B-13.02415. The Company applied for surrender of NBFC CoR and the same was accepted by RBI vide its letter dated July
17, 2023

The Caompany is an integrated provider of advisory services 1o corporate and instituticnal clients through capital markets and investment banking platforms. Cne of
the primary business of ICFSPL is also to engage in purchase and sale of securities,

The registered office of the Company is Unit Na. 1203, 132th Floor, B Wing, The Capital, Bandra Kurla Complex Mumbai - 400051,

1.2. Basis of preparation

The Standalone financial statement of the Company have been prépared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'h notified under the Companies
(Indian Aceounting Standards) Rules, 20715 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant pravisions of the Act,

These standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 04 September 2024

B. Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees CINR'), which is alse the Company™s functional currency, All the amaunts have been rounded-aff
to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

C, Basis of measurement
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under histarical cost convention and on an accrual methed of accounting except
far the following items:

(i) Certain financial assets and liahilities that are measured at fair value/amortised cost
() Net defined benefit asset / llability - plan assets are measured at fair value less present value of defined benefit abligation, and
(iii} Shara-based payments - measured at fair value

0. Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with |nd AS requires that management make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect

the applicaticn of accounting policies and the reperted amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of conmtingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
standalone financial statements and the income and expense for the reporting period. The actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revislons to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and In any future
periods affected.

The Company makes certan judgments and estimates for valuation and impairment of financial instruments, fair valuation of employee stock options, useful life of
property, plant and eguipment, deferred tax assets and retirement benefit obligations, Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
standalone financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Significant judgements

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The chiigation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions, Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, rrends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy, The discount rate s determined by reference 1o market vields at the end of the reparting period on government bonds,
The period to maturity of the underlying bands correspand to the probable maturity of the past-emplayment benefit obligations, Due to complexities (nvolved in the
valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at sach reporting period,

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax conseguences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases and unutilised business lass and depreciation carry forward and tax eredits. Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that It s
prabable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry forward and unused
tax credits could be utilised.

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies
The recagnition and measurement of ather pravisions are based an the assessment af the probability of an outflow of resources and on past experience and
circumstances khown at the reporting date. The actual outflew of resources at a futare date may therefore, vary from the amount Included in other provisions,
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All financial assets/liabilities are required to be measured at fair value an initial recognition. In case of financial assets/liabilities which are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost, Interast s accrued using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on Its financial assets measured at amortised cast. At each reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired” when one ar maore events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows af the financial asset have occurred,

Leases
The determination of lease term for same lease contracts in which the Company is a lessee, including whether the Company Is reasanably certain to exercise lessee

options. The determination of the incremental barrowing rate used to measure lease liabilities.

E. Presentation of standalone financial statements

Standalone financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Il {'Division [1I') of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable ta NBFCs, as notified by the
Minlstry of Carporate Affairs ('MCA"), The Staterment of Cash Flows has beep prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows,
The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Standalene Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to
the Act, are presented by way of nates forming part of the standalone financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclesed under the notified
Accounting Standards, amc RBI regulations to the extent applicable,

F. Current / Non-current classification of assets and liabilities
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current,

Assels:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

(i) It is expected 10 be realised in, ar is interested in sale pr consumption in, the Company's normal cperating oycle:

iy It is held primarily far being traded:
{iii} It is expected to be realised within 12 manths after the reporting date; ar

{Iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 1 2 months after the reporting date,
Current assets Include the current portion of nen-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:
A llability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i} It is expected to be settled in the Company's nermal operating cycle

(i) 1t is held primarily for being traded
(i} It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; ar

{iv) the Company does not have an uncanditional nght to defer settlement of the lability Tor at least 1 2 manths after the reporting date.
Current labilities include the current portion of non-current financtal labilities,
All other liablilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as Nan-current,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Comparny’s normal operating cycle and other criterla set out in the Schedule I to
the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has identified 12 months as their operating cyele for classification of thelr current assets and liabilities,

Note 2 : Material accounting policies

2.1, Measurement of fair values
The Company's accaunting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments.

Falr value |s the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

{i) In the principal market for the asset or liahility, ar
(i} In the absance of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabllity
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The Company has an established contral framewark with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management has the overall responsibility for overseelng all
significant fair value measuremants, including Level 3 fair value.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, IT third party information, such as broker guotes or pricing services, is
used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the thire parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements af Ind A%, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations shaould be classified.

When measuring the fair values of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs wused in the valuation techniques as follows,

() Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for dentical assets ar liabilities.

(i) Level 2z inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly {i.e, derived
from prices).

(iii} Level 3: inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Campany uses cbhservable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure
the fair value af an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised (n its entirety in the same
level of the fair value higrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

Tha Company recagnises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reparting period during which the change has occurred,

2.2, Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any cantract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and
financial llabilities are réecognized when company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A, Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are ariginated, All other financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becoimes a party
to the contractual provisions af the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL'), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to lts acquisition,

B. Classification of financial assets:

Fimancial assets:
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised Cost
= Fair value through other comprehensive incame {'FYOCI)
Fair value through profit and loss ('FVWTPL')

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset that meets the following twe conditions is measured at amortised cost inet of any write down far impairment), unless the asset |s designated at
FVTPL:

(i) the financial asser is held within a business moedel whose abjective is to hold assets 1o collect contractual cash flaws; and

(i) the Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI'} on the principal
ameunt outstanding.
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Fimancial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss ('"FVTPL'):

A Financial asset which is not classified in above category |5 subsequently measured at FYTPL. Where assets are measured at fair value, gans and losses are
recognized entirely in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Subseguent recognition of financial assets:
The assets classified in the aforementioned categaries are subsequently measured as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the aeffective interest method. The amontised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interast income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition |s recognised in Statement of
Prafit and Loss;

Financial assets at FVTPL:
These assels are subsequently measured at falr value. Net gains and lasses, including any Interest or dividend income, are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Prafit and Lass,

Debt investments at FVOCL:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the EIR method, foreign gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments designated at FVOCE

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recagnised as income in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment., Other net galns and [osses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to Standalane Statement of
Prafit and Loss,

0. Classification of financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified and measured ar amartised cast ar FY¥TPL, A financial liability is classified as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions af a financial Hability and an equity Instrument,

E. Subsequent recognition of financial liabilities:

All financial habilities are recogrised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable and incremental transaction cast,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortisation
15 Included as finance casts profit and loss,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade payables and other financial liabilities,

F. Offsetting of financial instruments

& financlal asset and a financial liabllity |5 offset and presented on net basls (n the balance sheet when there (s a current legally enforceable right 1o set-aff the
recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly,

G. Reclassification of financial assets and financial Habilities

The Company is required to reclassify financial assets when and only when it changes its business madel for managing financial assets.

Reclassifications are expected 1o be very infrequent. Such changes must be determined by the company's senior management as a result of external or internal
changes and must be significant to the company’'s operations and demaonstrable to external parties,

Further reclassification is not allowed in following cases:
- Investments In equity instruments irrevocably designated as at FYOC) cannot be reclassified,
- Reclassification of financial liabilities.
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2.3, Impairment

A. Impairment of financial assets

In accardance with Ind AS 10%, the Company applies expected credit loss model (ECL) for measurement and recagnition of impairment loss. At each reporting date,
the Company assesses whether the recejvables have been Impalred. The Company is exposed to credic risk when the customer defaults on his centractual
ohiigations.

The Company recards allowance for expected credit fosses (ECL) for all loans and debt investments, together with loan commitments ta customers,

The ECL allowance {s based on the credit lesses expected to arise over the life of the assetr, unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
originatian, in which case the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit lass, Both fife time expected credit Inss and 12 months' expected credit loss are
calculated en individual loan / instrument basis.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs an assessment of whether the loan's / investment’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recagnition by censidering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the asset,

Based on the above, the Company categornses [ts loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as uncler:

Stage 1: Whan |pans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 manths' expected credit loss, Stage 1 [oans also include facilities where
thie credit risk bas improved and the loan has been re-classified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase In cradit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected credit loss, Stage 2
loans also include facilities where the credit risk has impraved and the loan has been re-classified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: When a loan is credit impaired, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected credit loss,

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shorfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash
shortfall |5 the difference between the cash flows that are due to the Company in accardance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects 1o
receive,

Key elements considered for ECL calculation are as under:

Probability of Default (PD) It Is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facllity has not been previously derecogrised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default; The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,

Loss Given Default (LGDY: LGD is an estimate of the lass arising in case where a default occurs. 1t is based on the difference between the contractual cash Flows due
and those that the Company would expect to receive, including from the realization of any security.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets at each balance shest date are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the azset's recoverable amaunt |s estimated.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asser.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment [oss is recognised in the Statement of Pralit and Loss for such excess
Amount.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that
the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An Impairment loss |s reversed |f there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,
Such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amertisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.4, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and en hand and short-term deposits with an criginal maturity of three months aor less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Far the purpose af the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term depasits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an Integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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2.5, Investments

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment if any in the standalone financial statement.

Investment in Mutual Fund
The company uses Met Asset Value (NAV) ta fair value investments in mutual funds.

Investment in Equity
The company uses Net Asset Value (NAV) to fair value investments in equity.

Investment in AIF
The company uses Net Asset Value (NAV) to fair value investments n AIF.

2.6. Property, plant and equipment

A. Recognition and measurement

Praperty, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and Impalrment, (T any, The cost of an item of property, plant and egquipment
comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any costs directly
attributable o bringing the asset to the lecation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management and the initial
estimate of the cost of dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities”, the obligation for which an enterprise incurs either when the item Is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for
purposes other than to produce inventories during the period,

Borrowing casts relating to acquisition of an item of property, plant and equipment which takes substantial period to get ready for its intended use are also included
to the extent they relate to the peried tll such assets are ready to be use,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of praperty, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under ather non-
current assets and the cost of assets not put to use befare such date are disclosed under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’,

Repalrs & Maintenance costs are recognized in the net prafit in the Statement of Profit and Lass when Incurred,

Property, plant and eguipment held for sale |s valued at lower of thelr carrying amount and net realizable value, Any write-down is recognized In the statement of
profit and loss.

B. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised anly (f it is probable that the future econamic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

C. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised an disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from s use ar
disposal, Gains or losses arising from derecognition of praperty, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recoanized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogntzed.

D. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line method (SLM1, The rates of depreciation used are those which have been calculated as
per the methad specified in Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013, The Companies Act, 2013 prescribes that the asset should be written off over its useful life as
estimated by the management and provides the Indicative useful lives for the different class of assets.

The useful life as per Schedule 1| are as follows:

Useful life as
Asselroup per Schedule 1|
Furniture and fittings 10
Computers 3
Office Equipment's 5
Wehicle ]
Leasehold improvements Ower the life of
ROU Assats Ower the life of

Drepreciation s not recorded on capital work in progress until canstruction and installation is completed and assets are ready for s intended use,
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Depreciation on addition ta praperty, plant and equipment is provided an proerata basis from the date the asset is ready for use. Depreciation an sale/ deduction of
property, plant and equipment |5 pravided for up to the date of sale, deduction and discarding as the case may be.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed ar each reporting date and adjusted If appropriate, Based on technical evaluation and consequent
advice. the management believes that its estimated useful life as given above best represent the period aver which management expects to use these assets.

2.7 Intangible assets

A. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amartisation and impairment Insses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset camprises its purchase
price including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly atrributable expenditure
on making the asset ready for its intended wse and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Iid
Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset |s capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits emboched in the specific asset 1o which it relates,
All other expenditure are recognised in the Statement Profit and Loss as incurred.

C. Amortization

Amortisation is calculated o write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful life using the straight-line method,
and is included in depreciation, amaortisatian and impalrment In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The intangible assets are amartised over the estimated useful life of 3 years,
Amortisation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively,

2.8, Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent thal it relates to a business combinatiaon
orF to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income ('OCI',

A, Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recelvable in
raspect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if
any, related ta Income taxes, It 1s measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company;
(i) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
(i) intends to realise the asset or settle the liability an a net basis or simultaneously,

B, Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised In respect of temporary differences between the carryving amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposas and the
amounts wsed for taxation purposes,

Deferred tax Is not recognised for:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that |s not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nar
taxable profit and loss; and

(i) tempaorary differences related (o investments in subsidiaries and assoclates to the extent that the Company is able to contral the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unwsed tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reparting date and are reduced to the extent that It is no
lenger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Such reductions are reversed when the prebability of future taxable profits Improves. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be availahble
agalnst which they can be used,

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability |3 settled, based on
tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the reporting date. Taxes relating to items recagnised directly in equity or OCI Is
recognised in equity or OCL,
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amaunt of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset anly If;
(i} the Company has a legally enfarceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. and

(i} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate ta income taxes levied by the same taxation autharity an the same taxable entity.

2.9, Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense as per the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds,
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those tangible fised assets which necessanly take a substantial period of time to ger ready far
their intended use are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense (n the year in which they are incurred.

2.10. Share capital

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share cpitions are recognised as a
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects,

2.11. Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases’ and applied the standard to all lease contracts. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments discounted at the Incremental borrowing rate and the right of wuse asset at its carrying amaount as if the stancard had been applied since
the commencement date of the lease, but discaunted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial applicatian,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROUT and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve menths or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, Fer these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on & straight-line basis over the term of the lsase,

The right-of use assets are inftially recognized at cost, which compnses the initial amount of the lease lability adjusted for any lease payments mace at or prior 10
the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amartized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates.

2.12. Revenue from operations
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,

The Company recqgnlsed revents prrmarllv from varlous activities as follows:

(i} Interest incame or expense Is recognised using the effective interest rate methed.
{ii} Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities Incidental to the business and is recognized when the right to receive the income [s
established as per the terms of the contract

The "affactive interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected lite of the financial instrumant to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
the amortised cost of the financial liabilitvy.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interast rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) ar
to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for linancial assets that have become crecit-impaired subsequent to initial recognitian, Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective |nterest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the caloulation of interest incame revearts
to the gross basis.

2.13. Earning per share
The basic eamings per share ('EPSY s computed by dividing the net profit / {loss) after tax for the year attributable o the equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive patential equity shares outstanding during the year. Far
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A. Provisions

Fravisions are recognized when there (s a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required 1o settle the abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is présentad in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the effact of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost.

EB. Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived from a cantract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
ohligations under the contract, The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net
cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment lass on the assets associated with that contract,

Provislons, contingent assets, cantingent llabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reparting date,

2.15. Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic envirenment in which it operates. The functional currency of the
Company is Indian National Rupee {INR),

The transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactiens. At the end of each reporting period, manetary tems denominated In forelgn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Mom-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences ansing on transaction/settlement of moanetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise,

2.16. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported 0 a manper consistent with the internal reporting provided to chief operating decision maker, An operating segment is a
component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate 1o
transactiens with other components of the same enuty. and for which discrete financial infarmation is available. Al aperating segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularty by the chief operating decizion maker,

2.17. Events after the reporting period
Events after the reparting period are those events, bath favourable and unfavourable that occur between end af the reparting period and the date on which the
standalone financial statements are approved for (ssue.

A, Adjusting events
Events which provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting peried are adjusting events. Financials have been adjusted for those

events,

E. Non-adjusting events

Events which are of indicative of conditions that arise after the end of the reporting period are Mon-adjusting events, Disclasure of the nature of event and estimate
of its financial effect have been made in the standalone financial statements.

There have bean no events after the reporting date that require disclosure inthese standalone financial statements.

2.18. Related party disclosure

A related party is any party of entity that controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the Company during the reporting period,

The Company has disclosed names of related parties with relationship and transaction between Company and 1ts related parties In the Notes to standalone financial
statements ,
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2.19. Employee benefits

A. Short-term employee benefits

Shart-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liahility is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the emplovee and the abligaticn can be estimated reliably.

E. Compensated absences
The Company daes not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves for its emplayees and are nat permitted ta carry forward the leaves, Hence there is na
liability towards compensated absence,

C, Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company is statutorily required to cantribute a specified portion of the basic

salary of an employee 1o a provident fund as part of retirement benefits to its emplovees. The contributions during the year are charged to the statement of prafit
and loss,

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The Company's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries. using the projected wnit credit method, The present vahue of the defined
benefit abligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reparting period on government
bonds that have térms approximating to the terms of the related cbligation,

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cast s included in employee benefit
expense In the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasuremnent of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets excluding interest incame are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profic and loss in the
subsequent period.

2.19 Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect methed In accordance with Ind A5 7 Statement of Cash Flows, whereby profit for the peried |5 adjusted tor the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income ar expenses associated with
Investing or financing cash flows. The cash fows from operating, investing and financing activitles of the Company are segregated.

2.20 Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the
perfarmance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such items Is disciosed separately as exceptional items,
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Note 3 : Property, plant and eguipment

Leasehold

Particulars ROU Assets Furniture and fixtures Improvements Office equipment Vehicle
Gross carrying amount:

As at 315t March 2022 456.25 25.91 O6.83 34.32 7721
Additions during the year 30.59 Q7

Acquired via Merger 20.55 BE.39 46.53

Disposals during the year 12:21
As at 31st March 2023 456.84 4647 165.22 81.02 65.00
Additions duning the year 395.71 0.05 0.96

Disposals duning the year 28.87

Write affs during the year - 20.55 £8.39 46.70 -
As at 31st March 2024 8531.68 25.97 96,83 3527 65.00
Accumulated depreciation:

As at 31st March 2022 209.27 4.81 36.17 12.36 6.50
Depreciation charge during the year 100,13 2.80 22.36 B8.70 B.79
Acquired via Merger 17.93 68.39 37.23

Accumulated depreciation on disposals . . . . 2.61
As at 31st March 2023 309.40 25.53 126.92 58.29 12,69
Depreciation charge during the year 163.51 2.60 22.42 6.41 B.15
Accumulated depreciation on disposals 11.88

Write affs during the year 2 18.14 6E.39 39.11 -
As at 31st March 2024 461.03 1000 B0.95 2560 20.84
Net carrying amount:

As-at 31st March 2024 392.66 15.97 15.88 9.68 44,16
As at 31st March 2023 177.44 20.93 38.30 22.72 52.31
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Note 4 : Capital work in Progress

Particulars Total

As at 31st March 2022 1.09
Additions during the period .70
Capitalized during the period

As at 31st March 2023 10.79
Additians during the period

Capitalized during the period -
As at 31st March 2024 10.79

Aging for CWIP

Particulars Less then 1 year 1 -2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years  Total

Projects In pragress 9.70 1.09 = 10.79
As at 3151 March 2024 9-. 70 l-.lJEi ID;?EI
Aging for CWIP

Particulars Less then 1 year 1 -2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years  Total

Projects in progress 5,70 1.09 10.79
As at 31st March 2023 9-.?0 I:E‘B ID-.?B
Note 5 : Other intangible assets

Particulars Software D—Zi?ll::;l:eg:t Brand R eica:?::l:lﬁ::s Total

As at 315t March 2022 5.43 543
Additions durning the yvear 2.411.50 575.00 2.789.50 5, 776.00
Dispasals during the year

As at 315t March 2023 5.43 2411.50 575.010 2,789.50 5,781.43
Additians during the vear

Disposals during the year

As at 31st March 2024 5.43 2411.50 575.00 2. 785.50 5, 78143
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ion i i s

As at 315t March 2022 5.00 . - . 5.00
Amaortisation charge during the year 0.43 241015 57.50 27895 578.03
Disposals 2 - - - -

As at 31st March 2023 5.43 241.15 57.50 27895 583.03
Amertisation charge during the year 241,81 57.66 279.71 579.18
Dispasals -

As at 31st March 2024 5.43 482.96 115.16 558.66 1,162.21
Net carrying amount as at 31st March 2024 - 1,928.54 450,84 2,230.84 461921
Met carrying amount as at 31st March 2023 = 217035 517.50 2.510.55% 5.198.40

Technology Development is acquired through Business Combination with Clamant Tech Services Private Limited
Brand Name and Customer Acquisition are the intangibles acquired through Business Combination with MAPE Advisary Group Private Limited
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Note 6: Mon Current Investments

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

(&) Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

In Alternate Investment Fund 10,632.10 469525
I Pertfolio Management Services 502.83 402.27
In MNon Convertible Debentures & Market Linked Debentures 205528 1,274,778
I Derivative assets 1,841 .97 #&11.31

1503218 7.183.60

(B] Investments carried at cost
In Subsidiaries (ungquoted)

InCred Asset Management Private Limitec 5.049.31 4,900 00

InCred Wealth and |nvestment Services Private Limited 42 811.40 42 50085

InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited 1,518.50 1,571.00

Booth Fintech Private Limited £464.63

InCred Owerseas Holding Private Limited (Singapore) 9.058.43

In Associates (unguoted)

Alpha Fintech Private Limited 2,305.34 1,220.16
63,207.61 4993201

Total - Gross (A + B ) 78.239.79 5711561

Less: Impairment |oss allowance E; £

Taotal - Net of impairment loss allowance 78.239.79 57,115.61

{A) Investments in India 6, 181.36 57,115.41

(B} Investments outside India 9.058.43 =

Tatal - Gross (4 + B} 78239.79 57,115.61

Less: Impairmeant loss allowance

Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 78.239.79 5711561

Note 71 Others non-current financial assets

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Rental deposits 318.09 6262
Other Advances 5851
Advance to Broker 470.73 a.57
508.83 131.70
Less: Allowance for impairment 1055 - IGB.51)
Total 508.83 63.18
Note 8 : Other non current assets
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Balances with government authorities 25.96
Deferred rent expense 14,01 11.43
Prepald Expenses 64 .82 13.87
Others 0.26
Total 78.83 51.51
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Note 9 : Current Investments

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

I Mutual Funds 0.29

I Equity Shares - Unlisted 2435.30 1,539,011
In Mon Convertible Debantures & Market Linked Debentures 2.772.23 1,693.09
Tatal 5,207.832 323220
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 5,196.31 3,232.20
Agaregate amount of quated investmeants 1151 -
Mote 10: Trade receivables

Particulars AR A Ayt

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Secured, cansidered good
Unsecurad, considered good
Significant increase in credit risk

Credit impaired

Less: Allowance for impairment lass

933.08

|,362,95

933.08
(3321

1,362.95
.81

Total

902.75

1,356.04

As at 31st March 2024

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
Less than & & months -

Maorths } yaar | -2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

I} Undisputed Trade Becelvabes - Consider good
i) Undisputed Trade Receivabes - which have significant increase in
credit risk

lil} Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impalred

iv} Disputed Trade Receivalbes - Considered goods
v) Disputed Trade Recelvalbes - which have significant increase in credit
risk

vi} Disputed Trade Recelvalbes - Credit Impaired

915.38 17.70

933.08

Total

915.38 17.70 - x

933.08

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
Less than & & maonths -

Months 1 year 1 -2 years 2 -3 years

More than 3 years

Total

i| Undisputed Trade Recejvabes - Consider good
1i) Undisputed Trade Receivabes - which have significant increase in
credit risk

lil} Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Credit impalred

iv} Disputed Trade Receivalbes - Considered goods
v) Disputed Trade Recevalbes - which have significant increase in credit
risk

vi) Disputed Trade Recelvalbes - Credit Impaired

1,362.95

1,362.95

Total

1,362.95 . . - .

1,362.95
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Note 11:  Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Cash on hand

Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash eguivalent) 1.593.47 759.31
Total 1,593.47 759.31
Note 12: Loans

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Unsecured and Considered Good ©

(i Intercorporate deposits to athers 7,730,599

(it Intercarporate deposits to related party 24,693.18
Total - Gross 3242407
Less: Impairment |oss allowance 1128.86)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 32,294.31
‘Intercorparate depasits has been given tor general business purpose.
Note 13 : Others current financial assets

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Recelvable towards Investments 725.11
Rental Deposliis 72.11
Advance to Broker 1.50
Merger receivable 456 44 407.25
Others 28.46 6.63
557.02 1,140.49

Less: Impairment loss allowance 1211.20) .
Total 34583 1,140.49
Note 14 : Current tax assets (Net)

As at As at
Partiouinrs 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Income tax refundable inet of provision for income tax) 299,82 892.03
Total 20982 892.03
Note 15 : Other current assets

As at As at

Particulars

315t March 2024

31st March 2023

Prepaid expenses 142,40 15.01
Others .03 0.53
Deferred rent expense 4,32 -

Advance for expenses 14.26 10.49
Total 161.00 30.03
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Nate 16 : Equity share capital

As at 31st March 2024

Farticulars Number Amount

Authorised share capital [Refer note 'd' below]

Equity shares of INR. 10/- each 3.41,94,000 3.4159.40

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10/- each 716,000 7160

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of INR 10/- each £.00,000 60,00
3.55,10,000 3,551.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Equity Shares of INR, 10/- each fully paid up 1,27.57.390 1.275.74

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of INR 10/- each fully paid-up 4.53,962 45.40

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 1,32,11,352 1,321.14 .

a. Terms and rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares. The equity shares have a paid up value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to vote in proportion of the share o
shareholder. Each shareholder is entitied to receive interim dividend when it is declared by the Board of Directors. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directars are paid when approv
general mesting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company proportionately along with the holders of compulsony o
of all preferential amounts. The distribution shall be according 1o the members right and interest in the company.

b. Terms and rights attached to Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

Pursuant 1o Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Clamant Tech Services Private Limited (*Transferor Company'), InCred Wealth Private Limited (*Demerged Company 1"} MAPE Advisor
2"), InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited {'Resulting Company 1') and InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited {'Company” or ‘Transferee Company’ or "Resulting Con
passed by the NCLT Mumbai sanctioning the Compaosite Scheme the Company had allotted 4,53,962 Class A Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares ("OCRPS). Based on the val
liability portion arising out of redemption option is immaterial and therefore not accounted for,

Therefore entire OCRPS has been considered as equity in nature. The conversion right is to be exercised by the holders of OCRPS after 90 days from the end of 3 {three) years fraom the Appointe

CCRPS shall be redesmed at the option of the Company after the end of 3 ithree) Years from the Appointed Dare.

c. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31st March 2024
Number Amount

Particulars

Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 1,27,57,390 1,275.74
Add: Shares issued on conversion of CCPS and OCRPS during the year

Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Less: Bought back during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,27.57,390 1,275.74

Instruments entirely equity In naturne

Compulsorily convertible preference shares

At the beginning of the year

Add: Shares issued during the year

Less: Converted to Equity shares during the year - R
Dutstanding at the end of the year - -

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

At the beginning of the year 4,53,962 45.440
Add: Shares issued during the year H
Less: Converled 1o Equity shares during the year
Dutstanding at the end of the year 4,53,962 45.40

Total instruments entirely equity in nature 4,53,962 45.40
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d. Dretails of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% of shares of the Company

As at 31st March 2024

Name of the shareholder No. cillf shares % Holding M
eld

Equity shares

Bhupinder Singh' 43,90,180 33.23%

MEMG Family office LLP 943,704 T04%

Paragan Partners Growth Fund-| 907,408 6.87%

Rawi Fillai F -

InCred Wealth Private Limited 9.67.840 7.33%

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

RamprasadM 1.95,955 43.17%

Jacob Mathew 1.03.201 22.73%

Anu Jacob 92,753 20.43%

1. 9665 equity shares are being held by Credentia Trustesship Services Private Limited on behalf of Mr, Bhupinder Singh as agreed under Escrow agreement dated | 5th December 2020,

As per recards of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represe
shares,

e, Equity shares held by promoters of the company
Out af the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its promoters

As at 315t March 2024 As al
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % of shares hald % Change during the o o shiares hald % of
held year
Ehupinder Singh 43,990,180 33.23% 3.63% 42.36,578

f. Changes in authorized share capital of the Company

i} The Company has reclassified its Authorized share capital fram from INR 350,000,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crores} divided into: (a) 3,44,00,000 (Three Crores Forty Four Lakhy equity st
Rupees Tend each;(b) 6,00,000 (Six Lakh) optionally convertible redeemable preference shares having the face value of INR 10/- (indian Rupees Ten) each, to {a) 3,36,84,000 (Three Crores
shares having the face value of INR 10/ (Indian Rupees Ten) each; (b} 6,00,000 (Six Lakh) optionally convertible redeemable preference shares having the face value of INR 10/ (Indian Rupe
Thousandl compulsarily convertible preference shares having the face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten) each. vide shareholders” approval at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held o

i) Pursuant to Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Clamant Tech Services Private Limited ("Transferor Company”), InCred Wealth Private Limired ('Demerged Company |71, MAPE Advisor
2'), InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited ('Resulting Company 1'y and InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited (‘Company’ ar ‘Transferee Company' or "Resulting Car
passed by the NCLT Mumbai sanctioning the Composite Scheme the Authorised share capital Le. Rs.51.00,000 of the Transferor Company has been transferred into Company.
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Mote 17 : Other equity

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Securities premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year 56,714,880 36,364.38
Add: Additions during the year:
- Premium on comversion of CCPS and CCRPS to equity shares during the year {2.94)
- Premium on private placemaent 20,885.01
- Premium an ESOP exercized -
Less: Utilized during the year:
Transher to Debenture Redemption Reserve A420.07
- Amounts utilized towards share issue expenses £ 331,65
Balance as at the end of the year 56,294.73 56,7 14.80
Contingency reserve fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year 0.54 0.54
Add: Addition during the year;
Transfer from surplus / (deficit) in statement of profic and loss
Less: Utilized during the year
Balance as at the end of the year 0.54 0.54
Share based payment reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,017.56 291.72
Add: Addition during the year; 644,51 2.777.34
Less: Utilized during the year z 51.50
Balance as at the end of the year 3,662.06 3,017.56
Statutory reserve fumd pursuant to Section 45-1C of the REI Act, 1934
Balance as at the beginning of the year 915.81 719.06
Add: Addition during the year:
Transter from surplus in statement of profit and loss 196.75
Less: Utilized during the year 915.81
Balance as at the end of the year - 915.81
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Addition during the year: 2,766,52
Less: Utilized during the year . -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,766.52 -
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Lass
Balance as at the beginning of the year {294.32) 696,57
Add: Reserves on Merger (1,772.12)
Add: Profit / (loss) after tax for the year 1,722.91 983.75
Add: Addition during the year on account of ESOP
Add: Transfer from Statutary reserve fund 915.81
Add: Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of Income tax 2.04 {5.77)
Amount available for appropriations 2,346.44 {97.57)
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve (2;346.44)
- Transfer to Statutory reserve pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 : (19675}
Balance as at the end of the year (294.32)
Total 62,723.85 60,354.39
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Mote 18 : Non-current borrowings

Particulars

As at

31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Secured - At amortised cost
- Market Linked Debentures {including derivative component)

22,165,18

9,099.68

Total

22,165.18

9.099.68

Particulars Mature of Security

Terms of Repayment

Maturity date

Issue value as at
31st March 2024

77, Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal
Protected - Market Linked
Non-Convertible Debenture
of INR 10,00,000

First Parl Passu charge over
bondsfinvestments held by the
Company with minimum asset cover
of 1.00 times. The Company shall
have aption
to trade/sell with the bonds subject
to maintaining minimum asset cover
all time duning the tenure of the
Debentures.

150 Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal
Pratected - Market Linked
Non-Convertible Debenture
Linked Mon-Convertible
Debenture af INR 10,00,000

First Pari Passu charge over
bondsfinvestments held by the
Company with minimum asset cover
of 1.040 times, The Company shall
have aption
to trade/sell with the Bonds subsject
to maintaining minimum asset cover
all time during the tenure of the
Debentures.

230 Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal Not
Protected - Market Linked
Nan -Convertible Debanture
Linked Mon-Canvertible
Debenture of INR 10,00,000

First Pari Passu charge over
bondsfinvestments held by the
Company with minimum asset cover
of 1.040 times, The Company shall
hawe aption
te trade/sell with the bonds subject
to maintaining minimum asset cover
all time during the tenure of the
Debentures.

83 Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal Mot
Protected - Market Linked
Naon -Convertible Debenture
Linked Non-Convertible
Debenture of INR 10,000,000

First Pari Passu charge over
bondsfinvestments held by the
Camipany with minimum asset cover
of 1.040 times, The Company shall
hawve aption
to tradeysell with the bonds subject
to maintaining minimum asset cover
all time during the tenure of the
Debentures.

Redeemable with market linked coupon at the end of 1151
days from the date of allotment, Coupon is equal to 130%
times the NIFTY Perfarmance where Nifty Performance is
computed as per the Initial and Final Nifty Levels given
that Final Level is greater than initial Level else Coupon is
Lero,

Redeemable with market linked cowpon at the end of 1185
days from the date of allatment. Coupon is equal 1o 425%
times the NIFTY Performance capped at 42.5%{max
coupon) where Nifty Performance is computed as per the
Initial and Final Mifty Levels given that Final Level is
greater than Initial Level else Coupan is Zera

Redeemable with market linked coupon at the end af 1280
days from the date of alletrment. If Final Nifty closes at
higher than 30% cf Initial Nifty, a coupan s paid at 60% of
the Initial Mifty, IF Final Mifty closes between 15% and 30%
higher than Initial Nifty, the coupon is determined at
18,75% plus 275% of Return of the Nifty over 15%. T Final
Mifty closes between 0% and 15%of Initial Mifty, the
coupon is determined at 125% of the Aeturn of the Nifty, If
Final Mifty closes between minus 25% and 0% of Initial
Mifty, the coupon is determined at 0%, If Final Nifty closes
Below minus 25% af the Initial Nifty, the redemption
amount is nitial Mifty multiplied by the MNifty return,

Redeemable with market linked coupon at the end of 1200
days from the date of allotment. If Final Nifty closes higher
than Initial Nifty, a coupon is paid at 125% of the Nifty
return, If Final Mifty closes between minus 25% and 0% of
the Initial Nifty, the coupon is zero percent. If Final Nifty
closes below minus 25%, the redemption amount is |nitial
Hifty multiplied by the Nifty return

DF-0F-2025

11-09-202%

02-03-2026

09-01-2026

2,770.00

1,900.00

2,300.00

930.00
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Maon- Convertible Debentures issued
by the company are secured by way
of a first Pari Passu charge over
bondsfinvestrments held by the
Company with minimum asset cover
of 1.00 times, The Company shall
have aption to
trade/sell with the bonds subject to
maintaining minimum assel cover all
time during the tenure of the
Debentures.

87, Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal
Protected - Market Linked
Non-Convertible Debenture
of INR 10,00,000

270 Secured Unlisted First Pari Passu charge over
Redeemable Mon Principal — bands/investments held by the
Protected - Market Linked Campany with minimum asset
Man Convertible caver af |,00 timas, The Company
Debenture Linked Mon- shall have option
Convertible Debenture of to trade/sell with the bonds
INR 100,000 subject to maintaining minimum
asset cover all time during the
tenure of the Debentures.

407, Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal
Protected - Market Linked
Man Convertible
Debenture of INR
1,00.000

First Pari Passu charge over
bands/investments held by the
Campany with minimum asset

caver af 1.00 times, The Company
shall have aption

to trade/sell with the bonds

subject to maintaining minimum
asset cover all time during the
tenure of the Debentures.

148 Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal
Protected - Market Linked
Nan-Convertible
Debenture Linked Mon-
Convartible Debenture of
INR 1 0.00,000

First Pari Passu charge over
bands/investments held by the
Campany with minimum asset

caver af 1,00 times. The Company
shall have option

to trade/sell with the bonds

subject to malntaining minimum
asset cover all time during the
tenure af the Debentures.

Redeemablie with market linked coupon at the end of 1280
days from the date of allotment, IF Final Nifty closes at
higher tham 305 of Initial Mifty, a coupon is paid at 58% of
the Initial Mifty, IF Final Nifty closes between 205 and 30%
higher than initial Nifty, the coupon is determined at 23%
plus 3508 of Return of the Nifty over 20%. |F Final Mifty
closes between 0% and 20%of Initial Nifty, the coupon is
determined at 115% of the Return of the Nifty. If Final
Mifty closes between minus 25% and 0% of Initial Nifty, the
coupon is determined at 0%, It Final Nifty closes below
minus 25% of the Initial Nifty, the redempion amount is
Imitial Mifty multiplied by the Nifty return

Redeemahle with marlet linked coupan at the end of
678 days fram the date of allotment. IT Final Nifty
closes at higher than 30% of Initial Nifty, 180.99%% of
initial investment 15 paid out, IF Final Mifty closas
berween 14% and 30% higher than Initial Nifty then
(47.66% plus 8.333 times the Return of the Mifty over
14%) of the initial investment is pald aut. If Final Nifoy
clases below 14% of Initial Nifty 47,66% of initial
investment i£ paid out.

Redeemahle with market linked coupaon at the end of
795 days from the date of allotment. If Final Nifty
closes at higher than 30% of Initial Nifty, a coupen is
paid at 37.5% of the Initial Nifty. If Final Nifty closes
between O and 30% higher than Initial Nifty, the
coupon is determined as 125% of Return of the Nifty
aver 0%, IF Final Nifty closes below 0% of Initial Mifty,
the coupon is paid at 0%,

Redeemable with market linked coupan at the end of
1032 days fram the date of allotment. If Final Nifty
clases at higher than 25% of Initial Nifty, a coupon is
paid at 45% of the Initial Mifty. If Final Nifty closes
berween 0% and 25% higher than Initial Nifty, the
coupoen is determined at | B0% of Return of the Mifty
aver %, |F Final Mifty closes below U% of Initial Mifty,
the coupon is paid at 0%,

07-05-2026

10-07-2025

06-12-2025

31-08-2026

£70.00

270.00

407.00

1.480.00
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225, Secured Unlisted First Pari Passu charge over Redesmable with final coupan at the end of 1105
Redeemable Principal Not  bonds/investments held by the days from the date of allotment. If Nifty after year |
Pratected - Market Linked Campany with minimum asset cleses higher than or equal to 0% of Initial Nifty, a
Non-Convertible cover of 1.00 times, The Company coupon is paid at 14% of the Initial Nifty after year 1. IF
Debenture af INR shall have option Mifry after year 2 closes higher than or equal to 0% of
10,00,000 te trade/sell with the bonds Initlal Mifty, a coupan s paid at 15% of the Initlal Nifty

subject to maintaining minimum  after vear 2. IF Mifty after vear 3 closes higher than or
asset cover all time during the  equal to 0% of Initial Nifty, a coupan is paid at 16% of

tenure of the Debentures. the Imitial Nifty after year 3. If Final Nifry closes
between -25% and 0% of initial Nifty, the final coupon
15 palel at O%. IF Final Mifty closes below minus 25% of
the Initial Nifty, final coupon paid out is same as Nifty

Return.ssuer can call back the market linked

debenture after first/second year and no future

payouts are made if the MLD gets called.

57, Secured Unlisted First Parl Passu charge over Redeemable with final coupon at the end of 1108
Redeemable Principal Mot bonds/investments held by the  days from the date of allotment, IF Nifty after year 0.5
Protected - Marke1 Linked Company with minimum asset closes higher than or equal to 0% of Initial Nifty, a
Nan-Coenvertible caver af 1.00 times. The Company coupon is paid at 7% of the Initial Nifty after year 0.5,
Debeanture of INR shall have option IF Wifty after year 1 closes higher than or equal to 0%
10,00,000 e tracle/sell with the bonds of Initial Mifty, a coupon is paid at 7% of the Initial

subject to maintaining minimum  Nifty after year 1. If Mifty after year 1.5 closes higher
asset cover all time during the  than or equal to 0% of Initial Nifty, a coupon is paid at
tenure of the Debentures, 7.5% of the Initial Nifty after vear 1.5, If Nifty after
vear 2 closes higher than or equal 1o 0% of Initial
Mifty, a coupon is paid at 7.5% of the Initial Nifty after
vear 2, If Nifty after year 2.5 closes higher than or
equal to 0% of Initial Nifty, a coupon is pald at 8% of
the Initial Mifty after year 2.5, If Nifty after year 3
closes higher than or equal 1o 0% of Initial Mifty, a
coupon is paid at 8% of the Initial Nifty after year 3, If
Final Nifty closes below minus 20% of the Initial Nifty,
final coupon paid out is same as Mifty Retuen. |ssuer
can call back the market linked debenture afeer first
vear/1.5 year/2nc year, 2.5 year and no future
payouts are made if the MLD gets called,

199 Secured Unlisted First Parl Passu charge over Redeemable with market linked coupen at the end of
Redeemable Principal Is bands/investments held by the 776 days from the date of aillotment. If Final Nifty
not Protected - Market Company with minimum asset closes at higher than 208 of Initial Nifty, a coupon is
Linked Non-Conwvertible caver af 1.00 timas. The Company  paid at 36% of the Initial Mifty. If Final Nifty closes
Debenture Linked Non shall have aption between 0% and 20% higher than Initial Nifty, the
Convertible Debenture of te tracle/sell with the bonds coupoen is determined at 1 80% of Return of the Nifry
INR 10,008,000 subject to maintaining minimum  over 0%, If Final Mifty closes between -20% and 20% of
asset caver all time during the Initial Mifty, the coupan Is pald at O%. If Final Nifty
tenure of the Debentures, closes below minus 20% of the Initial Mifty, coupon

paid out is same as Nifty Performance.

300, Secured Unlisted First Pari Passu eharge over Redeemable with market linked coupen at the end of
Redeemable Principal Mot bonds/investments held by the 776 days from the date of allotment, If Final Nifty
Protected - Market Linked Campany with minimum asset closes at higher than 20% of |nitial Nifty, a coupon is

Nan-Convertible cover af 1.00 times, The Company  paid at 36% of the Initial Nifty. If Final Nifty closes
Debenture af INR shall have option between 0% and 20% higher than Initial Nifty, the
100,000 ter tracle/sell with the bonds caupon is determined at 1 80% of Return of the MNifty
subject to maintaining minimurn  aver 0%, If Final Nifty closes between -200% and 20% of
asset caver all time during the Initial Mifty, the coupon s paid at 0%, If Final Nifty
tenure af the Debentures, closes below minus 20 of the Initial Nifty, coupon

paid out 15 same as Nifty Performance.

17-12-20%6

12-02-2027

15-04-2026

20-04- 2026

2,250.00

570.00

1.990.00

300.00
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42 Secured Unlisted
Redeemable Principal 1S
NOT Protected - Market

First Pari Passu charge over
bands/investments held by the
Company with minimum asset

Redeemable with market linked coupon at the end of
733 days fram the date of allotment. If Final Nifty
closes at higher than 22% of Initial Nifty, redemption

Linked Man-Convertible caver af 1,00 times, The Company value is paid at 196.43% of the initial amaunt Loy 42900
Debenture Linked Non- shall have aption Invested. IF Final Mifty closes between 0% and 22%
Convertible Debenture of to trade/sell with the bonds higher than Initial Nifty, the redemption value is
INR 10,00, 000 subject to maintaining minimum  determined at 3.952381%1 50% of Return of the Mifty
asset cover all time during the aver 0%, If Final Nifty closes below minus 0% of the
tenure of the Debentures. Initial Nifty, the redemption value paid out is 0% of
initial amount.
46, Secured Unlisted First Pari Passu charge over Redeemable with market linked coupon at the end of
Redeemable Principal Mot bonds/investments held by the 324 days from the date of alletment. IT Final Nifty
Protected - Market Linked Campany with minimum asset closes at higher than 25% of Initial Nifty, redemption 460.00
Nan-Cenvertible caver af 1.00 times. The Company value is paid at 163.04% of the initial amaount
Debenture of INR shall have option invested. If Final Nifty closes between 0% and 25%
140,00,000 te tracle/sell with the bonds higher than Initial Mifty, the redemption value is 45092026
subject to maintaining minimum  determined at 5.43478°150% of Return of the Nifty
asset cover all time during the over 0%, If Final Nifty closes below minus 0% of the
tenure of the Debentures. Initial Mifry, the redemption value paid out is 0% of
initial amount.
215 Secured Unlisted First Pari Passu charge over Redeemable with market linked coupan at the end of
Redeemable Principal bands/investments held by the 798 days from the date of allotment. If Final Nifty
Protected - Market Linked Company with minimum asset closes at higher than 20% of Initial Nifty, a coupon is 20.05.2026 2 150.00
Nan-Convertible caver of |.00 times. The Company  paid at 34% of the Initial Nifty. If Final Nifty closes T
Debenture Linked Mon- zhall have option between % and 20% higher than Initial Nifty, the
Convertible Debenture of te trade/sell with the bonds coupon is determined at 1 70% of Return of the Nifty,
INR 10,00.000 subject to maintaining minimum It Final Nifty closes below 0% of the Initial Nifty,
asset cover all time during the coupon paid out s 0%
tenure of the Dehentures,
Total 19,067.00
Liability portien of debentures an initial recognitian 701125
Add: Interest accrued on debentures till 31st March 2024 623.78
Total liability closing balance as on 315t March 2024 7, 735.03
Derivative component af debentures on initial recognition 11,955.75
Add/Less: Fair value changes as on 31st March 2024 2.474.40
Closing balance of derivative component as on 31st March 2024 14.430.15
MNote 19: Other non-current financial liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

At amartised cost

- Security deposit car 13.00 13.00
Total 13.00 13.00
Note 20 : Mon-current provisions

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity

59,16

51.10

Total

59.16

51.10
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MNote 21 : Trade payvables

As at

Particulars %15t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Total gutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Principal amount due
Interest amount dus

Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Principal amount due 349.58 46,33
Interest amount due
349.58 406.33
Total 349,58 406.33
As at 3ist March 24
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | year Yoe 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
years
iy MSME "
ity Others 349.58 349.58
jiit Disputed dues - MSME !
Iv) Disputed dues - Others .
Total 349.58 L 34958
As at 31st March 23
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Paritulsrs Less than | year K 2 -3 years More than 3 years okl
years

1) MSME . .
iy Others 406,34 406.33
iiil Disputed dues - MSME & .
Iv) Disputed dues - Others .
Total 406.33 E 406.33
Mote 22 : Borrowings
Particulars As at As at

315t March 2024

31st March 2023

Unsecured At amortised cost

Related Parties [Refer Mote Mo, 43] 21,490.20

Other Parties 9,979.26
Secured At amortised cost

Mon-Convert ble Debentures 5,141.28

Marked Linked Debentlres 358,72
Total 36,969.45

Particulars Nature of Security

Issue value as at
31st March 2024

First Pari Passu charge over bonds/investments held by the Company with

i R le Principat P I 3 4
35 Securad Unlisted Redesmakle Principal Protected - Market minimum asset cover of 1.00 times. The Company shall have option to

Linked Nun-[Dﬁ;:éz::zie:felr:;r;zDLlnn{I:%%EJDn-tunvernhle trade,sell with the bonds subject ta maintaining minimum asset cover all 350.00
' it time during the tenure of the Debentures.
50 Sesies X Senior Secured Unlisted Unrated Redeemable Nan- First Pari Passu charge over bonds/investments held by the Company with 5 000,00
Convertible Debenture (Series X1 NCD) of INR 10,00,000 minimum asset cover af 1,00 times, '
Mote 23 : Other current financial liabilities
As at As at

Particulars 315t March 2024

315t March 2023

Employee expenses payable 743.36 301.51
Financial Liability on Guarantee 30,96 25.96
Payable to broker 0.99

Others 1,067.06 13.77
Advance recelved 93,29 .
Total 1,935.66 341.24
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Note 24 @ Other current liabilities

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Revenue received in advance

91.05

112.84

Statutory dues payable
Total 91.05 112.84
Note 25 : Current provisions

As at As at

Particulars

315t March 2024

315t March 2023

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity

10.45

Total

7.54

10,45
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MNotes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(all amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26 : Revenue From operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended

315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Fees and charges 6,825.69 6,816.93
Gain on sale of Investments 5,439.52 1,604.91
Total 12,265.21 8,421.83
Geographical Markets
Within India 12,244.55 B417.72
Dutside India 20.66 4.1
Total 12.265.21 B,421.83
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 12.265.21 2.421.83
Services transferred over time =
Total 12.265.21 B421.83

Mote 27 : Other Income

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
315t March 2023

Interest on loans 755.00 1,410.92
Interest on deposits with banks 9,34
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 10.52 6.23
Miscellaneous income 44 44 28.10
Reimbursement Income 120,75 103,57
Finance Income on Cuarantes 135.27 75.00
Total 1,069.99 1,633.16

Note 28 : Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Salaries and wages 3.231.86 2.026.14
Contribution to pravident and ather funds 45.07 20,30
Share Based Payments to employees (22.85) 2,777.34
Cratulty [Refer Note No. 35] 21.72 15.83
Staff welfare expenses 24.20 19.23
Total 3,300.00 4, B58.83
Note 29 : Finance cosis
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Interest on lease liability [Refer Note No. 38] 48,84 35,54
Interest on Borrowings 3083 .42 377.66
Finance Expense on Guarantee 14027 100,96
Others 0,13 .30
Total 4.172.66 514.45
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Note 30 : Dthers expenses

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Rent [Refer Note MNo. 38) 5470 30.45
Communication cost 6.02 6.20
Traveling and conveyance 353.27 224,57
Allowance far Impairment 161.47 {102.67)
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 1,001.13 1,450.05
Membership and subscription 74.34 20,86
IT expenses 3E.11 65,10
Manpower support services 19.57 19,59
Rates and taxes B.75 22,45
Printing and stationary 4.58 4.83
Referrel Fees 0.4 1,200.76
Payment to auditars 13 46 21.72
Advertisement, publicity and sales promaotion expenses 130.64 45.01
Creimat and related charges 7.03 -
Office expenses 69.59 50,42
Interest on statutory dues 2.29 1.53
Recruitment fees 120.71 101.33
Fareign exchange loss 3.55 26,86
GST Expenses 18.23 -
Corparate Social Rﬂqunsihiliry Expense L5472 149,82
Loss on sale of fixed assets . .86
Assets Written off 12.08 -
Miscellanenus expenses 16.60 3.97
Total 2.399.93 3222.70
" Payment to the auditors:
Year ended Year ended
Farticuiar 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Auditor's remuneration
Audit fees 10,05 19,38

In other capacity

< Certification services 1 .47 .71

- Taxatian 1.90 1.64
Total 13.46 21.72
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Note 31 : Current tax

21.1 Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Year ended Year ended

Particuials 315t March 2024 31st March 2023

Current tax Expense
In respact of current perod 461.42 -
39.79

Earlier years =
461.42 39.79
Deferred tax expense / (incomep 163.99 (298.45)
Tax expense for the year 62541 (258.66)
31.2 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

315t March 2024

31st March 2024

Income tax related to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans B16 (122
Net Gany (Loss) on instruments through other camprehensive income 4.12) 4.45
Total Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2.04 {5.76)
31.3 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

. Year ended Year ended
i 315t March 2024 31st March 2024
Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss (A) 2,348.32 725.09
Statutory tax rate (B) 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (C = A " B) 591.0% 182.49
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating raxable incame 95.57 (6.53)
Tax effect on MLD for previous yvear 63.37 -
Short provision of deferred tax on restructuring expenses |n previous year
Tax impact on Brought forward losses 1373
Lass of Mape an which deferred tax was not created in earlier years E [446.01]
Bonus of Mape and Clamant disallowed in computation of last year. claimed allowance
in ICFSPL ' 27.27)
Change of rate an the deferred tax created by Mape in earlier years - (71
Others (10.8%) (0.42)

Effective tax expense B25.41 1298.46}
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31.4 Deferred tax

The major components of deferred tax (liabilities) arising on account of timing differences as at 315t March 2024 are as follows:

. As at « 2 Recognised in
Particul A d M
b 31st March 2023 T W rer profit or loss

Deferred tax assets:

Braught forward losses S47.12 {(113.7%)
Retirement henafit plans 18.07 - 2.84
EIR impact on financial instruments 1

Prowasian for Expenses 2592 60.33
Interest an MLDs 223.58
lmpalrment loss an Loans 18.98 = 74.49
Restructuring related expenses 17.53 . {8.948)
Leases 28.72 - {11.76)
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and Income tax m:m i

Total Deferred tax assets (A) GEG.949 - 226.79
Deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and income tax 211.63 - 122.16
Fair value of investments measured at FVTFL 1700 . 26B.62
EIR impact on financial instruments 0.00 .

Total Deferred tax liabilities (B) 22863 - 39078
Net Deferred tax asseis (A-B) 458.31 - (163.99)

The major components of deferred tax (llabilities) arising on account of timing differences as at 31st March 2023 are as follows!

As at
31st March 2022

Recognised in

Particulars ;
profit or loss

Acquired via Merger

Deferred tax assets:

Brought forward losses (0,00 17.90 529.2)

Retirement benefit plans i.34 977 054

EIR impact on fimancial instruments - 5

Prewisian for Expenses s | 25.92

Impairment loss an Loans 1002 - 8.96

Restructuring related expenses 13.03 - 4.51

Leases iz m {719}
- . 13.64 16.96

Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and income tax - -

Total Deferred tax assets (A) 75.94 44.64 561.91

Deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and Income tax = 5 211.63

Fair value of Investments measured at FVTPL {34.84) 51.83

EIR impact on financial instruments Q.00

Total Deferred tax liabilities (B) (34.84) d 263.46

Net Deferred tax assets (A-B) 110.78 44.64 298.45
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Note 32 : Earning per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year, Diluted EPS are calculated using the weighted average number of equity shares and difutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year,

i. Profit attributable te ordinary shareholders:

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Prafit attributable to equity halders of the Company used in calculating basic & dilutive earnings per
share

1,722.91

583,75

ii. Welghted average number of erdinary shares

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
315t March 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominatar in calculating basic earnings per

e 1,27,57,390 1,13,57,512
Weighted average number af equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in
calculating diluted earnings per share* 1.32,17352 120,839,694
Basic earnings per share 13.51 8.66
Diluted earnings per share 13.04 214
Note 33 : Contingent labilities and commitments

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Investment commitments 5,372.50 2,000.00

Loan commitments 16,306.00 .
Cantingent liabilities

Carporate Guarantee tor Group Company 13,500.00 10,300, 30

" Guarantee of 1003 of the Working Capital/Intra Day Overdraft /Bank Guarantee of the Group Company ta a maximum amount of INR 13,500 lakhs (315t March

2023 INR 10,000 lakhs) (carrying amounts of the related financial guarantee contracts were INR 30,96 lakhs and INR 25,96 at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
respectively) (Also Refer Note 17).

Note 34 : Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises shauld mention In their carrespandence with its custamers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum, Based
on the information avallable with the management. as at March 31, 2023, no dues were outstanding to micre and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006, Further, the Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act till March 31,

Mote 35 : Employee benefits

35.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company has recagnised the following amounts in the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss towards contributions to provident fund:

Particulars

As at
315t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Pravident fund

45.07

20.30

35.2 Defined benefit Plan - Gratuity

Every employee who will complete five years of more of service gets a gratuity on departure at | 5 days salary {last drawn} for each completed year of service as per

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Tabie showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation:

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Change in benefit obligations

Present value of benefit chligation at the beginning of the year 61.56 13.27
Interest cost 4.49 2.74
Currant service cost 15.23 13.09
Past Service Cost - Incurred During the Period 2.01

Liability Transferred In/ Acguisitions g.03 35.13
(Liability Transferred Cut/ Divestments) (8,76

(Benefit paid directly by the emplayer) {1.69) 12.89)
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions 4.06

Actuarial (Gains) / Lasses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptians 3.325 (3.44
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses an Obligations - Due to Experience (13.57) 13.65
Prosent value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 66,70 G61.50
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Table Showing change in the fair value of plan assets:

As at

Particulars 315t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest Income

Contributions by the employer

Expected contributions by the employees

(Benefit paid from the fund)

(Assets distributed on settlements)

Effects of asser ceiling

The effect of changes In foreign exchange rates
Return on plan assets, excluding (nterest |ncome

Eair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Amount recognized in the Standalone balance sheet:

As at As at
Particubirs 31st March 2024 31t March 2023
(Present value of benefit obligation ) (B6. 700 {G1.56)
Fair value ot plan assets at the end of the year o -
Funded Status (Deficit) (66,700 {61.56)
Net (Liability) /Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (66.70) (61.56)

Expenses recognized in the Standalone statement of profit and loss

Particulars Hs-at AL

* 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current service cost 15.23 13.09
Net |nterest cost 4.49 2.74
Past Service Cast 2.0
(Expected Contributions by the Emplayees) -
(Gains)/Lasses on Curtailments And Settlements
Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Expenses recognised 21.72 15.83

Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCI)

As at As at
Farsdsiines 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Actuanal (Gains) on abligation Tor the year (6.16) 10.22
Return on Plan Assets, l:xi;lucling Interest Income
Net (Income) for the year recognized in OC| {615} 10,22

The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at 315t March 2024 and 315t March 2023 are as follows:

Fartieiiars S Maats Sk S orety Bgs
Discaunt Rate 7.18% 7-29%
Salary escalation rate 9% &
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets A A

Rate of Emplovee Turnower 200 25%

Indian Assured Lives

Martality Rate during employment Martality (2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Ultimate Ultirmnate
The estimates of future salary Increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of Inflation, seniority, promotion and other refevant factors
Standalone balance sheet reconciliation:
As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Opening net liability 61.56 13.27
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 21.72 15.83
Expenses recogmized in OCI (6.16) 10.22
Net Liabiliny/(Asset) Transfer in 0.03 35.13
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out (B.76)

(Benefit Pald Directly by the Employerk (1,69 {12.89
(Employer's Contribution) . -
Net liability recognized in the Standalone balance sheet 66,70 61.56
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Other details:

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Active Members (Absalute number)
Per Month Salary For Active Members
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Obligaticn
Average Expected Future Service
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO)
Man Vested Emplovees
Vested Employees
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year {12 Months)

40.00
70.84

4,00

7.00
BE.70
27.84
JH.8G

37.00
49.67

5.00

3.00
B1.56
36.68
24 B8

Cash flow projections:
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: From the fund

Particulars

As at
315t March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Praojected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
| st Following Year

2nd Following Year

3rd Following Year

41h Following Year

5th Following Year

Sum of Years 6 To 10

Sum of Years 11 and above

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: From the employer

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
151 following year

2nd following year

Jrdd Tollowing year

4th following year

5th following year

Sum of years 6 To 10

Sum of years |1 and above

7.54
B.16
8.78
B33
12,11
30.45
21 .48

10.45
1011
10,37
10.74

8.20
22.40

B.60

Sensitivity analysis:

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary Increase
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary Increase
Delta eftect af +1% change in rate of employes turnover
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover

56,70
{2.82)
3.07
3.87
(3.05)
{1.08)
1.0

61.56
(1.92)
2.06
2.18
(2.12)
(0.54)
0.55

Risk analysis:

The Company is exposed to a number of risks assaciated with the defined benefit plans, Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefit plans and management

estimation ef the impact of these risks are as follows.

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher

pravisian.,

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lahility is calculated by reference to the future salanes of members. As such, an increase in the salary of

the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's lability,

Asset-Liability matching risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flows. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basls from own

funds.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.
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Note 36 : Security [ssue expenses
Security lssue expenses related to issuance of equity and other securities as debited against securities premium account In accardance with the provisions of Sectian
52 of the Companies Act, 2013, Details of such expenses is mentioned below,

Year ended Year ended
Particutars 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Legal and professional fees . 531.65
Stamp duty
Total = 531.65

Note 37 : Business Combination
a. Business Combinations

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 27th September, 2021, had approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (the *Scheme’) with
Clamant Tech Services Private Limited, MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited, InCred Wealth Private Limited and InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited
and the same was filed with various regulatory autharities and National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT).

The WCLT passed the final order dated 26th April, 2022.The Scheme was made effective by of the Company, Clamant Tech Services Private Limited, MAFE Advisary
Group Private Limited, InCred Wealth Private Limited and InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited on 30th June 2022 and the relevant filing were done
with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on 30th june 2022,

The Appointed date of the Scheme is 15t April, 2022, and accordingly the books of account and financial statements effecting the Scheme have been prepared with
effect from st April, 2022,

Under the Scheme, the identified advisory business of MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited shall be demerged with InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
and Clamant Tech Services Private Limited shall be amalgamated with InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited. Further, the Wealth (Distribution of third party
productsy business of InCred Wealth Private Limited shall be demerged with InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited, for which the company shall issue
shares 1o the shareholders of InCred Wealth Private Limited as Purchase Consideration, Further, with the discharge of purchase consideration for demergers and
amalgamation, shareholders of the company will hald majority shareholding of the company,

Accordingly, the business combination has been treated as per Ind AS 103 and the company has been identified as the accounting acquirer and Clamant Tech
Services Private Limited & MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited (“acquiree”) being the accounting acquiree,

s per Ind AS 103, these standalone financial statements issued under the name of the company represent the cantinuation of the financial positions of acquiree
except far share capital which is currently presented as per legal share capital of the company. Accordingly the assets, liabilities and reserves of acquiree have been
continued at thelr pre-business combination carrying values and measured the fair value of identified assets and labilities as per requirements of Ind AS 103, The
earnings per share figures presented in respect of comparative periods are those of the company and are accordingly not comparable with the current period figures.

The accounting impact of the aforesaid Scheme in the books of the company has been summarily presented as follows:

A, Goodwill /bargain purchase on business combinations (Clamamt Tech Services Private Limited)

Particulars Amount

(4] Met Assets and labilities (Net Assets including ldentifiable Intangible Assets) recarded at fair value pursuant ta amalgamation 2,389.80
(B) Purchase consideration (Fair value of shares) 3,207
Goodwill (A-B) B18.10
B. Goodwill/bargain purchase on business combinations (MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited)

Particulars Amount

(4] Met Assets and lahilities (Net Assets including Identifiable Intangible Assers) recorded at fair value pursuant to demerger 2,995.03
(B} Purchase consideration (Fair value of shares) 354375
Goodwill /Indentifiable business assets(A-B) 545.73

‘A5 per the terms of the Scheme, the shareholders of Clamant Tech Services Private Limited shall receive equity shares as a consideration for amalgamation. Further,
sharehalders of MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited shall recelve elther equity shares or Class B Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ancd Class &
Optianally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares, and shareholders of InCred Wealth Private Limited shall receive equity shares of InCred Capital Financial
Services Private Limited, as a consideration for demerger of identified advisory and wealth business respectively, whose equity comversion terms would determine the
purchase consideration described above, Pending finalisation of the conversion terms as on date, the Company has determined the purchase consideration an a
provisional basis. Any subsequent changes In measurement of these amaounts will be adjusted to the provisional values presently determined to reflect the initial
accounting for business combination as at the acquisition date (ke April 1, 2022),

b, As per the scheme of merger loan taken from the Company by InCred Wealth Private Limited {subsequently transferred to InCred Wealth & Investment Services
Private Limited wide sheme of merger) had been converted into equity for an aggregate amount of Rs, 20,011.24 lakhs. Pursuant to the approval, the Company was
alloted 36,90,4 77 equity shares of the InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited.

c. 'On 26th August 2022, the Board of Directors of InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited {a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) had approved
conversion of loan taken from the Company into equity for an aggregate amount of Rs. 6,684.35 lakhs. Pursuant to the approval, the Company was alloted
12,32,774 equity shares of the InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited.
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Note 38 ! Leases
Accounting policy: The Company as a Lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consists of leases for office premises, The Company has adopted IND AS 116 “Leases” for accounting of Irase
contracts where the Company |5 a lessee. As per IND AS 116, the Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the Inception of the contract.

A CONLFact is, or contains, a lease |f the contract coveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether

I the cantract invalves the use af an identified asset;
ii. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits fram the use of asset through the pericd of the lease; and
iil. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Company recegnizes a right-of-use (ROUl asset and a corresponding lease lability for all the lease
arrangements in which the Company is a lessee; except for leases with & term of 12 months ar lgss (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payment as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term af the lease,

The following Is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

i Applied a single discount rate ta a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar ecopomic environment;

ii. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset ar the date of initial application; and

iii. Applied the practical expedient ta grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

ROU Assets

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprise the initial amaunt of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at ar prior to the
commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cast less accumulated depreciation and impairment lass.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease term and wseful life of the underlying asset. ROU
asset are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amoumts June not be recoverable.

The changes in the carrying value of the ROLU asset are as fallows:

As at As at
Farticulues 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 177.44 246.98
Addition during the year 395.71 30.59
Deletion during the period (16.99) -
Depreciation for the year 1163.51) (100.13)
Ealance as at the end of the year 3592.66 177.44

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU asset is included under depreciation and amortizaticn expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,
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Lease liability

The lease llability Is Initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the (nterest

rate implicit in the lease or it nat readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of doemicile of these |eases.

The changes In the carrying value of the lease liabllity are as follows:

Particular As at As at
aruciiars 30st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 291.55 389.65
Addition during the year 396.53 30.59
Finance cost accrued during the year 43.84 35.54

Priar period Adjustments - .
Deletions i17.81) -
Payment of lease liabilities made during the year [259.07) (164.23)
Balance as at the end of the year 460.04 291.55
The break-up of current and non-current |ease liabilities as at 31st March 2024 is as follows:

: As at As at
Fartculars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current lease liabilities |77.82 1 G2.09
Man-current lease liabilities 282,21 129.45
Total 460.03 291.54

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of 215t March 2024 on an undiscounted basis:

As at As at

Farticuiass 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Less than one year 214.10 183.08
Between one and five years 326.11 | 33.89
Mare than five years
Total 540.21 316.95
Expenses recognized in the Standalone statement of profit & loss:

Year ended Year ended
Farticulaes 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Depreciation axpense an Ball Asset [Refer Mote No. 3] 163.51 100,13
Interest expense on lease liability [Refer Note No. 29] 35,54 35.54
Expense relating to shart-term leases and low value [eases [Refer Note No. 30] 54,70 17.97
Total 253.75 153.59

The Campany does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient 1o meet the cbligations related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due.

Shart-term leases

Rental expenses recorded for shart-term |leases and low value leases was INR. 33.24 lacs for the year ended 31st March 2024 and INR, 17.92 lacs for the year

ended 315t March 2023
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Note 39 : Employea Stock Option Plan

Description of share-based payment arrangements

Share option plans (equity settled)

The Company bhas Employee Incentive Plan under which options have been granted to eligible employees to be vested from time to time, The Company has established
share option plans that entitle the employees of the Company to purchase the shares of the Company. Under these plans, helders of the vested optlons are entitled to
purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the respective date of grant of options. The key terms and conditions related to the vesting of grants
under these plans are continued employment with the company from the date of grant of optlon 1l the date of vesting; all aptens are to he settled by the dellvery of

shares,

A, Measurement of fair values

Equity settled share-based payment arrangements

The falr value af the employes share aptlons has been measured using Black-Scholes Qption pricing madel,
The fair value of the aptions and the inputs used in the measwiement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment options granted during

the year are as follows:

The maodel inputs for options granted during

Particulars

For the year ended
315t March, 2024

For the year ended 315t
March, 2023

Grant date

Option Price Madel

Falr value of ESOP on Grant date
Share price as on grant date
Exercise price

Expected volatility (weighted average volatility)
Expected time to exercise shares

Risk- free interest rate ibased on aovernment bondsh
Dividend yield

Weighted Averane Fair Value of ESOF on Grant date
Method used to determine expected volatility

lar April 2023
Ist lanuary 2024

Black Scholes Model
INR 780.10 - INR 1 B48.19
INR, 1854 .64
INR, 10 and
INR. 1, 5GE
0%
2 yeary from vesting
7:22% to 7.36%
0.030%
IMR 1387.32
The expected volatility is based an
price volatility af listed companies in
same indusiry,

Tst April 2022
Tst july 2022
I st Qctober 2022
1st January 2023

Black Scholes Model
INR 522,04 - INR 1298.43
IMR, 152575
IMNR. 367,30 and
INR.1.568

40X,

2 wears from vesting
5.71% v 7.50%
0.00MN
INR 1126.02
The expected volatility is
based on price volatility of
listed companies in same
inclustry.

B. Reconciliation of ouwtstanding share options

Set out below is a summary of options oranted under the plan

Particulars

Average exercise price per option

Number of options

Asav30st March, 2024 "ot 31st March,

2023

Opening balance IMNR 555,20 6, 10,698 241,687
Add; Optlons granted during the year INR F7E.41 B2 778 3. 79,166
Less: Dptions forfeited during the year INR 543.94 145,659) i1,080)
Less: Opticns exercised during the year IMR 452.67 01,00, 756) 19,076
Less: Options lapsed during the year .

Options cutstanding as at the year end INR 599.38 5,008,061 6,100,698
Option exercisable of the above IMR 553.59 2,368,159 91,5684
Waighted average remaining contractual life of optians oulstanding at end of the year &.20 3.98

C. Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions
Refer Note 28 an employee beneflt expense, for share based payment expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note 40 : Capital Management
For the purpese of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary object|
ta safeguard the Company’s abllity 10 remaln as a going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and leng-term and other strategic investment plans
structure, the Company may adjust the amounts of dividend paid to sharehalders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company s equity bas
met through a mixture of equity and internal fund generation as per Company's policy to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital

Note 41 : Financial instruments

41,1 Financial instruments by category
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. it does not include fair value in

liabilities not measured at fair value IF the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying Amowunt

Level of Fair valu

v . Level 1 - Level 2- Significant

Asat 31st March 2024 hmfor::ul :'i:*i::;:a;:i Taotal Qu:rled price in (}hlser\rable
active markets inputs

Financial assets
Investments - 20,240.00 20,240.00 13,673.61 4,305,584
Investments in subsidiaries and associates 63,207.61 63,.207.61
Trade receivables 902.75 90275 -
Cash and cash eqguivalents 1.593.47 1,593.47 1,593.47
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents .
Loans 32,294.31 32,294.31
Other financial assets 854.65 . B54.65 £ -
Total Financial assets 98,852.79 20,240.00 1,19,092.79 15.267.08 4,395.84
Barrawings 59.134.63 59,134.63 -
Lease Liahiity 460.03 46003 -
Trade payables 349558 349.58 =
Other financial llabilities 1,948 66 1,948.66
Total Financial liabilities 61,892.90 61,892.90 -
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Carrying Amount

Level of Fair valu

. . Level T - Lewvel 2- Significant

As at 31st March 2023 Amaortised At fair value Total Quoted price In Ohservable
cost through P&L ; .
active markets inputs

Fi ial
Investrments g 10,415.80 10,415.80 5.993.97 4.411.83
Investrents in subsidiaries and associates 49.932.01 - 49.932.01 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 75931 75931 759.31
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents .
Trade receivables 1,356.04 1,356.04 E
Loans g . -
Other financial assets 1,203.68 - 1,203.68 - -
Total Financial assets 53,251.04 10,415.80 63,666.84 B,753.28 4.411.83
Financial labilities
Barrowings %.099.68 9,099.68 -
Lease Liability 291.54 291.54
Trade payables 406.33 406.33
Other financial liabilities 354.24 354.24 -
Tatal Financial liahilities 10,151.80 10,151.79 - -

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and balances with bank, trade recervables, other financial assers, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate thewr carr

maturities of these instruments.

41.2 Fair value hierarchy

The Company categarizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs emplayed in their measurement which are described as

{i} Level 1:- Category includes valuation based on quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that the Company can access at the o

(i} Level 2:- Waluation based on using ohservable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments i

valued using models where all significant Inputs are observable,

(iii) Level 3. Valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued wsing valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable. Equil

been valued using discounted cash flow method,

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and aother bank balances is their carrying amounts.

Investments in liguld Mutual funds and Alternative Investment Funds are valued at closing Net Asset Value (NAV) of the funds and are classified under Level |

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 2 for the half year ended 3151 March 2024 and 31st March 2023,
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Note 42 ; Financlal Risk management

The Campany's board of directars has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framewark, The board oversees
haw management manitars compliance with the Company's risk management palicies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the rlsk management framewaork
in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

The Campany's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk lmits and controls and 1o
maonitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes In market conditions and the Company's
activities. The Campany through its training, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive cantral envirenment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligaticns.

The Company's principal financial abllities, camprise trade payables | borrowings | lease liability and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The company’s principal financial assets include tracle and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly From its operations.

The company's activities expose it to a varety of financial risk namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Com pan\;‘s focus is to foreses the unpradictahility
of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects an [ts financlal performance, The Company's bodrd of directors reviews and agrees palicies for
managing each risk, which are summarised as below:-

A, Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include deposits, FYTPL
investments and other financial assets

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rsk that the fair value ar future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company
is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing liabilities and assets, The Company manages its interest rate risk by
manitoring the mavements in the market interest rates closely,

Exposu in 1 ri
Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and loans, The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the
management of the Company |5 as follows.

As at As at
Fartiolnss 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Borrowings:
Fixed rate barrowings 36,610.74
Loans:
Fixed Rate Loans 3242407
Total 69,034.9]

All instruments are fixed rate instruments

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does nat account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair valse through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss,

B. Credit risk

Credit risk refers ta the risk of default an its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting
date |5 primarily fram trade receivables and lpans. Trade receivables are typlcally unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has
always been managed by the company through continuous monitaring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business. Under Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the Impalrment loss of galn. The campany Uses a provision matrlx 1o
compute the expected credit Ioss allowance for trade receivables. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, The campany does not hald collateral as security,
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Measurement of Expected Credit Losses ('ECL"

The Company has segmented its cutstanding pertfolio basecd on the risk profiles e, risk management policles, historical experiences with respect to default rates
ete. for the computation of ECL,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit Iosses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit lass), unless there has been na significamt
Increase [n credit risk slnce arlgination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss)

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events aver the expacted life of a financial instrument. The 12-manth ECL is the partion
of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are pessible within the 12 months after the reporting date,

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basls fcollective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying partfolio of financial
instrumeants, The Company has established a policy to perfarm an assessment, at the end of each reporting period. of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has
increased significantly since Initlal recagnition, by considering the change in the risk of default accurring aver the remaining life of the financial Instrument.

The Company measures the amaunt of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount. The Campany cansiders its
loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default. The Company uses the Simplied Approach for measurement of ECL,

Based on management estimation and calculation ECL provision has been provided at 100% on Trade Receivables outstanding for mare than 90 days and at 0.4% on Lt

Fallowing is the exposure to the credit risk for trade receivables and loans!

As at As at
Farmicume 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Trade recelvables 933.08 1,362.95
Loans 3242417
Tatal 33,357.25 1,362.95
Follawing table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Loan

As at As at

Panicutos 31st March 2024 315t March 2023

Loss allowance

Cross carrying amount of financial assets 3242417
Expected credit Loss {129.86)
Carrying amount net of impairment provision 32,294.31

Following table provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivable

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Loss allowance - Trade receivable

Cross carrying amaunt of financial assets 533.08 1.362.95
Expected credit Loss 130,32} {6.91)
Carrying amount net of impairment provision 902.75 1,356.04
Movement in the allowance for Impairment in respect of loans and trade receivables in as follows :

As at As at

Particulars

315t March 2024

315t March 2023

Opening balance 6.91 186.18
Release of Provision 6,91} (182.55)
Additienal Provisian 160.18 3.28
Closing balance 160.18 6.91

Liquidity Risk refers to insufficlency of funds to meet the financial abligations. Liquidity Risk Management Implies maintenance of sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines to meer obligations when due,

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves, banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and actwal cash flows, and by
assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables detail the Company's remaining cantractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periads. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows. Ta the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the rate applicable as of reparting period ends respectively has
been considered,
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As at 31 March 2024

Contractual cash flows

- Naote =

Particulars Mo, Carrying amount i:ﬁ::p,;‘ﬂ:?ﬁ:z} Dezl;nd Less than 1 year 1-3 j’il
Maturities of financial liabilities

Borrowings 18&22 59,134.63 148.612.65) T1.490.20 25.479.26 11

Lease Liahility 38 460.03 (540.21) - 214.10

Trade payvables 21 349.58 (349.58) 349.58

Others liabilities 19 & 23 1,.948.66 (1.947.67) 1.920.76

Capital Commitments 33 21,677.50 {21.677.50) + 21,677.50
Total 53.570.40 (73,127.61) 11.490.20 49.641.19 1
As at 31 March 2023

Contractual cash flows
_ Mote -
Particilars No. Carrying amount _Gmss npeieal 0n Less than 1 year 1-3 ¥
inflow,/(outflow) Demand

Maturities of financial liabilities

Barrowings 18&22 9.099.68 (9.099.68) .

Lease Liability 38 291.54 {316.96) 183.08

Trade payables 21 406.33 (406.33) 406.33

Others lahihities 19 & 2% 354.24 [354.24) 34124

Capital Commitments 33 2,000.00 {2.000.000 2,000.00
Taotal 12,151.80 (12,177.22) 2.930.65

The fallowing table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets, The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractsal maturities of the financi
earned on those assets. The inclusion of infarmation an nonderivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed «

maturities af the relevant assets have been considered below.

As at 31 March 2024:-

Contractual cash flows

Partloulars N:;E Carrying amount GiE0s 5 ORI i i Less than 1 year 1-3
3 ying inflow/ (outflow) Demand v ¥

Maturities of financial assets

Investrmants 6&9 8344761 83.447.61 5.207.82

Trade receivables 10 902.75 902.75 002,75

Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,593.47 1,593.47 1,593.47

Loans 12 32,294.3) 3242417 24,693 7,730,999

Others T&13 B54.65 B54.65 BO7 .40
Total 1,19,092.79 1,19,222.65 26.286.64 14,648.95
As at 31 March 2023

Contractual cash flows
Particulars Hore Gross nominal On
No. Carrying amount inflow/(outflow) Deniand Less than 1 year 1-3 ¥

Maturities of financial assets

Investmeants 6&9 B0, 347.81 60,347 581 3,232.20

Trade receivables 10 1,356.04 1,356.04 - 1,356.04

Cash and cash equivalents 11 759.31 7558.31 756,31 -

Loans 12 = 3 5 =

Others 7&13 1.203.68 1.272.19 1,200.57
Total 63,666.84 63,735.35 759.31 5,797.82
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Note 43 ; Related Party Disclosure
Retated party relationships / tranzactions warranting disclosures under IND AS-24 "Related Party Disclosures® are as under:

a. List of Related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Nature of Relationship

Mame of the party

Key managerial personnel CKMP) and Relatives

Enterprise over which KMF is able 1o exercise significant influence

Subsidiaries

Step down Subsidiaries

Associate

a. Bhupinder Singh, Director

b. Venkatesh Vishwanathan, Director

c. Saurabh lhalaria , Director

d. Vivek Banzal, Director

e. Siddharth Parekh, Director

F. Deepak Dhingra, CFO (upto 7th Seprember 2022)

g. Varun Shah, Company Secretary (upto Z4th April 2023)
h. Mitesh Kamariya, Company Secretary (w.e.f 25th April
i. Abhijeet Shinde, Company Secretary (w.a.f 17 January 21
J- Nisha Singh, Relative of Director

K., Manisha Bansal, Relative of Ditector

b Godhuli Vishwanarhan, Relative of Director

a. InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as InCre
b. InCred Housing Finance Private Limited

€. InCred Management and Technelogy Private Limied

d. InCred Wealth Private Limited

e. Incred Research Services Private Limited

f. InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Privare 1Limited
g. Incred Global Wealth Limited

h. Incred Global Wealth Pre. Lid.

I Mountain Trail Foods Private Limited

I MV Capital Partners

k. InCred Employee Welfare Trust

L InCred Helding Limited

m. InCred Clobal Insights Partners Private Limited

a. InCred Asset Management Private Limited

b. InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited
€. Incred Alternative Investments Private Limited

d. Booth Fintech Private Limiced (w.e.f L 1th July 2023

e. InCred Overseas Holding e Limited

a. myalu Technology Services Private Limited fw.ef 11th |
b. InCred Value Plus Private Limited

Alpha Fintech Private Limited
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b. Transactions during the year with related parties

Enterprise over which KMP are

KMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Transactlons influence
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 31st March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 ¥
Loan & advances givem:
InCrad Wealth Private Limited 24, 645.00 22,791.98
InCred Asset Management Private Limited % + 18B.08
InC.Jel:I.ane Finanrte Limitad (formerly known as InCred 360,00 $,500.00 R
Financial Services Limited }
myalu Technology Services Private Limired TEG.00
Booth Fintech Private Limited - - 420,00
InCred Capital Wealth Porttolio Managers Private Limited 12,838.03
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited . v 13,639.85 3
InCred Alternative Investment Private Limited - 2.806.08
InCred Employes Welfare Trust - 3,641 .41 -
25,005.00 42.771.42 17.843.01 4
Loans & advances repayment received:
InCred Weatth Private Limited 2:525.00 47.790.16
InCred Asset Management Private Limited - J 1E68.08
|I1CJEI:|. Primea Finance I:lmil:ed iformerly known as InCred 2 3,500.00 2
Financial Services Limited )
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolic Managers Private Limited 12,838.03
Booth Fintech Private Limited - - 420,00
myalu Technology Services Private Limited TEO9.00
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited’ * 13.639.85 3
InCred Alterpative Investments Private Limited = H 731,08
InCred Employes Welfare Trust - 3,641 41 -
2.525.00 b7, 769.60 15,768.01 4
MLD Barrowings
InCred Wealth Private Limited : 1,870.00
m¥alu Technology Services Frivate Limited I07.00 - -
InCred Value Plus Private Limited - 300,00
InCrad Financial 5ervices Limited 1,150.00
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited 2 5 7,540.00
- - 1, 457.00 1,870.00 7.540.00
Borrowings taken
InCred Research Services Private Limited 6,000.00
InCred Financial Services Limited 10, 000,00 .
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited r H 44.002.82
- 16, 000.00 44,002.82
Borrowings Repaid:
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited - 38,579.30

38,579.30
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Enterprise over which KMP are

KMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Transactions influence
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 :
Interest on Borrowing:
InCrad Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited - - 273.86
InCred Financial Services Limited 19664 -
InCred Research Services Private Limited 11..90 -
= 208.54 273.86
Investment in Associate:
Alpha Fintech Private Limited -
Imvestment in Subsidiary:
InCred Asset Management Private Limited -
InCrad Alternative Investment Private Limited -
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited E = 2 - 4
InCred Overseas Holdings Ple Limited - 9.058.43
905843 4
Employes Stock Expense:
InCred Research Services Private Limited 2.75
3 2.75
Investment in Market Linked Debentures
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited = 9.900.00
= - 9,5300.00
Purchase of Investments:
InCred Wealth Private Limited -
InCred Capital Wealth Porttolio Managers Private Limited 303116 2
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited - - 5,749.61
InCred Financial Services Limited - 150,00 :
Alpha Fintech Private Limited 403,87
InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as inCred . -
Financial Services Limited |
Mountain Trail Foods Private Limited . . 2 > :
£ e : 3.181.16 = 6,153.48
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Enterprise over which KMP are

KEMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Transactions influence
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024
Sale of Investments:
Varun Shah - - - -
Bhupinder Singh - .
Saurabh Jhalaria 30.00 75.19 =
Manisha Barsal 3 = 325.06 = -
Alpha Fintech Private Limited - - - = 50,60
InCrad Financial Services Limited - - 1,293 .88 -
InCrad Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited 5. 056.68
InCred Wealth Private Limited
30.00 75.19 325.06 1.293.88 - 5,107.28
Lass on Sale Investments:
Manisha Bansal [72.65) - -
{72.65) - -
Profit on Sale Investments:
InCred Wealth Private Limited . § £ 16.45
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited 2 2 = 45,53
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - - 4.98 %
Varun Shah - 0.08 - - -
Bhupinder Singh = 0.10 - -
Saurabh Jhalaria 0.14 : = =
0.14 018 k- = 4.98 16.45 45.53
Purchase of CCPS of Subsidiary Booth Fintech Private Limited:
InCrad Wealth and Investmeanis Services Private Limited 1,047.13
1,047,123
Purchase of Equity Shares of Subsidiary Booth Fintech Private Limited:
InCrad Financial Services Limited - - 1, 736449 -
- 1,736.4%9
Deemed Investment in Subsidiary:
InCred Asset Management Private Limited 149.31
InCred Alternative Investrment Private Limited + + 7.50
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited 5140.55
- - 667.36
Remuneration pald te KMPs 31540 711.89 - . E =

318.40 711.89
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Enterprise over which KMP are

KEMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Transactions influence
31st March 31st March A1st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 :
Interest on Loan and Advances:
InCrad Wealth Private Limited - - - - 32218 756.24 -
InCred Asset Management Private Limited - - - 0:19
InCrad Prme Finance Limited (formerly known as InCred -
i 2 1 o .49 3.72
Financial Services Limited |
Clamant Tech Services Private Limited - - . =
InCragd Ressarch Services Privare Limired - - - - - -
m¥alu Technology Services Private Limited 3.680
Eooth Fintech Private Limited - - - - - - 0.50
InCred Management and Technology Private Limited
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - - - - - 207.05 -
InCred Alternative Investment Private Limited = = = = = - 46,30
InCred Wealth and Investment Private Limited - - - - - - 350.82
32265 967.01 401.91
Branding Expenses
InCred Management and Technology Privare Limiced 2.18
2.18 -
Revenue from Operations
myalu Technology Services Private Limited - = . = - - -
Referrel Expenses
InCred Wealth Private Limited - - - - 025 369.42
In¢red Global Wealth Limited F % % g * 95.17
Incred Giobal Wealth Pra. Led, - - - - - 162.23
InCred Capital Waalth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - - - - - G 21 -
0.25 693.03 5
Depository Charges
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 1.23
- . . . - 1.23 -
Legal and Professional Expenses
Manisha Bansal - - - 49,45 - - -
- 49.05 - - -
Sale of Fixed Asset
InCred Holdings Limired - - - - - .50
= = = = F 0.50 =

Profit an sale Fixed Asser
InCred Heldings Limited . Z 5 _ = 0.04 -
x - s - 0.09 =
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Relatives of KMP

Enterprise over which KMP are
able to exercise significant

Subsidiaries and As:

Transactions influence
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 :
Expenses Reimbursement :
InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as InCred . y 964 ..
Financial Services Limited § T
InCred Research Services Private Limited -
InCred Financial Services Limited 1.42
InCred Wealth Private Limited = =
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - 20,27 0.649 -
InCrad Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited -
21.69 10.23
Business Support Services
InCred Asser Management Private Limited - - 5430
InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as InCred
Financial Services Limited | ) ) : :
InCrad Wealtth Private Limited - - -
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited .01
InCred Research Services Private Limited - 6.38 .
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited | 103
InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited & - - 36.20
d 11.39 101.53
Stamp duty on Sale of shares
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 1.12
1.12
lssue of equity shares upon scheme of Merger:
Bhupinder Singh 352 -
Saurabh fhalaria 19.05 = =
Nisha Singh 0.00 -
Godhull Vishwanathan 32.65
MW Capital Partners {Through its partners Mr.Vivek Bansal and 10,89 .
Manisha Bansal) )
2757 - 32.65 10.89 -
Securities premium on issue of Equity shares upon scheme of Merger:
Ehupinder Singh 330062
Saurabh Jhalaria 739.70 - =
Nisha Singh - 0.03 - -
Codhuli Vishwanathan 1.267.83
MY Capital Partners (Through its partners Mr.Vivek
i \ = - 422.67 -
Bansalb-angd Manizha Bansak)
1,070.32 - 1,267.86G A422.67 s
Issue of equity shares upon @
InCred Employvee Welfare trust = - S4.44

54.44




InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CIN: UB7120MHI1996PTC355036

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Enterprise over which KMP are

KMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Transactions influence
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 :
Securities premium on issue of Equity shares :
InCrad Employes Welfare trust - - - - - 2,950 86 -
2,950.86 -
lssue of CCPS:
InCred Waalth Privaie Limited 11.25
11.75
Securities premium on issue of Equity shares -
InCred Wealth Private Limited v . d . | .B8B.25 .
= * + = = 1.868.25 £

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with refated parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevaill in arm’s length transactions.

c. Closing balances with Related parties as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 :

Enterprise over which KMP are

KMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Clesing balance influence
315t March 31st March 315t March 315t March 31st March 378t March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 :
Trade payables:
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited . s = - 8.31 -
InCred Management and Technology Privare Limired - - - 218 -
8.31 2.18 -
Trade Recelvable:
InCred Haoldings Limited 2 0.59
- . 0.59 -
Other Receivable:
InCred Research Services Private Limited + 2.70 + .
InCred Global Insights Partners Private |imited - - - - 14.59 - -
InCred Holdings Limited 0549
InCred Yaluplus Private Limited - - - - 0.47
21.88 0.47
Other Payables:
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - - g -
InCrad Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited - - - - - - 1,048
InCrad Holdings Limited - - 030 -
InCred Management and Technalogy Services Private Limited 0.7

InCred Alternative Investment Private Limited . - . % = " -

InCred Financial $ervices Limited 2.03
= - - ; 342 2 104834
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Enterprise over which KMP are

KMP Relatives of KMP able to exercise significant Subsidiaries and As:
Closing balance influence
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 2023 315t March 31s
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 :
Borrowings {Including Interest Accrued)
InCred Financial Services Limited 10, 0000
InCred Research Services Private Limited - b6, 0010.71 -
InCred Wealth and Inwestment Services Private Limited = - S a479.49
16,010.71 5479.49
Loans
InCrad Waalth Private Limited 22.245.11
InCred Financial Services Limited - - -
InCred Alternative Investment Private Limited 2.088.07
InCred Prime Finance Limited = I60.00 .
InCred Research Services Private Limited = =
InCrad Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - -
InCred Wealth and Investmeant Services Private Limited - -
InCred Employee Welfare Trust - - - - -
* kS = 2260511 2,088.07
Investment in Subsidiary and Associates:
InCred Asset Management Private Limited - = 5.049.31
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Pyr Ltd 42.811.40 a
InCred Alternative Investment Private Limited E = 1.518.50
Alpha Fintech Private Limited - - 2.305.34
Eooth Fintech Privace Lirmited 2464.63
InCrad Dverseas Heldings Pie Limited - - 405843
63,207.61 4
Investment in Market Linked Debentrues of Subsidiary @
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Per Lod - - 59,00
89.00

(This space has been intentionally left blank,
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Note 44 : Ratio Analysis and its elements

Year ended Year ended % change during

Ratio MNumerator Denominator 315t March 2024 11st March 2023 the year Remarks

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.03 77 -85.61% Increase in working capital
due to issue of MLDs

Debt Eguity Ratio Borrowings Shareholders Equity Q.92 a.15 525.81% Increase due ta new MLDs
Issued during the year

Debr Service Coverage  Net Operating Debt Service 0.04 0.7 -76,75% Decrease due to new MLDs

ratio Incame Issued during the year

Return on Equity ratio MNet Profits after Shareholder’s Equity .03 .02 68.66% Decrease in PBT

tases

Inventory Turnover ratic MNA WA i F NA A

Trade Receivable MNet credit sales Average Trade Receivable .04 15,10 59,95% Decrease due ta lower

Turnover Ratio trade receivables as on year
end,

Trade Payable Turnover MNet credit purchases  Average Trade Payables 6.35 18.44 -65.56% Decrease in overall

Ratia expenses in FY 23 24

Met Capital Turnower Total sales Working capital = Current a9.63 1.32 H29.06% NA

Ratio assets - Current liabilities

Net Prafit ratic Net Profit Tatal sales 0.13 o1 32.06% Decrease in PET

Return on Capital Earnings before Capital Employed = 0.06 0.02 205.12% NA

Employed interest and taxes Tangible Met Worth + Total

Debt + Deferred Tax
Liability
Raturn on Investment Profit an Sale of Investment 0.07 0.03 1451 1% Increase in treasury
Investiments revenue during FY 23 24

Mote 45 ¢ Oher Statutory Information

(i The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for halding any Benami property,
(iiy The Company do not have any transactions with compantes struck off.

(il The Company do not have any charges or satistaction which is yvet o be registered with ROC beyvond the statutory period.

{iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypta currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v} The Company is not required to file quartérly statement of current-assets submitted to banks / financial institutions which are provided as security against the
barrowings,
(wi) The Campany have not advanced ar loanad or invested funds 1o any ather person(st or entitylies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:
fa} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security of the like to cr on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(i (a)
(A) On 11th July 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pvt Ltd ('IWISPLY) { a whally owned subsidiary | Rs, 1800 lakhs and
the amaunt was further used Lo Investment in Booth Fintech Private Limited {subsidiany.

B. On 29th August 2023, the Company has barrowed from Manipal Education and Medical Group Rs. 10,500 lakhs and amount was further used to advance IED
loan of Rs. 10,500 lakhs ta InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt Lrd ("TWISPL") § a wholly owned subsidiary }

C, On 10th May 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pt Lt ("IWISPL") { 2 whally owned subsidiary | Rs, 1650 lakhs and
the amount was further used to subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs, 1660 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Put Ltd (IWISPLY)  a wholly owned
subsidiary )

D. On Q%h June 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pvt Lt ("IWISPL") { & wholly owned subsidlary |} Rs. 2100 lakhs and
the amount was Further used to subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs, 2100 lakhs n InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt Ltd ("IWISPL™) { a wholly owned
subsidiary |
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E. On 12th July 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & nwestment Services Pt Ltd ("IWISPL') [ a wholly owned subsidiary } Rs. 1020 lakhs and
the amount was further used to subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs. 1020 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt Ltd ("IWISPL") ( a whaolly owned
subsidiary )

F. On 22nd August 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pvt Ltd (IWISPLY) ( a wholly owned subsidiary ) Rs. 1440 lakhs
and the amount was further used ta subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs. 1440 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Put Lid ("IWISPL") { 2 whaolly
owned subsiciary )

G. On 25th August 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt Led ("PWISPL™ { a whally owneed subsicliary § Rs. 1000 lakhs
and the amount was further used ta subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs. 710 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Put Lt ("IWISPL") [ a whaolly
ovened subsiciary )

H. On 03rd Ocrober 2023, the Campany has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Sendces Pyt Lid CIWISPLY) { a whally ewned subsidiary | Rs. 3000 lakhs
and the amount was further used to subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs. 2570 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt Ltd ("IWISPL") ¢ a whaolly
owned subsidiary )

. On D8th December 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Put Lid ("IWISPL") ( a whally owned subsidiary | Rs, 2050 lakhs
and the amount was further used an 11th December 2023 to subscribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs, 2200 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt
Lrel €*IWISPL") ( a wholly owned subsidiary )

1. On 27th December 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Financial Services Limited ("IFSL°} Rs, 2500 lakhs and the amount was further used of repay
Rs. 2500 lakhs In InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pvt Ltd ('PWISPL") { & whally owned subsidiary )

K. On 20th September 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pvt Ltd ("IWISPL") { a wholly owned subsidiary ) Rs, 280 lakhs
and the amount was further used ta subseribe Market Linked Debentrues of Rs, 400 lakhs in InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pyt Lod ("TWISPL") | a whally
owned subsidiary |

L. On 23rd November 2023, the Company has borrowed from InCred Wealth & Investment Services Pt Lid ("IWISPL") ¢ a wholly owned subsidiary | Rs, 900 lakhs
and from Kemfin Services Private Limited Rs. 1000 lakhs the amount was further used 1o Invest Rs. 1826 lakhs in InCred InCred Overseas Halding Pre Limited( a
wholly owned subsidiary )

(b} Except as disclosed below, the Caompany have not recelved any fund from any personish or entityties), including farelgn entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whather recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall: ;

(i} directly or indirectly lend ar invest inother persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsaever by ar on behall of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ity provide any guarantee, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The transactions are in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not violative of the Prevention af Money-Laundering Act,
2002 (15 of 2003). Further the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) are not applicable to the transactions.

(will) The Campany have not any such transaction which is not recarded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as [ncome during the
vear in the tax assassments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(lx) There are no scheme of arrangements which have been filed by the Campany under the Act and which have been approved by the competent autharity u/s
232 to 237 of the Act

() The Company, is in compliance with the provisions of sec 2(87) read with Companies (Restriction an number of Layers) Rules, 2017,
(x4 The Campany has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ar any other lender.

(i) The Company has mot revalued any property, plant and eguipment and Intangible assets,



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CIM: UB7120MH 1 996PTC355036

MNotes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(all amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 46 : Disclosure relating to earnings and expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars

Year ended
315t March 2024

Year ended
315t March 2023

A, Expenditure in foreign currency
Referrel fees

Legal, professional and consultancy charges
Recruitment ll:harges

IT Expenses

Hotel Expenses

Membership and subscription

Conference and Seminar Charges

B. Earnings in foreign currency

Retainer fees
Consultancy Fees

1.225.49

67.51 119.82
11.08 17.96
. 7.65
5.10

21.2% 5.02
- 1.30
99.84 1,385.35
20.66 =
' 4.1
20.66 4.11

Mote 47 : Interest in other entities

Subsidiary

The Company has the following subsidiary held directly by the Company which operate and is incorporated in India: Following are the details of the sharehalding in

the subsidiary:

- Country of % of ownership interest
Name of the Company Principal business activities Incorporation 315t March 2024
Financial services, lnvestment manager far
- Category - 1| AIF "InCred Impact Corparate v
InCred Asset Management Private Limited Debt Fund® & Category - Il AIF "India Value India 100.00%
Growth Fund” & "Emerging Business Fund"
InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited Financial and advisory services Incia 100, 00%
InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited Financial services and anxillary services India 100,00
InCrad Overseas Holding Private Limited Financial and advisory services Singapare 100, 0oy
Booth Fintech Private Limited Financial and advisory services Indla B6E.1 2%
Associates

The Company has the fellowing associates which aperate and is incorporated in India. Following are the details of the sharehalding in the associate

s : ey Country of % of ownership interest
Name of the Company Principal business activities Incarporation 3151 March 2024
Engaged in the business of selling of third
party linanclal products like bonds, sovereign
Alpha Fintech Private Limited gold bands, invoice discounting, fixed India 40.71%
depasits, private equity, market linked
debentures, ec,
Country of Y of ownership interest
Name of the Compan Principal business activities _
pany FRCPRLRIE Incorporation 31st March 2023
Engaged in the business of selling of third
party linancial products like bonds, sovereign
Alpha Fintech Private Limited gold bands, involce discounting, fixed India 75.54%

deposits. private equity, market linked
debentures, etc.




InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CIM: UB7120MH 1 996PTC355036

MNotes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(all amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 48 : Corporate Social Responsibility

The grass amalnt required ta be spent by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 is INR 21.75 lakhs (315t March 2023: INR 1%.82 lakhs).

) Year ended Year ended
Fardiculars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Amount required to be spent as per section 135 af the Companies Act, 201 3; 21.75 19.82
Amount spent durlng the year
(i) Canstruction;” acquisition af any asset
(i} On purposes other than () above

In cash - -

Deposited in specified fund* 55.02 19.82

* The company has transferved unspent amount o @ Fund specified In Schedule Vil to the Companizs Act, 2013 on 1 0th May 2023 |n compliance with second proviso
1o sub-section (5) of section 135 of the satd Act for FY 22 23,

Note 49 : Backup of Books of accounts and Audit Trail

a. As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022 Government has notified the Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022, As per the amended rules
back-up of the books of account/other books & papers maintained In electronic mode, including at a place outside India, shall be kept in servers physically located in
India on a daily basis. The Caompany's saervers are physically lecated in India and back up is done an a daily basis. Thus the Company |5 compliant with the
requirements of the above notification,

b. The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) Tacility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tamperad with,

Mote 50 : Other notes to accounts

a. Segment reporting
The Company is principally engaged in the financial services space, offering Investment Banking Services

Far the financial vear ended 31st March 2024, the Company has ane aperating segment:- Investment Banking as per Ind As - 108 Operating Segments,

The Company has decided not to present segment reparting disclosures in the standalone financial statements by applying the exemption available to the Campany
as per Ind AS 108 Operating Segments,

b. Previous year figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever pecessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure,

FarP N A M & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Mo, 007092N/N500395
Digitathy signed

BHUPIMND by BHUPINGER
sl

Digitally sgned B
PARV by PARY BANSAL ER SINGH D-ﬁNEE:H?DH _ SAURABH s
BAMNSA ?::‘I:j?zﬁﬂir 165:1436 05 30" JHALﬁF|Al;_x-I'__':-_ iy
Parv Bansal Bhupinder Singh Saurabh Jhalaria
Partner Director Directar
Membership No.: 515167 DIN- 07342318 DIN - O7908327
Place : Delh Place . Mumbal Place - Mumbai

Date | 04 September 2024 Date | 04 September 2024 Date | (4 September 2024



PNAM&CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of InCred Capital Financial Services Private
Limited (the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as the "Group”) and its associates which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financials statements of associate, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31,
2024, and their consolidated losses, their consolidated rotal comprehensive income, their consolidated changes in
equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA"s)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI"} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Other matter

The standalone financial Statements of the subsidiary Companies InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private
Limited, InCred Asset Management Private Limited and InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited, Booth
Fintech Private Limited, mValu Technology Services Private Limited, InCred Value Plus Private Limited and of the
associate Company Alpha Fintech Private Limited for the year ended 31st March 2024 were audited by other
Chartered Accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statements. However,
the financial statements of InCred Overseas Holdings Private Limited. Singapore are unaudited and are consolidated
on the basis of management accounts.

FNAME&CO.LLP 2 Floor, F-14/15, Shivam House t:+91 11 2140 0294 /295
LLPIMN: ABA-8514. Middle Circle, Connaught P'lace e infolpnam.co
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to bematerially misstated,

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act withrespect to the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Boards of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for the maintenance of adequateaccounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and of its associate and
for preventing and detecting [rauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, martters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the respective Boards of Directors either intend to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Audiror’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidared Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsas a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guaranteethat an audit conducted in accordance
with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control.

* (Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audir procedures thar
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are alsoresponsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have
adequate internal financial controls system in place and theoperating effectiveness of such controls.

* Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a marterial
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

* [valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidared financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlyingtransactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities withinthe Group
and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of theconsolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitativefactors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among othermatters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significantdeficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonahly be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
sipnificance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act,

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group and its
associate companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A" which isbased on the auditors’
reports of the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an ummodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over the financial reporting
of those companies.

gl The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the vear
ended March 31, 2024.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rulell of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(1) The group and its associate do not have any pending litigations which may impact its financial position
of the Group.

(ii)  The Group and its associate do not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii}  There is no amount that is required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Group as on the close of year.

{(iv}  (a} The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in note no. 49 to the financial statements, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b} The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in note no. 49 1o the financial statements, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
or any of such subsidiary from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiary, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that therepresentations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e}, as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v}  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company or any of the subsidiary
companies included in the group.

{vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the group has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did nor come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1. 2023,
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
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trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024,

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(the “Order”/ “CARQO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in
the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued
by us for the Company and by other Chartered Accountants for its subsidiaries and associates included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARQ is applicable, we report that there
is no such Clauses in which adverse remarks in the CARO report have been given

ForPNAM & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.: 001092N/N500395
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Pary Bansal

Partner

Membership No.: 515167
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Date: 04" September 2024
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our report to the
Members of InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the yvear ended
March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of InCred Capital Financial
Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™), its subsidiaries and its associate which
are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Boards of Directors of the Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of InternalFinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial informarion, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standardsand the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the auditto obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reportingwas established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internalfinancial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of materialmisstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary companies
and associate Company, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonableassurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonableassurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of thecompany's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, marerial misstatements due to erroror fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controlover financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informarion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company and its
subsidiary companies and associate company, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all materialrespects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the respective companies consideringthe essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

ForPNAM & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No.: 001092N/N500395
PARV  Zavien”
Date: 2024,09.04
BANSAL 1§:|E5:ue. +05'30/
Parv Bansal

Partner
Membership No.: 515167

UDIN : 24515167BKB]BZ5603
Date : 04" September 2024
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InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CIN: UG7120MHT 996PTC355036

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
(Al ameunts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Date - 04 September 2024 Date ; 04 September 2024

Date : 04 September 2024

. Mote As at As at
Farticulars No. 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
A, ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equlpment 3 1.777.95 1.292.61
{b) Capital work in Progress ET-% 38.29 2811
{c} Coodwill 1,046,584 1,363.84
{d} Other intangible assets 4 4,620.48 5,203.70
(e} Intangible assets under develapment 44 17.09 11.34
{f} Financial assets
Nen Current Investments 5 19,877.31 B 5B7AT
Loans & 3,899.31 4, 20546
Others non-current financial assets 7 911.29 138.39
{g) Deferred tax assers (Net) 324 5.634.99 4,909.20
{h) Other non current assets g 416.62 25.84
Total non-current assets 38,2408 25,765.67
2. Current assets
(a) Financial assers
Current Investments ) 15,919.75 I17.402.58
Trade receivables 1] 2,190.8] 2.685.65
Cash and cazh equivalents 1 23,068.01 1.862.22
Bank balance other than cash and cash eguivalents 12 7.505.36 -
Leans 13 51,685.05 8,459.83
Other financial assets 14 954,85 6,241.15
{b) Current tax assets (Net} 15 449,72 1.153.67
{c) Other current assets 6 g83.41 6528.31
Total current assets 1,02,686.96 3543341
Total Assets 1,40,927.14 64,199.08
B. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 1,321.14 1,321.14
(b) Other equity I8 44, 715,33 45.132.04
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4603647 4645318
1 Equity attributable to non-controlling interest 4,246,00
Total Equity 50,282.47 46,453.18
2. Liabilities
Mon Current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings 19 42,545.29 13,110.72
Other financial liabalities 20 5&0.88 396.585
(b} Nen-current provisions 21 364.43 206.62
Total non-current liabilities 43,490.60 13,714.19
Current liabilities
(a} Financial liahilities
Trade payables 22
(i) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises :
{iiy total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,374.28 902.78
Barrewings 23 36,465.31 -
Other current financial liabilities 24 7.715.28 2. 768.83
{b) Current provisions 25 12.03 12.06
{c) Other non-financial liabilities 26 587,17 348.04
Total current liabilities 47,154.07 4,031.71
Total Liabilities 90,644.67 17,745.90
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,40927.14 64,199.08
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financlal statements
As per our report of even date,
Far PNAM & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directers of
Chartered Accountants InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
1CAl Firm Registration Mo, 000 092N /MN500395
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InCred Capltal Financial Services Private Limited

CING UBT120MH 1 996PTCI55030

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. MNate Year ended Year ended
Particul
ittt No. 3151 March 2024 315t March 2023
i Income
il Revenue From aperations 27 23,125,710 15,195.77
{ii} Other income 28 2.250.58 1.253.76
Total revenue from operations (I =i + ii) 35,375.68 16.4449.53
(N} Expenses
th Employee benefits expenses 29 19.731.84 15,038.01
{ii} Finance cosis 30 7 BR.44 732,84
(iiiy Purchase of Commuodity 79477 -
{iv} Depreciation, amortization and impairment &4 1.143.98 |, 00815
(vl Gthers expensas 31 7. 1E5:18 6,444.66
Total expenses (1= i+ 1l + il + iv + v} 36,044.21 23,2231.66
{1 Profit/ (Loss) before share of loss of associates (110 = | - 11} {G6E8.53) {6,774.13)
iV} Share of Loss of Associate B11.72) {70,451
(V1 Profit/ iLoss) before exceptional items and tax (v = Il - IV) (1.280.25) (6,B44.58)
Wiy Exceptional items [566.57) (2,603,000
(W Profit) (Loss) before tax (VIl = V- Wi} (1.846.82) (5447.58)
(VIlY Tax Expense: 32
() Current 1ax 1,054,79 -
(i) Deferred tax [719.21) (2,235.04)
{iii) Pertaining to earlier years 30.17 39,79
Total tax expense (VI =i + il o+ iy 365.75 {2,195.25)
(X} Profit/ (Loss) for the year {(IX = VIl - VIII) (2,212.57) (7,252.33)
(X} Other comprehensive income
(A} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
() Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (36.47) {22.82]
{0 Income tax relating to items that will nat he reclassified 1o profit or loss &6 9,54
{iil} Share of Loss of Associate 0,20 i4.22
Subtotal (A =&+ ii + iii) {28.57) (24.45)
(B) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(1) Net Gain/ (Loss) on instruments through other comprehensive income (5.36)
{ii) Income tax relating to (tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (8 =i + i) (5.30)
Tatal other comprehensive income (X = A + B) {34.93) (24,450
(X} Tatal comprehensive income for the period (X1 = IX + X) (2,247.50) (7,276.78)
Prafit for the vear attributable to
Owners of the parent L1.976.00)
Non Contralling Interests [236.5A)
(2.212.57)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
Owners of the parent (34.93)
Nan Contralling Interests
{34.93)
Tatal Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable 1o
Owners of the parent [2.0110.94)
Non Contralling Interests 1236.56)
{2,247.50)
{X1I) Earnings per share (EPS)
{Face value of INR. 10 each}
Basic (INR.) 33 (17.34) {63.85)
Driluted (INR.) (16,75 {59.99)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the censolidated linancial statements
As per our report of even dare

For PNAM & Co. LLP
Chartered Accauntants
ICAI Firm Registration Mo, G01092N/N500395

Digitally signed by
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Director
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InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CIN: UG7120MHT 996PTC355036

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 315t March 2024
(Al ameunts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
315t March 2024

Year ended
315t March 2023

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/ (Loss) before tax (1,280.25) (6,844.58)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities
- Depreciation and amortisation 1,143 98 1.008.15
- Profit on sale of investments (18,921.70) (5.251.60)
- Interest Income @n Loans (1,967.18) {1.021.32)
- Interest Income on Investments - v
- Share based payment to employees 2.381.32 361276
Rent expense on deferred lease rentals 18.01 5.50
- Allawance for credir Ioss 662,01 (67.22)
Loss an sale of fixed assets 0.02 2.24
- Interest on wawinding of financial labilities 95,12 493.61
Interest an unwinding of financial assets (18.61) (1 1.75}
Operating profit/loss before working capital changes {17,887.28) (8473.21)
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables 494,84 2,229.06
- Other financial assers 4,483 .39 B,330.46)
Other non financial assets 1645, 88) 1. 473.21
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities;
- Trade payables 1,471.50 (1,906, 74)
- Deposits 31.75
- Other financial liabilities 513048 (530.87)
- Other non-financial liabilities 23913 (383.43)
Frovisions 157.78 134.31
Cash generated from / {used in) operations (6,556.04) (13,755.78)
Direct taxes (paid) net of refunds 1.758.74 (BE2.11})
Net cash flow from (used in) operating activities (A} (4,797.30) (14,417.89)
E. Cash flows from investing activities
- Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {480.23) (533.68)
Impact of Right of Use Asset (571.79) (61.1.2)
Purchase of Intangible assets (ncluding under development) (5.75) (10.34)
Capital work in progress (10.18) 6.34)
- Praceeds from sale of fixed assets 6,65 26.28
- Purchase of Associate {1,311.064 (1,149.72)
- Purchase of investments 113, 71.767.71}) (9,38,136.05)
Praceeds from sale of investments 13,83,426.20 9,23,679.75
- Met Praceeds from Loans (4291907} 2028645
Interest Income on Loans 1,967.18 1.021.32
- Investment in fixed deposits with maturity of mare than 3 months and other bank balances {7,5305.36} .
Net cash flow from [/ (used in) investing activities (B} {39,171.12) 511655
C. Cash flows from financing activities
- Borrowings 65,899,587 (B,932.51)
- Share Capital - 161.63
Securities premium (Met of Share issue expenses) {27000 13.704.65
Payment of lease liabilities {455.66) (331.63)
Met cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities [[=] 65,174.21 6,602.14
MNet increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A +B+C) 21,205.79 {2,699.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.862.22 4.561.42
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [Refer Note 1 below] 23,068.01 1.862.22
Net increase [/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year 21,205.79 {2,699.20)
Notes to Consolidated cash flow statement
1. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand [Refer Note No. 3]
With banks - on current account & fixed deposits [Refer Note No. 11) 23,068.01 1,B62.22
23,068.01 1,86222

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financlal statements

As per our report af even date

For PNAM & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 001092N/N500355

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
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InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CiN: U711 20MHT1926PTCI55036

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital

As at As ar
Particulars 315t March 315t March
2024 2023
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity share capital of INR 10 each issued
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1.275.74 989.98
Changes in equity share capital during the yvear - 285.76
Balance as at the end of the year 1,275.74 1,275.74
B. Preference share capital
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 each
Ealance as at the beginning of the year - -
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - =
Restated balance at the beginning of the vear - z
Additions during the yeal . 60.35
Changes during the year . (B0.35]
Balance as at the end of the year > 2
Opticnally convertible preference shares of INR 10 each
Ealance as at the beginning of the year 45.40 =
Changes during the year 45.40
Balance as at the end of the year 45.40 45.40
Total 45.40 45,40

{This space has been intentionally left blank)



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CiN: U711 20MHT1926PTCI55036

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

C. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Contingency Statutory Shae hestuil Securities Capital Retained RD':hE"tu.m Fu_rreu;n iCulrl
reserve reserve paymant premium  Reserve earnings ademption Tansiatic
reserve Reserve Reserve
Balamce as at 31st March 2022 0.54 497.14 291.72 36,304.38 {585.43)
Prafit / {loss) for the year (7.252.39)
Other comprehensive income for the year (24.45)
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (7,276.78)
Capital Reserve on Merger 80.39
Employee stock option expense 3.612.76 - - .
Utilisation an conversion of Share capital (51.50) (2,94} - -
Allotment of Share Application Money ; :
Premium on private placement of equity shares 20, 885.01
Ameunts utilised towards share issue expenses (543.78)
Loss Reversal an Wind up of Subsidiary : na.72)
Intercampany Profits 48.27
Reserves acquired on amalgamation,/ merger (8,168.02)
Transferred to statutory reserve from retained earnings - - - - = :
Balance as at 315t March 2023 0.54 497.14 3,852.98 56.702.67 80.39 (16.001.68)
Profit / {loss) for the year (1,976.01)
Other comprehensive income for the year {34.93)
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (2.010.94)
Capital Resarve on Acquisition 85.86
Nen-cantrolling interest on acguisition of subsidiary - - (710.94)
Employee stock option expense 2.534.64
Premium an private placement of equity shares - -
Amounts utilised towards share issue expenses (270.00) - -
Debenture Redemption Reserve (420.07) (2,346.44) 2.766.52
Foreign Currency translarion resernve - : - :
Intercompany Prafits . (65.90)
Transferred to statutory reserve from retained earnings (497.14) 497.14
Balance as at 31st March 2024 0.54 0.00 6,387.62 56,012.60 166.25 {20.638.76) 2.766.52 .'

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the consclidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For PNAM & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No, 001D92M/N500395
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InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CIM: UG7120MH1 296PTC355036
Material accounting policies for the financial year ended 31st March 2024

Mote 1 : General information

1.1. Corporate information

InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited 'the Parent' was incorporated in India on 27th March 1996 under the provision of Companies Act, 1956, The
Company was registered with RBI to carry on the business of Non- Banking Financial Company without accepting public deposits ("NBFC") and was granted

Certificate of Registration (CoR) bearing Mo B-13.02415. The Company applied for surrender of NBFC CoR and the same was accepted by BBl vide its letter dated
Julby 17, 2023, The Parent together with its subsidiaries will be hereinafter collectively referred to as the ‘Group’

The Compary has surrendered its NEFC License w.e.f 1 7th July 2023,

The registered office of the parent Is Unit No. 1203, 12th Floor, & Wing, The Capital, Bandra Kurla Complex Mumbal - 400051,
1.2. Basis of preparation

A, Compliance with Ind AS

The Cansolidated (inancial statement of the group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS") notified under the Companies
(Inelian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) and other relevant pravisions of the Act.

These consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 04 September 2024,
B. Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR"), which 15 also the group's functional currency, All the amounts have been rounded-
off 1o the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated,

C. Basis of measurement
The consalidated financial statements have been prepared on a gaing concern basis under historical cost convention and en an accrual methad of accounting
except for the following items

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value/amortised cost
(i} Net defined benefit asset / liability - plan assets are measured at fair value less present value of defined benefit abligation, and
(iil} Share-based payments - measured ar fair value

D. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidaced financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that management make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of
the conselidated financial statements and the income and expense for the reporting period, The actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected,

The group makes certain judgments and estimates for valuation and impairment of financial instruments, fair valuation of employee stock options, useful [ife of
praperty, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets and retirement benefit obligations. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
consolicated financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

aterial n

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations.

The abligation ansing from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptiens. Key actuarlal assumptions include discount rate, trends in
salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy, The discount rate is determined by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period an
government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds carrespond to the probable maturity af the post-employment benefit abligations. Due to
complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit abligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptians ane
reviewed at each reparting periad.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liahilities
and their respective tax bases and unutilised business loss and depreciatian carry forward and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry forward and
urnused tax credits could be utilised.

Recoqnition and measurement of provisions and contingencies
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources and on past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date, The actual outflow of resources at a futwre date may therefore, vary from the amaunt included in other provisions,

Discounting of long-term financial assets/liabilities
All financial assets/liahilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. In case of financial assets/liabilities which are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost, Interest Is accrued using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

The group recagnises lass allowances for expected credit losses an its financial assets measured at amortised cast. At each reparting date, the group assesses
whether financial assers carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one of more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Leases
The determination of lease term for some lease contracts in which the group Is a lessee, including whether the group is reasonably certain to exercise lessee
opticns, The determination of the incremental borrowing rate used to measure lease labilities

E. Presentation of consolidated financial statemenis

Consolidated financial statements of the group are presented as per Schedule Wl ('Division 11" of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NEFCs, as natified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA'), The Statement of Cash Flows has besn prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash
Flows. The disclosure requiraments with respect to tems in the consolidated Balance Sheet and consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the
Schecule |1l to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed
under the notified Accounting Standards, and RBl regulations to the extent anolicable.



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CIM: UG7120MH1 296PTC355036
Material accounting policies for the financial year ended 31st March 2024

F. Current / Non-current classification of assets and labilities
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets:
An asset iz classified as current when it satisfies any of the followling criteria

(i) It Is expacted to be realised in, ar is interested in sale or consumption in, the group's normal operating cycle,

(i) It is held primarily for being traded:

(i) It is expected to be realised within 12 manths after the reporting date; or

{iv) It is cash or €ash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least 12 manths after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:
A llability s classified as current when It satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) It is expected to be settled in the group's narmal operating oycle,

{ii) It is held primarily for being traded;

(iii} It is due o be settled within 12 months after the reperting date; or

{iv) the group does not have an uncenditicnal right to defer settlernent of the liability far-ar least 12 menths after the reporting date,

Current liahilities include the current portion of non-current financial labilities,
All ather liablilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as Non-current.

All assets and liabllities have been classified as current or non-current as per the group’s normal operating cycle and ather criteria set out in the Schedule ||| to
the Caompanies Act, 2013, The group has identified |12 months as their operating oycle for classification of their current assets and liabilities,

G. Basis of Consalidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has contrel, The Group cantrels an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
consalidated from the date an which the control Is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolldated from the date the control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidianes line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses, Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Group companies are eliminated, Unrealised losses are alse
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have bean changed wherever
necessany to ensure consistency with the oolicies adopted by the Group.

As on the reporting date of the financial statemants the fallowing are the subsidiary that has been considered in preperation of the consolidated financial
statements

Name of the Entity Country of % Ownership Consolidated as
Incorporation

InCred  Asset  Management  Private India 100% Subsidiary

Lirmited

InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited India 100% Subsidiary

InCred  Alternative  Investment  Private India 100% Subsidiary

Limited”

InCred Owerseas Holding Private Limited Singapare 100% Subsidiary

Booth Fintech Private Limited India 69,12% Subsidiary

mialu  Technelegy Services  Private India B9, 12% Subsidlary

Limited

InCred Value Plus Private Limited India 59.12% Subsidiary

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or jeint contral. This is generally the case where the Group haolds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments In associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after inttially belng recognized at
cost,

Under equity methad of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post
acquisitian profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group’s share of ather camprehensive Income of the investee and in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CIM: UG7120MH1 296PTC355036
Material accounting policies for the financial year ended 31st March 2024

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent the Croup’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

As on the date of the financial statements the following associate that has been considered in preperation of the cansolidated financial statements:

Name of the Entity Country of % Ownership Consolidated as
Incorporation

Alpha Fintech Private Limited India 45.07% Associate

Mote 2 : Material accounting policies

2.1, Measurement of fair values
The graup's accounting pelicies and disclosures reguire the measurement of Tair values for financial instruments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ar paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement s based o the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place elther:

(1) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the group.

The group has an established control framewark with respect to the measurement of falr values, The management has the overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, Including Level 3 fair value.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker guotes or pricing
services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence abtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of Ined AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy In which such valuations should be classified,

When measurng the fair values af a financial asset or a financial liability, the group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as Tollows,

(i) Lewvel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets Tor (dentical assets or liabilities.

(i) Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly {l.e. derived
from prices),

(iii) Level 3: inputs far the asset ar Hability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs),

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the group uses abservable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measuire
the fair value of an asset or a llability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement s categorised (n s entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire maasurement.

The group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting pericd during which the change has accurred.

2.2, Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any cantract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial lability or equity Instrument af another entity. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognized when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A i initial
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised when the group becomes a
party ta the cantractual provisions af the instrument.

A financial asset ar financial lability is mitiafly measured ar Fair value plus, for an item not-at fair value through profit and lass (CFYTPLY, transaction costs that ane
directly atiributable to its acquisition,

B. Classification of financial asseis:

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured ar:
- Amaortised Cost
- Fair value through other camprehensive income {'FVOCE)
- Fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPLT)

Financial assets measured at amaortised cost:
M financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amartised cost (net of any write down for impairment), unless the asset is designated at
FVTPL

(i) the financial asset 15 held within a business model whaose abjective |s to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and

(i) the Cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thar are solely payments of principal and interest {'SPPI") on the principal
ameunt outstanding.

Financial assets measured at Falr value through other comprehensive Income ('FVOCI):
A financial asset is measured at FYOCI if it meets both of the fallowing canditions and is not designated as at FVTPL

(i) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

(i} the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are soleély payments of principal and interest ('SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL'):
A financial asset which is not classified in above category is subseguently measured at FVTPL, Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are
recogrized entirely in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Subsequent recognition of financial assets:
The assets classified in the aforementioned categaries are subsequently measured as follows:

Fimancial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost 5 reduced by impairment losses, Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, Any gain ar lass on derecognition is recogmsed in
Statement of Profit and Loss,

Fimancial assets at FVTPL:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any Interest or dividend income, are recognised in consolidated Statement
of Prafit and Loss,

Debt investments at FVOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the EIR method, foreign gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in QCI are
reclassified 1o conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments designated at FVOCE

These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in consalidared Statement of Prafic and Loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC1 and are not reclassified to consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss

D. Classification of financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading ar it is
deslgnated as on initlal recognition.

Financtal Habilities and equity instruments (ssued by the group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inta and the
definitions af a financial liability and an equity instrument,

E. Subsequent recognition of financial liabilities:

All Financial liabilities are recognised initlally at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable and incremental transaction cost.

Amaortised cast is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs profit and loss,

The graup's financial lHabilities include trade payvables and other financial labilities,

F. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fimancial assets:

The group derecagnizes a financial asset (or, whera applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 4 group of similar financial assets) when the contractual righes
to receive cash flows from the financial asset expires ar it transfers the rights to receive to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which the group
neither transfers nar retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain contral af the asser,

If the group enters into transactions whereby 1L transfers assets recognized on 115 balance sheet, but rétains either all or substantially all ef the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Fimancial liabilities:
A financial liability (5 derecognised whern the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires

When an existing financlal liability is replaced by anather from the same lender an substantially different terms, or the terms of am existing lability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the derecognition af the original liahility amd the recognition of a new liability, The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recaqnised in the statement of Profit and Loss

G, Offsetting of financial instruments
A financial asset and a financial lability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there 15 a current legally enforceable right to set-aff the
recognised amounts and it is intended ta either settle on net basis or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

H. Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities
The group is required te reclassify financial assets when and only when it changes its business model for managing financial assets,

Reclassifications are expected to be wvery infrequent. Such changes must be determined by the group's senior management as a result of external ar internal
changes and must be significant 1o the group's operations and demenstrable to external parties,

Further reclassification is not allowed in following cases:
Investments (n equity Instruments [rrevocably designated as at FVOCI cannot be reclassified,
- Reclassification of financial liabilities.

I Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit and loss

A derivative 1s a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics

- Its value changes In response to the change in a specified Interest rate, financlal instrument price, commodity price, forelgn exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credit index, ar other variable, provided that, in the case of a nen-financial variable, it Is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the
1 .

underlying’).

It reuires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors.

- Itis settled at a future date,



InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited
CIM: UG7120MH1 296PTC355036
Material accounting policies for the financial year ended 31st March 2024

The Company enters into derivative transactions with varicus counterparties to hedge its fareign currency risks, interest rate risks and equity price risks,
respectively. These include cross-currency swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, futures and opticns on equities.

Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liahilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are included in net gain on fair value changes uniless hedge accounting is applied.

1. Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative |5 a component of a hybrid instrument that alsa ncludes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash Alows of
the combined instrument vary in @ way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commadity price, fareign exchange rate, index of prices
or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract, A
derivative that is attached to a financial instrument, but is contractually transferable independently of that instruoment, or has a different counterparty from that
Instrument, |5 not an embedded derlvative, but a separate financial Instrement.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset / financial liability within the scape of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded
derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained In Ind AS 104 ta the entire hybrid cantract.

Derlvatives embedded In all other hast contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recarded at falr value If their econamic characteristics and risks
are not closely related 1o those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or less, unless designated as effective hedging instrumants

2.3, Impairment

A mpairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss model (ECL) for measurernent and recognition af impairment loss, Al each reparting dale;
the group assesses whether the recelvables have been Impaired. The group is exposed to credit risk when the customer defaults on his contractual obligations.

The graup records allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all Ipans and debt investments, together with loan commitmeants to customears.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the |ife of the asset, unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, In which case the allawance is based on the 12 months” expected credit loss, Both life time expected credit loss and 12 manths' expected credit loss
are calculated on individual loan / instrument basis.

At the end of each reporting period, the group performs an assessment of whether the lean's / investmeant's credit risk has increased significantly since imitial
recognition by censidering the change In the risk of default occurring over the remalning life of the asset.

Based on the above, the group categorises its loans (nte Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as under;

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the group recognises an allowance based on 12 months' expected credit loss. Stage 1 loans also include facilities
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been re-classified from Stage 2,

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase [n credit risk since orlgination, the group records an allowance for the |ife time expected credit loss, Stage 2
Ilpans also include facilities where the credit nisk bas impraved and the loan has been re-classified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: When a loan is credit impaired, the group records an allowance for the |ife time expected credit loss.

The group calculates ECLs based on probability-welghted scenarlos to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash
shartfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due 1o the group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the group expects 10 receive.

lem i f I i r '

Probability of Default (PD): It is an esumate of the likelihood of default over a given tme horizon, A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, If the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio,

Exposure at Default: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,

Loss Given Default (LGDY: LGD is an estimate of the |nss arising in case where a default occurs. It 15 based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the group would expect to receive, including from the realization of any security,

E. Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists.
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the
assek,

If the carrying amoeunt of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment |oss is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Less for such
EXCESS amount,

In respect of assets (except goadwilll for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the group reviews at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An Impairment loss |s reversed IF there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the 5tatement of Profit and Loss, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisatian, if no iImpairment loss had been recognised,
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2.4, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprize cash at banks and on hand and shart-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an Insigoificant risk of changes in value,

Far the purpose of the statement of cash flaws, cash and cash equivalents cansist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bBank
owverdrafts as they are considered an integral part af the group's cash management.

2.5, Investments

Investment in Mutual Fund
The graup uses Net Asset Value (NAVY to fair value investments in mutual funds.

Investment in AIF_
The company uses Net Asset Value (NAV) to fair value investments in AlF.

Investment in Equity Shares

Traded Equity andl Equity related Securities are valued at the last quand rluﬁing price on the Mational Stock Exchange (NSE) ar other Stock Exchange (SE) {in case
where security is either not listed on NSE ar not traded on NSEL

Investment in Debentures and Bonds

Debentures/Boneds and related Securities are valued at the last guoted closing price on the Bombay Steck Exchange (B5E) or other Stock Exchange (SE) (in case
where sacurity is either not listed on BSE or not traded an BSEL

2.6. Property, plant and equipment

A. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and Impairment, iIf any, The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary Tor it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management and the
initial estimate of the cost of dismantling, removing the item and restaring the site on which it is located, referred to as 'decommissioning, restoration and
similar liabilities', the obligation for which an enterprise incurs either when the item Is acquired or as a cansequence of having used the item during a particular
peried for purposes other than to produce inventaries during the periad,

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of an item of property, plant and equipment which takes substantial period to get ready for its intended use are also
included to the extent they relate to the period tll such assets are ready to be use.

Advances paid towards the acguisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under ather non-
current assets and the cost of assets not put fo use befare such date are disclosed under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’,

Repairs & Maintenance costs are recognized in the net profit in the Statement of Profit and Lass when incurred,

Property, plant and equipment held for sale is valued at lower of their carrying amount and net realizable value. Any write-down is recognized in the statement of
prafit and loss.

B. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure Is capitalised anly If it is probable that the future econamic benefits assaciated with the expenditure will flow to the group.

C. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Galns or losses arlsing from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposzal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line method (SLM). The rates of depreciation used are those which have been calculated
as per the method specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Companies Act, 2013 prescribes that the assetl should be written aff over its useful
life as estimated by the management and provides the indicative useful lives For the different class of assets,

The useful life as per Schedula Il are as follows:

Asset Group Useful life as per Schedule 1|
Furniture and fiitings 10

Computers 3

Office Fquipment's H

Wehicle [+

Leasehold improvements Ower the life of lease penod
RO Assers Over the life of lease periad

Depreciation is not recorded an capital wark in progress until construction and installation is completed and assets are ready for its intended use,

Depreciation on additien to property, plant and equipment |s provided on pro-rata basis from the date the asset |s ready for use. Depreciation on sale/ deduction
of property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction and discarding as the case may be.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reparting date and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and
conseguent advice, the management believes that its estmated uselul life as given above best represent the period over which management expects 1o use
these assefs.
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2.7. Intangible assets

A. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, iF any, The cost of an intangible asset comprises its
purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for Its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates,

B. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure an an intangible asset is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditure are recognised |n the Statement Profit and Loass as incurred.

C. Amortization
Amortisation is calculated ta write off the cast of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful life using the straight-line
method, and 15 Included In depreciation, amortisation and Impalrment in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful Hife of 3 years,
Amortisation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewsed at each reporting date and adjusted praspectively,

2.8, Income tax
Incomne tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It s recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates 1o a business
combination or to an item recagnised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income ('QCI")

A, Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected (o be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes, It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the group:
(1) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and
(i) intends to realise the asset or setthe the lability on a net basis or simultaneausly,

B. Deferred tax
Deferrad tax is recognised in respect af temporary differences between the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities for financial reparting purposes and the
amounts used for laxation purposes,

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable prafit and less, and

(i) temporary differences related to investments In subsiciaries and associates to the extent that the group is able (o centrel the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will net reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax lesses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be wused. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it s
no langer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recogmised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rares that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabiliry is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as an the reporting date. Taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI
is recognised In equity or QCI.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax cansequences that would follow fram the manner in which the group expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of Its assets and labilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only If:
() the group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agalnst current tax liabilities, and
(i} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation autharity an the same taxable entity.

2.9, Borrowing costs

Borrowling costs Include interest expense as per the effective Interest rate (EIR) and other costs incurred by the group in connection with the berrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or canstruction of those tangible fixed assets which mecessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use are capitalized. Other barrowing costs are recognized as an éxpense In the year In which they are incurred.

2.10. Share capital

Ordinary shares
Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects,

Z.11. Leases

The group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts, Consequently, the group recorded the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments discounted at the Incremental barrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since
the commencement date af the lease, but discounted at the group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of use asset ("ROU" and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-term and low value leases,
the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense an a straight-line basiz aver the term of the lease,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease Hability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior
to the commencement date of the lease plus any Initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subseqguently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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Right-ol use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis owver the sharter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asser,

The lease liability is initially measured at amaortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease ar, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates

212, Revenue from operations
The graup has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The group recognised revenue primarily from various activities as follows:

(i) Distribution fees, commission and related income : Distribution commission income is recognised when right 1o receive is established as per the terms of
the contract, based on the confirmations received from the third party vendors.

Commission and related incame comprises of income in the nature of commission, arranger and facilitation fee income which is recognized when right to receive
the income is established as per the terms of the contract,

(i) Management fees :

a. Management fees from Alternative Investment Funds (AIF) schemes are recognised om an accrual basis In accordance with the investment management
agresment and provisions and regulations of SEBI (Alternative Investment Funds) Requlations, 2012. The Company receives investment management fees from
the AlF which |s charged as a percent of the Assets Under Management (AUM) and is recognised on accrual basis.

b. Management fees from Portfolio Mapagement schemes are recognised on an accrual basis, The Company receives portfalio management fees which s
charged as a percent of the Assets Under Management (AUM) and is recognised on accrual basis, The Company alsa receives Performance Fees which is
recognised based on the terms agreed with the customer,

(it} Fee Income : Fee Income is recognized when right to receive the incame is established as per the terms of the contract,

() Income related to advisory services is accounted on accrual basis
(v} Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognized when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms of the contract

2.13. Earning per share
The basic earnings per share {'EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharehalders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

2,14, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A, Provisions
Provisians are recagnized when there is a present obligation {legal ar constructive) as a result of a past event, it |s probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision 15 presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

IF the effect of the time wvalue af money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific ta the liability, The
urwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost,

E, Onerous contracts

Provislons for onerous cantracts are recognized when the expected benefits 1o be derived from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the
future obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the group recognises any impairment loss an the assets associated with that
contract.

Provisions, contingent assets, cantingent llabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date,

2.15. Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the group is determined on the basis of the primary economic enviranment in which it operatas, The functional currency of the group
15 Indian National Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (forelgn currencles) are recogrsed at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions, At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denaminated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Mon-
monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of histarical cost in a fareign currency are nat retranslared.

Exchange differences arising on transactien/settlement of monetary items are recagnised in statement of profit and loss in the peried in which they arlse.

2.16. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision makers. The accounting policies
adopted for segment reparting are (n conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Group. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments an
the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Income / Costs which relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocable to segments
on a reasanable basis, have been included under Unallocated Income / Casts.

2.17. Events after the reparting period
Events after the reporting periocd are those events, both favourable and unfavourable that occur between end of the reporting period and the date aon which the
consalidated financial statements are approved for issue.
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A, Adjusting events

Events which provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period are adjusting events. Financials have been adjusted for those
BVEMTE.

B, Non-adjusting events
Events which are of Indicative af conditions that arise after the end of the reporting period are Non-adjusting events. Disclosure of the nature of event and
estimate af its financial effect have been made in the consolidated financial statements.

There have been no events after the repoarting date that require disclosure in these consolidated financial statements.

2.18. Related party disclosure
A related party Is any party af entity that controls or can significantly influence the management or pperating policies of the group during the reporting period.

The group has disclosed names of related parties with relationship and transacton between group and its related parties in the Notes 1o consolidated financial
statements

2.19. Employee benefits

A, Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. & llability |s recognised for the amount expected to be paid If the group has a
present legal or constructive obiigation ta pay this amaount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

B, Compensated absences
The group dees not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves far its employees and are not permitted ta carry forward the feaves. Hence there |s na
liability towards compensated absence.

C. Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement beneflit in the form of provident fund Is a defined cantribution scheme, The group is statutarily required to contribute a specified partion of the basic
salary of an employee to a provident fund as part of retirement benefits to its employess, The contributions during the year are charged to the statement of
prafit and loss.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity.
The group's llability towards gratuity scheme (s determined by independent actuaries, using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined

benefit abligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting perind on
government bands that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation,

The net interest cost Is caloulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profic and loss.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets excluding interest income are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with carrespanding debit er credit 1o Other Comprehensive Income (OCH, Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and |oss

in the sifghsamant marind

2.20, Share-based payment arrangements

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding Iincrease in share-based payment reserves in equity, over the periad in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest,

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recagnised s the expense had the terms not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any madification that increases the total fair value of the share-hased payment transaction, or is
othemwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification, Where an award |s cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through the Consalidated Statement af Profit and Loss.

The dilutive effect of cutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

2.21 Business Combinations

Business Combinations (not involving entities under comman control) are accounted for wsing the acquisition method, At the acquisition date, identifiable assest
acquired and liabilities assumed are measured at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present abligation
and they are measured at their acquisition date fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits is not probable, The
consideration transferred is measured at fair value at acquisiton date and includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. However, deferred tax asset or
lability and any llability or asset relating to employee benefit arrangements arising from business combination are measured and recognised In accordance with
the requirements of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes and Ingd AS 19, Employee Benefits, respectively,

Where the consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of the net identifable assets acquired and labilties assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill,
Alternatively, in case of bargain purchase wherein the cansideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the difference is accumulated in equity as capital reserve. The cost of acquisition excluding those relating to issue of eguity or debt securities are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Lass in the period in which they are incurred.

Business combinations of entities under comman control are accounted using the "pooling of imerests” method and assets and liabilities are reflected at tha
predecessar carrying values and the only adjustiments that are macle are ta harmonise accounting policies. The figures for the previous periods are restated as if
the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the preceding period irrespective of the actual date of the combination.
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2.22 Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad in accordance with Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, wherehy profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transacticns of a non-cash mature, any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cperating cash recelpts or payments and (tems of income ar expenses associated
with investing or financing cash Hows, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the group are segregated.

2.23 Exceptional items
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant o explain
the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such items s disclosed separately as exceptional items.
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Note 3 : Property, plant and equipment

Particulars ROIE ASseLs Furniture and Leasehold Office equipment Vehicle
[Refer Note No. 35] fixtures Improvements U

Gross carrying amount:

As at 315t March 2022 456.24 28.51 99.67 36.00 77.21

Additions during the year 61.12 49,18 125.29 36.43 245.73

Acquired via Merger 615.62 46.80 197.56 73.09 62.66

Dispasals duning the year 2.19 .42 31.51

As at 31st March 2023 1,132.97 122.30 422,51 145.10 354.08

Additians during the year 588.78 15.63 10090 12.30 256,90

Acquisitions -

Transfer s

Write affs - 20.55% 68.39 46,70

Disposals during the vear 28.87 - z = 710

Az at 31st March 2024 1.692.88 117.38 455.01 110.70 603.88

Accumulated depreciation:

As at 31st March 2021 108.63 229 14.12 5.06 041

Depreciation charge during the year 10064 2.85 22.70 7.69 6.09

Accumulated depreciation an disposals 2 < 0,12 =

As at 31st March 2022 209.27 5.14 36.82 12.63 6.50

Depreciation charge during the year 22104 3.66 71.36 18.71 37.14

Acquired via Merger 192.42 26.40 108.69 44,99 3.44

Accumulated depreciation on disposals 0.28 .09 6.54

As at 31st March 2023 622.82 39.92 217.07 76.23 35.53

Depreciation charge during the yaar 297.30 0. 70 Ba.71 1997 59,93

Acquisitions +

Transler

Write aff - 18,14 68.39 39.11 -

Accumulated depreciation on disposals 11.88 : - 2 0.42

Az at 31st March 2024 S08.23 32.48 238.39 57.10 95.04

Net carrying amount:

As at 31st March 2024 78465 54.90 216.62 53.60 508.84

As at 31st March 2023 510.15 8238 205.44 68.87 318.55
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Note 34 : Capital work in Prograss

Particulars Total

As at 31st March 2022 1.09
Agdditions during the period 155.69
Adquired via merger 20.68
Capitalized during the period (149.35)
As at 31st March 2023 28.11
Additions during the period 177.06
Adguired via merger

Capitalized during the period (16688}
As at 315t March 2024 38.29

Ageing for CWIP :

Particulars Less then 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress 27.51 9.70 1.08 38.29

As at 31st March 2024 27.51 9.70 1.08 - 38.29

Particulars Less then 1 year 1 -2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress 27.02 1.08 28.10

As at 31st March 2023 27.02 1.08 28.10

Note 4 ; Other intangible assets

Particulars Software Technology Erand Cu_sluma_r Website
Development Relationships

Gross Carrying amount:

As at 31st March 2022 6.18

Additions during the year 2.411.50 575.00 5.392.50

Acquired via merger 15.25 2.00

Write off = 2,603.00

Disposals during the year -

As at 315t March 2023 21.43 2A411.50 575.00 2,789.50 2.00

Agdditions during the year - 0.75

Acquired via merger

Write off
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Dispasals during the year

As at 31st March 2024 21.43

2411.50

575.000

2,789.50

2.75

A i isati T : )
As at 31st March 2022 5.40

Amertisation charge during the year 5.87 241.15 57.50 278.95 .67
Acquired via merger 5.0 1.19
Disposals during the year = - = = :
As at 31st March 2023 16.28 241.15 57.50 278.95 1.86
Amertisation charge during the year 4,54 241,81 57.66 279,71 0.24
Additians during the year

Write aff x ~
Dispasals during the year : 5 - 7 -
As at 31st March 2024 20.82 482.96 115.16 558.66 210
Net carrying amount as at 31st March 2024 061 1,928.54 459.84 2,230.84 0.65
Net carrying amount as at 31st March 2023 5.15 2,170.35 517.50 2,510.55 0.14
Note 44 : Intangible assets under development

Particulars Total

Gross carrying amount:

As at 31 March 2022 +

Additions during the year 10.34

Acquired via merger 1.00

Capitalised during the year

As at 31 March 2023 11.34

Additions during the year 6.00

Acquired via merger

Capitalised during the year -0.25

As at 31 March 2024 17.0%

Ageing

Particulars Less then | year 1 -2 years 2 -3 years Maore than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 500 10.09 .00 17.09
As at 315t March 2024 6.00 10.09 1.00 17.09
Particulars Less then 1 year T -2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 vears Total
Projects in pragress 10.34 1.00 11.34
As at 315t March 2023 10.34 1.00 11.34
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Note 5 Non Current Investments

Particulars

As at
315t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

(A} Investments carrled at falr value through profit or loss

In Alternate Investment Fund 10,632,140 4,695.25
In Portfalio Management Services 502,83 402.27
In Man Convertible Debentures & Market Linked Debenturas 2.516.08 1,357.17
I Drerivative assets 2,225.32 D86, 38
In Compulserily Convertible Preference shares 1.544.43
(B} Investments carried at amortised cost
Alpha Fintech Private Limited 2.456.56 1. 145,50
Total - Gross (A + B ) 19,877.31 858717
Less: Impairment [oss allowance - -
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 19,877.31 858717
(A) Investments in India 19,877.31 B.587.17
{B) Investments gutside India
Total - Gross (4 + B) 19,877.31 8,587.17
Less: impairment |oss allowance -
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 19,877.31 8587.17
Mote 6: Loans

As at As at
Particulars 315t March 2024 315t March 2023

Amaortised cost

Amortised cost

(A) At amortised cost

{i Term loans 300.00 513.87
{ii} Term loans to related party 3,615.00 3 708,48
Total - Gross 3,915.00 4,222.35
Less: Impairment Ioss allowance (15.69) (16.89)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (A) 3.899.31 #,205.46
Mote 7: Others non-current financial assets
As at As at

Particulars

315t March 2024

315t March 2023

Financial assets carried at amortized cost:

Rental depaosits 129.15 128.23

Bank deposits with mare than |12 months maturity 310,14

Advance to broker 469,74 2.07

Other deposits 6,35 10,05

915.38 140.34
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (4,09} (1.95)
Total 911.29 138.39
Note & : Other non current assets
As at As at

bty 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Balance with government authorities 329,55 -
Deferred rent expense 16.09 .G
Prepaid expenses 70.98 19.24
Total 416.62 2584
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Note 8 : Current Investments

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As al
31st March 2023

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

In Mutual Funds 1,550.68 1,081.47
In Equity Shares 5.848.08 6,513.28
In Hon Convertible Bebentures & Market Linked Debentures 4,016.72 7,941.63
In Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 4.547.50 1.566.20
In Compulserily Convertible Debentures 300.00 300,00
In Option assets i43.23) =

16,219.75 17,402.58
Less; Impairment |oss allowance (300.00} -
Total 15,919.75 17,402.58
Note 10 : Trade raceivables

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Secured, considered good

2,756.14

Unsecured, considered gaod 2.239.73
Significant increase in credit risk a &
Credit impaired - -
2,239.73 2,756.14
Less: Allowance for impairment loss 148.92) (70.49)
Total 2,190.81 2.6B5.65
As at 31st March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than & 6 months - |
Months vear 1 -2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
1h Undlisputed Trade Receivabes - Cansider gond 2,203.96 19,28 15.49 .00 2,239.73
iy Undisputed Trade Recelvabes - which have .
significant increase inm credit risk
iy Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired
) Disputed Trade Recelvalbes - Considered goods
¥) Disputed Trade Receivalbes - which have .
significant increase in credir risk
vi) Disputed Trade Receivalbes - Credit Impaired - . - -
Total 19,28 15.49 1.00 2,239.73
As at 31st March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1
Months Vo 1-2 years 2 -3 years  Maore than 3 years Total
i) Unclisputed Trade Receivabes - Consider good 1,523.97 1.133.66 60.20 37.73 0.59 2,756.14
Iiy Undisputed Trade Recelvabes - which have
significant increase in credit risk .
iil} Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired
iv) Disputed Trade Receivalbes - Considered goods
vl Disputed Trade Receivalbes - which have :
significant increase in credin risk
vi) Disputed Trade Receivalbes - Credit Impaired - - . = 2
Total 1,133.66 G20 37.73 (.59 2,756.14
Note 11 : Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Fardeptaid 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalent} 14,963.34 1,862.22
Fixed deposit with bank {original maturity of less than 3 months) 4.104.67
Total 23.068.01 1,862.22
Note 12 : Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Farticulans 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Fixed depasit with bank 7.505.36 =

Less | Expected credit Loss

7,505.36

Total

7.505.36
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Note 13 : Loans

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

Az al
31st March 2023

Amaortised cost

Amortised cost

At amortised cost

{i¥ Term loans 5,338.08 505.55
{ii} Term loans to related party 42, 555,90 7 FEE.TG
Total - Gross 51,893.98 8,494.31
Less: Impairment |oss allowance [208.93) (34.48)
Total - Met of impairment loss allowance 51,685.05 8.459.83
MNote 14 : Other financial assets
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Carried at amortised cost

Advance to Braker 592.78 43.76
Rental cdeposits 7.1

Receivables Fram Fund 39.76 16.36
thers 491,40 h,249.54
Total - Gross 1,196.05 6,309.60
Less: Impairment loss allawance (211,200 (GR.51)
Tatal - Net of impairment loss allowance 984.85 524115
Note 15 Current tax assets (Net)

As at As at

Particulars

315t March 2024

31st March 2023

Income tax refundable (net af provision for income taxh 449,72 1, 153.67
Tatal 449.72 1,153.67
Note 16 : Other curreni asseis
As at

As at
Particulars 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Prepaid expenses 22312 51.88
Balances with gavernment authorities 503.73 422.75
Deferred rent expense 4.32 4,82
Advance to vendor 93,08 77.83
Others 59,16 71.03
Tatal E83.41 628.31
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Note 17 : Equity share capital

As at 3]st March 2024

Partiqulars Number Armount

Authorised share capital [Refer note 'e' below]

Equity shares of INR. 10/ each 3.41.94,000 3.419.40

Campulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10/- each 7,016,000 7160

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of INR 10/- each 6,000,000 60.00
3,55,10.000 3,551.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Equity Shares of INR. 10/ each fully paid up 1.27.57.390 1.275.74

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of INR 10/ each fully paid-up 4,53,962 45.40

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 1,32,11,352 1,321.14

a. Terms and rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares. The equity shares have a paid up value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to vote in proportion of the share of pai
shareholder, Each shareholder is entitled to receive interim dividend when it is declared by the Board of Directors. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors are paid when appro
annual general meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve the remaining assets of the Company proportionately along with the holders of compuls
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution shall be according to the members right and interest in the company,

b. Terms and rights attached to Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

Pursuant to Composite Scheme of Arra ngement between Clamant Tech Services Private Limited (' Transferor Carnp:m\r'i, InCred Wealth Private Limited {'Demerged Company 1 "y, MAPE Advisory G
Campany 2'), InCred Wealth and lnvestment Services Private Limited ("Resulting Company 17} and InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited (' Company” or ‘Transferee Company” or '‘Result
April 26, 2027 passed by the NCLT Mumbai sanctioning the Compasite Scheme the Company had allotted 4,53,962 Class A Optionally convertibie redeemable preference shares ("OCRPS), Base
valuer the value of liabifity portion arising out of redemption option is immaterial and therefore not accouned for.

Therefore entire GCRPS has been considered as equity In nature. The conversion right is to be exercised by the holders of OCRPS after 90 days from the end of 3 (three) years from the Appointe
OCRPS shall be redeemed at the option of the Company after the end of 3 (three) Years from the Appointed Date.

b. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

As al 31st March 2024

Particulars e Ao
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 1,27,57.350 1,275.74

Add: Shares issued on conversion of CCPS and OCRPS during the year
Add: Shares issued during the year
Less: Bought back during the year
Dutstanding at the end of the year 1,27,57,300 1,275.74

Instruments entirely equity in nature
Compulsorily convertible preference shares
At the beginning of the year

Add: Shares issued during the year

Less: Converted to Equity shares during the year
Dutstanding at the end of the year

Cptionally convertible redeemable preference shares

At the beginning of the year 4,53,962 45.40
Add: Shares issued during the year

Less: Comverted to Equity shares during the year = =
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,53,962 45.40

Total instruments entirely equity In nature 4,53,962 45.40
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c. Details of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% of shares of the Company

As at 3]st March 2024

Name of the shareholder No. of shares % Holding

held
Equity shares
Bhupinder Singh' 43,90,180 13.23%
MEMG Family office LLP 5,43 704 7.14%
Paragon Partners Growth Fund-| 907,408 B.E7Y
Rawi Pillai . .
InCred Wealth Private Limited 9.67,840 7.33%
Qptionally convertible redeemable preference shares
Ramprasad M 1.95,955 43.17%
Jacab Mathew 1.03,201 22.73%
Anu Jacoh 92 753 20.43%

1. 96635 equity shares are being held by Credentia Trusteeship Services Private Limited on behalf of Mr. Bhupinder Singh as agreed under Escrow agreement dated 15th December 2020.

As per recards of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represe
ownerships of shares.

d. Equity shares held by promoters of the company
Ot of the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its promaoters:

As at 31st March 2024 As
Name of the shareholder A % of shares % Change during Fhie 6 e foald
held the year
Bhupinder Singh 43,90,180 33.23% 3.63% 42,36,578

e. Changes in autharized share capital of the Company

it The Company has reclassified its Authorized share capital from from INR 350,000,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty-Five Crores) divided into: {a) 3,44,00,000 (Three Crores Forty Four Lakh) equity -
{Indian Rupees Ten) each:ib) 6,00.000 (Six Lakh) optionally convertible redeemable preference shares having the face value of INR 10/ (Indian Rupees Ten) each, to (a) 3,36.84,000 (Three Crore
equity shares having the face value of INR 10/~ (Indian Rupees Ten) each; (b} 6,000,000 (5ix Lakh) optionally convertible redeemable preference shares having the face value of INR 10/ {India
Lakh Sizteen Thousand} compulsorily convertible preference shares having the face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten} each. vide shareholders' approval at the Extraordinary General Meeting

il Pursuant to Composite 5cheme of Arrangement between Clamant Tech Services Private Limited ("Transferor Company’), InCred Wealth Frivate Limited {'Demerged Company 171, MAPE Adv
Company 27), InCred Wealth and Investment Services Private Limited ('Resulting Company 1’} and InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited ('Company” or 'Transferee Company” or "Rest
April 26, 2022 passed by the NCLT Mumbal sanctioning the Composite S5cheme the Authorised share capital e, Rs.51,00,000 of the Transferor Company has been transferred inte Company.
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Note 18 : Other equity

Particulars

As at
315t March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Securities premium
Balance as at the beginming of the year
Add: Additions during the year;
- Premium an comversion of CCPS and OCRPS to equity shares during the year
Premiwm an private placement of equity shares
Less: Urilized during the year:
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve
Amounts utlllzed towards share issue expenses
Balance as at the end of the year

Contingency reserve fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year:
= Transfer from surplus / (deficit) In statement of profit and loss
Less; Utilized during the year
Balance as ai the end of the year

Share based payment reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Additian during the year;

Less: Utilized during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Capital reserve on Merger
Deemed contribution from parent

Statutory reserve fund pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year:
- Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss
Less: Utilized during the vear
Balance as at the end of the year

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the baginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year.

Less: Utllized during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Reserves on Merger

Add: Profit / (loss) after tax for the year

Add: Intercompany Profits

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Less: Change In Mon Controlling Interest

Add: Transfer from Statutary reserve fund

Less: Lass Reversal an Wind up of Subsidiary
Add/Less: Previous year profit/loss adjustments
Amount available for appropriations

Less: Appropriations
- Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve
Transter to Statutory reserve pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934
Add: Transfer from capital reserve
Balance as at the end of the year

Foreign currency translation reserve

56,702.67 36,364.38

(2.94)

20,885,010

1420.07) .

(270.00) (543.78)

56,012.60 56,702.67

0.54 .54

0,54 0.54

3,852.98 291.72

2.538.14 3,612.76

3.49 51.50

6,387.62 3,852.98

166,25 80.39

497,14 497.14
497.14

. 497.14
2,766.52
2,766.52

(16,001.658) (585.43)

(8,168.02)

{1,976.01) (7,252.33)

(65,90) 48.27

(34.93) 124.45)
(710.94)
4497.14

{19.72)

(18,292.32) {16,001.68)
{(2,346.44)

(20,638.76) {16,001.68)
20,56

Total

44,715.33

45,132.04
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Note 19 : Mon-current borrowings

Particulars

As at
315t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

At amortised cost

= Market Linked Debantures 42 545,29 13,110.72
Total 42,545.29 13,110.72
Note 20 : Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at

315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Lease Hability [Refer Note No. 38] 580.88 396.85
Total 580.88 396.85
Note 21 : Non-current provisions
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Prowvision for gratuity 364.43 206.62
Total 36:4.43 206.62
Note 22 : Trade payables

As at As at

Particulars

315t March 2024

31st March 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprizes

Principal amount due
Interest amount due

Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Principal amount due 2,374.28 902.78
Interest amount due :
2,374.28 902.78
Total 2,374.28 902.78
As al 31st March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | 1-2
year T 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
i) MSME .
Iiy Others 2,374.28 237428
iy Disputed dues - MSME - -
iv) Disputed dues - Others - -
Total 2,374.28 2,374.28
“Unbilled dues of Rs, 2358.48 lakhs
As at 31st March 2023
Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lass THan’] LA 2 -3 years More than 3 years Tatal
year VEArs
15 MSME . .
Hy Others 902.78 a902.78
ilit Disputed dues - MSME . - .
iv) Disputed dues - Others : :
Total a02.78 a02.78

“Unbilled dues of Rs. 835.58 lakhs
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Note 23 @ Borrowings

Particulars

As at
315t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Unsecured At amortised cost

Related Parties [Refer Note No. 42] 18, 844,09
Other Parties 9,979.26
Secured At amortised cost
Non Corvertible Debentures 5.141.258
Bank overdraft 1,5040.68
Total 36,465.21
Note 24 : Other current financial liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Employee axpenses payable 4,255.27 2,125.89
Lease liahility [Refer Note No. 38] 333.90 308.29
Financial Liability on Guarantee 30,96 25.96
Others 2,893.99 6917
Payable to Fund 2412 2412
Advance recelved from customers 177.03 215.40
Total 7,715.28 2,768.83
Note 25 : Current provisions
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

3ist March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Prowision for gratuity 12.03 12.06
Total 12.03 12.06
Note 26 : Other non-financial liabilities

As at As at
Farticulars 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Statutory dues payable 449,04 348,04
Others 135.13
Total 587.17 348.04
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Mote 27 : Revenue From operations

Partieniars Year ended Year ended

315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Advisory Income 13.26 1.20
Management Fees 311002 a04.95
Distribution fees, commission and related incame 1,434.28 2,521.08
Other fees and charges 6,850.39 6,816,593
Gain on financial instruments 18.921.70 525160
Technical and Referral fees -
Sale of Commaodities 785.35
Total 33,125.10 15,195.77
Geographical Markets
Within India 33.014.51 15,191.66
Outside India 116.59 4.11
Total 33,125.10 15,195.77
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transtarred at a point in time 3312510 15,185.77
Services transferred over time - -
Total 33,125.10 15,195.77
Note 28 : Other income

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

315t March 2024

315t March 2023

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:

Interest an loans |, 96718 1 021.32

Interest an deposits with banks 18,79 .34
Linwinding of discount on security deposit 18.61 11.75
Finance income on Guarantee 135.27 75.00
Miscellaneous income 52.38 32.14
Kelmbursement Income 21.42 23.34
Liabilities written back (5.88)
Others 36.93 836.75
Total 2.250.58 1,.253.76
Mote 29 : Employee benefits expenses

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Salaries and wiges 16,547.22 10,849, 14
Contribution to provident and ather funds 338,12 216.81
Share based payments to employess [Refer Note No. 43] 2,538.14 161276
Cratuity [Refer Note No. 36] 115.02 B7.55
Staff welfare expenses 193.34 171.78
Total 19.731.84 15,038.01
Mote 30 : Finance costs
Year ended Year ended

SAEL 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Interest on lease liability [Refer Note No. 38] 85.12 93.61
Interest on Borrowlings 6,946.21 537.97
Finance Expense on Guarantee 14027 100.496
Crthers B84 030
Total 7.188.44 732.84
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Note 31 : Others expenses

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Rent [Refer Note No. 38) 148.05 42.33
Communication cast 14.34 15.58
Commissian, brokerage & referral fees 1.639.42 2,631.31
Allowance for impairment 662.01 (67.22)
Provision for diminution in value of investments + -
Travelling and conveyance 48430 327.39
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 209118 1,632.70
Membership and subscription 9539 35.56
IT expenses 414.27 224.63
Manpawar support services 206.33 132.92
Rates and raxes 20.96 51.65
Printing and staticnary 31.40 20.05
Payment to auditars BEG.43 27.51
Demat and related charges 7.03 5
Advertisemant, publicity and sales promotion expenses 34847 192.90
Office expenses 221.88 162.69
Transaction charges for rading 125.59 5.81
Interast on statutory dues .66 G.24
Recruitment fees 35117 3747
Fareign exchange loss 3.36 27.52
Stamp Duty & Filing fees G&.13 22.04
Lass on sale of fixed assets 0.02 2.24
CST Expense 47.34 651.74
Assets Written off 12.08 13.28
Lass on subsidiary . 21.06
Trusteeship fee charges 1.50
Custody fees 14.62
Fund Expenses
Danation 2.00 -
Corparate Social Respansibility Expense 55.42 19.82
Miscellaneous expenses 48.83 6.44
Total 7,185.18 6,444.66
* Payment to the auditors:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Auditor's remuneration

Audit fees B63.06 25.16

In other capacity
- Certification services 1.47 0.71
- Taxation 1.90 1.64
Total 66.43 27.51
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MNote 32 : Current tax

32.1 Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Particulars

Year ended
315t March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Current tax expense

In respect of current period 1,054.79
MAT credit written off -
Earlier years 30.17 39.79
1.054.96 39.79

Deferred tax expense / (income) {719.21) (2,235.04)
Tax expense for the year 365.75 {2,195.25)
32.2 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

315t March 2024

30st March 2023

Income tax related to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the

lterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (A) (36.47) (25.82)
Statutory income tax rate applicable 1o the Company (B) 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (A * B) {9.18) {7.51)
32.3 Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended
315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Profit before tax as per Statemant of profit and loss (A) (1,846.82) {9,447.58)
Statutory tax rate (B) 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (C= A " B) (464.81) {2,377.77)
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in caiculating taxable income 275.90 582.78
Tax effect on MLD {or previous year 4297 s
Tax impact on Brought forward losses 248,71
Deferred tax on provision for expenses for previous year 20,69
Tax effect an amaounts far which deferred tax is not created 26361 -
Lass of Mape on which deferred tax was not created in earlier years - (446.01)
Bonus of Mape and Clamant disallowed in computation of last year, claimed allowance in
ICFSPL (27.27)
Change of rate on the deferred 1ax created by Mape in earlier years (0.71)
Others 19.06 33.94
Effective tax expense 365.75 {2,235.04)
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32.4 Deferred 1ax

The major components of deterred tax diabilities) arising on account of timing differences as at 31st March 2024 are as follows:

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023 via Merger

profit or loss

Acquired  Recognised in Recognised As at
in OCI 31st March 2024

Deferred tax assets:

Brought forward losses 4,928.11 1326.35) z 4,601,76
Employee benefit expenses 54,95 29.92 6.61 9] .48
EIR impact on financial Instruments 1.75 (1,75} . -
Preliminary expenses 0.02 (0.02) .
Impairment loss on Loans 18.99 170,29 1849.28
Restructuring related expenses 17.81 (2.05}) B.76
Pravision for Bonus + : -
Leases 49,08 (16.56) 32,52
Interest on MLDs 1.024.86 1,024 86
Temparary disallowance BB.16 829.11 B97.27
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of 30,60 22.37 52.97
accounts and income tax -

Total Deferred tax assets (A) 5,169.47 1,722.82 [ 6,898.90
Deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of 202.09 134,17 336.26
accounts and income tax

Fair value of investments measured at FVTPL 5586 541.79 927 .65
EIR impact an financial instruments [27.68) 2768 4
Total Deferred tax liabilities (B) 260.27 1,003.64 1,263.91
Nat Deferred tax assets {A-B) 4,909.20 719.18 b.bl 5634.99
The major components of deferred tax (iabilities) arising on account ol timing differences as at 31 st March 2023 are as follows:

Preisilaig As at Acquired Recognised in Recognised As at

31st March 2022 via Merger

profit or loss

in OCI 31st March 2023

Deferred tax assets:

Brought forward losses 480.26 1,627.64 2,820.21 4,928.11
Employee benefit expenses £.449 25.18 15.649 .59 54.95
EIR impact an financial instruments 1.758 1,75
Preliminary expenses - 0.0z 0,02
Impairment loss on Loans 25.78 . 18,791 18.99
Restructuring related expenses 13.03 0.08 4.70 17.81
Leases 3591 18.53 (5.36) 449.08
Temporary disallowance . i94.97 {326.81) GB.16
Ditference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of 13,64 16,96 (0.00F 30.60
accounts and income tax

Total Deferred tax assets (A} 573.11 2,083.36 2,503.41 9.59 5 169.47
Deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of 0.27 (268 204,50 202,00
accounts and Income tax ‘ .

Fair value af investments measured at FYTPL {34.84) 45,99 737 85,86
EIR impact on financial instruments . (17.84) (084} (27,681
Total Deferred tax liabilities (B) (34.57) 2647 26B.37 260.27
Net Deferred tax assets (A-B) 607.68 2.056.89 2.235.04 9.59 4,909.20
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Note 33 : Earning per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS are calculated using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

i. Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders:

Year ended Year ended

Farticuians 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Prafit attributable to equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic & dilutive earnings per

hara 12,212.57) (7,252.33)

ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Year ended As at

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominatar in calculating basic earnings

per share 1.27,57,390 1,13,57.514
Weighred average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in
calculating diluted earpings per share® L2 AL 20,843,694
Basic earnings per share {17.34) (63.85)
Diluted earnings per share (16.75) (59.99)
Note 34 : Contingent liabilities and eommitments

Year ended As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaming to be executed on capital account and not provided for

- Investment commitments 5,372.50 2,000.00
- Lean commitments 2,920.00 =
Fixed asser commitment 21.46 0.50
Cantingent liabilities
Corporate Guarantee tor Group Company” 13,500.00 10,000.00

* Guarantee of | 00% of the Working Capital/Intra Day Overdraft /Bank Guarantee of the Group Company Lo a maximum amount of INR 13,500 lakhs (315t March
2023 INR 10,000 lakhs) (carrying amounts of the refated financial guarantee contracts were INR 3096 lakhs and INR 25,96 at 31 March 2024 and 31 March

2023, respectively) (Also Refer Nate 17),

Note 35 : Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issuwed an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises showld mentian in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated afver filing of the Memarandum
Based on the information available with the management, as at 31 March 2024, no dues were outstanding to micro and small enterprises as defined under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, Further, the Campany has not recelved any claim lor interest from any supplier under the said Act

till 31 March 2024,

Mote 36 : Employee benefits

36.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss towards contributions 1o provident fund

Particulars

Year ended

31st March 2024

Year ended
315t March 2023

Provident fund

EEL-N

216.81

36.2 Defined benefit Plan - Gratuity

Every employee who completes five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn] for each completed year of service, subject

te ceiling of INR 20,00 Lakhs.

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation:

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Change in benefit obligations

Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 21 B.66 17,86
Interest cost 15.95 648
Current service cost 97.07 81.06
Past Service Cast - Incurred During the Period 2.0 -
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 16.97 96.33
(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) -9.00 E
Benefit paid directly by the employer -1.69 (12.89
Actuarial (GCalns) / Lasses on Obligations - Due te Change in Demographic Assumptions 3.56

Actuarial (Gains) / Lasses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptians 1116 4.31)
Actuarial (Gains) / Lasses an Obligations - Due to Experience 44.07 34.13
Liability at the end of the year 376.44 218.66
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Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet:

Year ended As at

Particuiag 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Present value of benefit obligation 376.44 218.66
Falr value of plan assets at the end of the year v
Funded Status (Deficit) 376.44 218.56
Net (Liability) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 376.44 218.66
Expenses recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
Purticulars Year ended As at

3ist March 2024 31st March 2023
Current service cost 37.07 B1.06
Met Interest cost 15.85 648
Past Service Cost 201
Expenses recognised 115.03 87.54
Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCH)

) Year ended As at
Pardeniag 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Actuarial (Gains) on obligation for the year 36.47 29.82
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Incame
Met {Income) for the year recognized in OC| 36,47 20,82

The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are as follows:

Particulars

Year ended
315t March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Discount Rate
Salary escalation rate

Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets
Rate of Employee Turnover

Martality Rate during employment

T B%to 7.21%
9% to 10%

MA
10% o 26%

Indian Assured Lives
Morrality (2012-14)

Litimate

T2%to 7.31%

8% to 1.2%

MNA
20% to 25%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2072-14)

LHtirmate

The estimates of future salary increases, cansidered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflatian, seniority, promation and other relevant factars

Consolidated balance sheet reconciliation:

Year ended As at
Partieutats 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Opening net liability 208.13 17.86
Expenses recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss 115.03 B7.54
Expenses recognized In OCI 36.47 29.82
Met (Asset) Transfer In 20.53 0633
Neat (Liabilityl/Asset Transfer QOut 1.11
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer} -1.69 {12.89)
(Employer's Contnibution)
Met liahility recognized in the consolidated balance sheet 377.37 218.67
Other details:

Year ended As at
Fagultes 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Active Members (Absolute number) 311,00 240,00
Per Moenth Salary For Active Members 441,48 307 B4
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Ohligation 42,00 22.00
Average Expected Future Service 34,00 17.00
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 376.45 218.68
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) - ,
Cash flow projections:
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: From the fund

Year ended As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Prajected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
15t Following Year

2nidl Following Year

3rd Following Year

4th Following Year

5th Following Year

Sum of Years 6 To 10

Sum of Years 11 and above
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Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: From the employer

Particulars

Year ended
315t March 2024

As at
315t March 2023

Prajected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

|41 following vear ~1.25 12.06
2nd following vear 21,93 11.56
3rd following year 24.27 43.25
4th following year 8.90 38.140
5th following year 16.00 37.58
Sum of years 6 To 10 69.37 119.58
Sum of years 11 and above 25:11 S8.72
Sensitivity analysis:
Year ended As at

Pasciacs 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 376.46 218.67
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting 672 {8700
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 18.07 10.50
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 15.18 9.62
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase -14.76 (9.27
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover 8.44 6.1
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 8.63 6.38

Risk analysis:

The Company is exposed to a number of risks associated with the defined benefit plans. Mest significant risks pertaining 1o defined banefit plans and

management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discoum rate which Is linked to the Government Securities rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher

pravision.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated by reference o the future salares of members, As such, an increase in the salary

of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability,

Asset-Liability matching risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flows, Company has to manage pay-out based an pay as you go basis fram

own funds.

Mortality risk; Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age anly, plan does not have any langevity risk,

MNote 37 Security issue expenses

Security issue expenses related to issuance of equity and other securities are debited against securities premium account in accordance with the provisions of

Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013, Details of such expenses is mentioned below:

) Year ended As at
Particutdrs 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Referral expenses 270,00
Legal and professional fees 531.65
Stamp duty 12.13
Total 270.00 543.78
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Note 38 ! Leases
Accounting policy: The Company as a Lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consists of leases far office premises. The Company has adopted IND AS 116 "Leases” for accounting of lease contracts
where the Company 15 a lessee. As per IND AS 116, the Company assesses whether a contract cantains a lease, at the Inception of the contract.

A contract s, of contains, a lease If the contract coveys the rght to control the wse of an ldentified asset for a period of time (n exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right ta control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

I. the contract involves the use of an identified asset;
ii. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of asset through the period of the lease: and
iii. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a night-of use (ROU} asset and a corresponding lease liahility for all the lease arrangements
in which the Company is a lessee; except for leases with a term of 12 moanths or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value
leases, the Company recognrizes the lease payment as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

The fellowing is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

i Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment;

ii. Excluded the initial direct casts from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

iii. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied anly to contracts that were
previeusly identified as leases under Ind A5 17

ROU Assets

The ROL assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprise the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prier to the
commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cast less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss,

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date an a straight-line basis over the shorter af the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU
asset are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes In circumstances Indicate that thelr carrying amoeunts may not be recoverable,

The changes in the carrying value of the ROU asset far the period ended 315t March 2023 are as follows

: As at As at
Farticulacs 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 510,15 246,97
Addition during the year 588.78 61.12
Acquired via merger 423.20
Deletion during the period (16,99 ;
Depreciation for the year (29730} (221.14}
Ealance as at the end of the year 784.64 510,15

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU asset is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these lrases.

The changes in the carrying value of the lease liability for the pericd ended 31st March 2024 are as follows:

Particulars iy Foar

31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 705.14 38965
Additicn during the year on account af Merger . 456,81
Addition during the year 587.98 56.70
Finance cost accrued during the year 95.12 93.61
Priar periad Adjustments .
Deletions {17.81) "
Payrment of lease labilitles made during the year (455.66) (33163
Balance as at the end of the year 914.77 705.14
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 3151 March 2024 is as follows:
Particulars A% Ax K

31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Current lease liabilities 333.490 308,29
Non-current lease liabilities 580.88 396.85
Total 914.78 705.14

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of 31st March 2024 on an undiscounted basis:

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2024 315t March 2023

Less than one year 407.10 371.72
Berween one and five years 67565 406.61
Mare than five vears 19.44 G1.52

Total 1,102.18 239.85
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Expenses recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit & loss:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Depreciation expense on RoU Asset [Refer Note No. 3] 297.30 221.14
Interest expense on lease liability [Refer Note No. 30] 95.12 43.61
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value leases [Refer Note No. 31] 148.05 29.79
Total 54047 344.54

The Campany does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related o lease

liabilities as and when they fall due.

Short-term leases

Rental expenses recorded for short-term leases and low value leases was INR. 148,05 lakhs for the yvear ended 31st March 2024 MR, 29,79 lakhs and for the year

ended 315t March 2023,
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Note 39 : Financial instruments

39.1 Financial instruments by category

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabllities, including their levels in the lair value hierarchy. It does not include Tair value infarr
liahilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying Amount

Lewvel of Fair value measure

Level 1 - Level 2- Significant Le
Asarlet Match aead Am:;:its{d tAI:rEaal.::lg;al!;: Total Quoted price in Observable Sigr
active markets inputs Lnohbser
Finamcial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 23,068.01 23,068.01 23,068.01 -
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 7.,505.36 7,505.36 7.505.36
Trade receivahles 2,190.87 2,190.81 - -
Loans 55,584.36 55,584.36 ]
Investments * 35,797.06 35,797.06 17.473.60 7.952.68
Other financial assets 1,896.15 . 1,896.15 . -
Total Financial assets 90.244.69 35,797.06 1.26,041.75 48,046.97 7,952.68 .
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 79,01 0.60 79.010.60 -
Trade payables 2,374.28 2,374.28 -
Other financial liabilities B.296.16 B8,296.16 -
Total Financial labilities 89,681.03 B89,681.04
Carrying Amount Level of Fair value measure
- . Level 1 - Level 2- Significant Le
As at 31stL March 2023 Amortised At fair value Tatal Quoted prica in Obsarvabla Sig:
cost through P&L - .
active markets inputs Unohser
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,862.22 1,862.22 1,862.22 =
Trade receivablas 2.6E5.65 268565
Loans 12,665.29 - 12,665.29 - -
Inyestments 300,00 25.689.75 25,989.75 13,193.37 7017.05%
Other financial assets 6,379.54 6,379.54 -
Total Financial assets 23,892.70 25,689.75 49,582.45 15055.59 7,117.05
Financial liahilities
Borrowings 13.110.72 13,010.72 "
Trade payables 902.78 902.78 =
Other financial llabilities 3,165.68 3,165.68 -
Tatal Financial liahilities 17,179.18 17,179.18

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and balances with bank, trade recelvables, other financlal assets, trade payables and other financial labilities approximate their carrying

maturities of these instruments,

39.2 Fair value hierarchy

The Company categarizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the abifity to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

(i} Level 1: Category includes valuation based on guoted market price: financial instruments with guoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that the Company can access at the m

(i} Level 2 Valuation based on wsing observable inputs: financial instruments with guoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrur
instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are abservable,
(i) Level 3.- Valuation technigue with significant unebservable inputs: financial instruments valued using valuation technigues where one or more significant inputs are uncbservable, Equity in

been valued using discounted cash flow method.

The fair value af cash and cash eguivalents and ather bank balances is their carrying amounts,

Investiments In liguid Mutual funds are valued at closing Net Asset Value (NAV) of the funds and are classified under Level 1.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended 31st March 2024 & 31st March 2023.
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Note 40 : Capital management

Far the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes i1ssued equity capital and all other-eguity reserves atiributable 1o the eguity helders of the
Company. The primary ohjective of the Company's capital management is 1o safequard the Company's ability to remain as a going concern and maximise the
sharehaolder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes in economic conditions, annual cperating plans and long-term and other
strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amounts of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital ta shareholders or issue new shares, The current capital structure af the Campany is equity based financing, The funding requirements are met through a
mixture of equity and internal fund generation as per Company's policy 1o meet anticipated funding requirements, The Company 15 not subject to any externally
impased capital requirements.

Mote 41 : Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board
oversees how management manitars compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framewaork in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

The Company's risk management palicies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and acherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes In market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company through its training, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which
all erplayees understand their rales and obligations.

The Company's principal financial liabilities, lease labilities, trade and cther payables. The main purpose of these tinancial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations, The Company's principal financial assets include loans, investments, rental depesits, trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from |ts operations.

The Company's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risk namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company's focus is to foreses the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial perfermance, The Company's board of directors reviews and
agrees palicies for managing each risk. which are summarised as below:

(a) Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include deposits,

FVYTPL investments and ather financlal assets

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markeét Interest rates. The
Company Is exposed to Interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on (nterest-bearing liabilities and assets, The Company manages Its Interest rate risk
by menitoring the movemeants in the market interest rates clasely. The Campany has Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCQ) and has empowerad it 1o
assess the interest rate risk run by it and provide appropriate guidelines to the Treasury to manage the risk. The ALCO reviews the imerest rate risk on periodic
basis,

i ri
Company's interest rate risk arises from borrewings and leans. The interest rate profile of the Campany's interest-bearing fimancial instruments as reported 1a the
management of the Campany |5 as follows:-

As at As at
farvicuiars 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Loans
Fixed rate loans 55,808.98 12,716.66
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings 36,465.31 =
Met exposure 19,343.67 12,716.66

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does nat account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss, Therefore, a change In Interest rates at
the reparting date would not affect profit or loss,

Other price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk arising from investment in AIF / mutual funds / bands & debentures / equity and classified in the consolidated balance
sheet at fair value through profit & loss. IF the NAY of the AIF / mutual fund had been higher / lower by 1% from market price existing as at 3 1st March 2024,
prafit ar less (pre-tax) far the year ended 315t March 2024 wauld increase / decrease by INR. 82.77 Lakhs [Far the year ended 31st March 2023 INR 13835
Lakhs) with a corresponding increase / decrease in the total equity of the Company,

The Company is currently is not exposed to any equity price risk arising from equity investments classified in the consalidated balance sheet at fair value through
other comprehensive Income since the amount outstanding as at 315t March 2024 |s Nil (For the vear ended 31st March 2023 Nilj,

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its cbligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum expasure to the credit risk at the
reporting date is primarily from trade receivables and loans. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earmed from customers,
Credit risk has always been managed by the company through cantinuaus manitaring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit
terms in the normal course of business. Under Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss madel to assess the impalrment loss or gain. The company
uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrylng value of each class of financial assets.

An impairment analysls s performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, The company does not hald collateral as security.
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Measurement of Expected Credit Losses ('ECLY

The Company has segmented its outstanding portfolio based on the risk profiles i.e. risk management palicies, historical experiences with respect to detfault
rates etc. for the computation of ECL.

The ECL allowance is based an the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetima expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant
Increase in credit risk since arigination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit lass),

Lifetime ECL are the expected eredit losses resulting From all possible default events ocver the expected life of a financial Instrument. The 1 2-manth ECL is the
portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 maonths after the
reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on elther an Individual basis fcollective basis, depending on the nature of the underlving portfolio of
financial instruments. The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring aver the remaining life of the financial
instrument,

The Company measures the amount of ECL on a fimancial Instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-welghted amount, The Company
considers its loss experience and adjusts the same for current ohservable data, The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss

given default and exposure at default. The Company uses the Simplied Approach for measurement of ECL,

Based on management estimation and calculation ECL provision has been provided at 100% on Trade Receivables cutstanding for more than 90 days and at 0.4%
on Leans.

Fallowing is the exposure to the credit risk for trade receivables and loans

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Trade recelvables 2,239.73 2,756.14
Loans 55 808,98 12 716.66
Total 58048.71 15.472.80
Fallowing table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Loan-

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

315t March 2023

Loss allowance

Cross carrying amount of financial assets 5. 808.98 12,71 666
Expected credit Loss (22462 (51.37)
Carrying amount net of impairment provision 55,584.36 12.665.29
Following table provides exposure ta crecdit nsk for trade recelvable

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Loss allowance - Trade receivahle

Cross carrying amount of financial assets 2,239.73 2.756.14
Expected credit Loss (432,92} (70.4%
Carrying amount net of impairment provision 2,190.81 2,685.65
Movement in the allowance for Impairment in respect of loans and trade receivables in as follows :
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Opening balance 123.81 248.74
Release of Provision (5.25] {178.57)
Additional Provision | 50,06 53.63
Closing balance 27762 123.81

C. Liguidity risk:

Liquidity Risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations, Liquidity Risk Management implies maintenance of sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the avallability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines to meet obligatians when due.

The Caompany manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and by cantinuausly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by
assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and labilities

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periads, The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabllities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay, The tables
include bath interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the rate applicable as of reporting period ends respectively has
been considered,
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As at 31st March 2024:-

Contractual cash flows

Particulars Nﬂm Carrying Gross nominal L shian 1 . 13 .
1 arount inflow//{outflow) ki ¥l yedrs
Maturities of financial liabilities:
Borrowings 19& 23 79,010.60 (79,010.67) 31,390.71 47.619.90
Trade payables 22 2,374.28 (2,374.28) 2,374.28 -
Other financial labilities 20 & 24 B.296.16 (8,483.57) 7.788.48 586.89
Total 89,681.03 -89,868.46 41,553.46 48,206.79
As at 31st March 2023:-
Contractual cash flows

Particulars P Carrying Gross nominal L fidii 1

He. amount Inflow/{outflow) R enanyear Gt el
Maturities of financial liabilities:
Barrowings 19.& 23 13,110.72 13,110.72) 10,610.01 2.500.71
Trade payables 22 G02.78 (302,78} 902.78 z
Other financial llabilities 20& 24 3.165.68 {3.165.68) 2.768.83 396.85
Total 17,179.18 (17,179.18) 14,281.62 2.897.56

The fallowing table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn wp based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the finan
earned on thase assets. The inclusion of information on nonderivative financial assets |s necessary in order 1o understand the Company's liguidity risk management as the liquidity is managed

maturities of the relevant assets have been considered below.

As at 31st March 2024:-

Contraciual cash flows

Particulars Note No. Carrying Gross nominal 3

amount inflow /(outflow)} Less than 1 year 1-3 years
Maturities of financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 11 23,068.01 23,068.01 23,068.01
Bank balance other than cash and cash squivalents 12 7.50%:36 7,505 36 7.505.36
Trade receivables 1Q 2,190.81 2.1590.81 2,190.81
Loans 6&13 55,584.36 55,808.98 51,893.98 3,915.00
Investments 5&9 35,797.06 35,797.05 15,919.75 1,681.45
Other financial assets T&14 1,896.15 204320 1, 196.05 11E.26
Total 1,26,041.75 1,26,413.41 1,01,773.96 5912.71
As at 31st March 2023:-

Contractual cash flows

Particulars Note No. Carrying Gross nominal B

amount inflow/{outflow) Less ol ) ek bt ool
M - £ i ial ;
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1.862.22 1.862.22 1.862.22
Tragde receivables 10 2.685.65 2.685.65 2. 685.65 =
Loans 6&13 12,665.29 1284297 8.620.62 45492
Investments &9 25,989.76 26,064.42 17.,379.22 2.207.15
Other financial assets 7&14 6,379.54 5.568.58 6,406.33 146.98
Total 49,582.45 50,023.84 36,954.04 2,809.04
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Note 42 : Related party disclosures

Related party relationships / transactions warranting disclosures under IND AS-24 "Related Party Disclosures” are as under

a. List of Related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Nature of Relationship

Name of the party

Key managerial personnel CKMPT

Enterprise aver which KMP is able to exercise significant influence

Associate

Bhupinder Singh, Director

Wenkatesh Vishwanathan, Director

Saurabh Jhalaria , Director

Wivek Banzal, Director

Siddharth Parekh, Director

Deepak Dhingra, CFO (upto 7th September 2022)

Varun Shah, Company Secretary (upto 24th April 2023)

Mitesh Kamariya, Company Secretary iw.e F 25th Apnil 2023 1l 17 January 2024}
Abhijeet Shinde, Company Secretary (w.e.l 17 January 2024 to 24th July 2024)
Nisha Singh, Relative of Director

Manisha Bansal, Relative of Director

Godhuli Vishwanathan, Relative of Director

InCred Prime Finance Limited (Farmerly known as InCred Financial Services Limite:
InCred Housing Finance Private Limited

InCred Management and Technology Private Limited

InCred Wealth Private Limited

mWalu Technology Services Private Limited (upto 10th July 2023)
Incred Research Services Private Limited

InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited

Incred Global Wealth Limited

Incred Global Wealth Pre. Lid.

InCred Holding Limited

Mountain Trail Foods Private Limited

MV Capital Partners

InCred Employee Wellare Trust

InCred Helding Limited

Alpha Fintech Private Limited

b. Transactions during the vear with related parties

Transactions

KMP and Relatives of KMP Enterprise over which KMP are

able to exercise significant Aasotlate Comprn

31st March 3ist!
2023 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 20

Remuneration paid to KMPs*

711.89 E -

711.89 - - B

“As the llabllities for gratuity and share based payments are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as @ whole and hence the amounts pertaining fo the key management personnel are n
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Transactions KMP and Relatives of KMP Enterprise v whl_ch KMP B Assoclate Compan
able to exercise significant

3"2‘0";“4“" 3152505.21;u+. 315t March 2024 315t March 2023 315t March 2024~ 5
Loan & advances given:
InCred Wealth Private Limited 55.700.00 31.436.95
InCred Prime Finance Limited (Formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited § 360.00 3,500.00
InCred Financial Services Limited 4,000.00 -
InCred Research Services Private Limited 3,943.45 3.088.00
InCred Employee Welfare Trust® 7.256.41 .
Alpha Fintech Private Limited - 15,514.71
InCred Capital Wealth Partfolio Managers Private Limited 47,382.39 25.045.71

= 1,11,385.88

15,514.71

70,327.07

Loans & advances repayment receivied:

InCred Wealth Private Limited 26, 74798 51,590.16
InCred Prime Finance Limited (formerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited
i 3,500.00
InCred Research Services Private Limited 1,004.68 3,083.00

InCred Firancial Services Limited 4 000,00 -

InCred Employes Welfare Trust E 3.641.41 .
Alpha Fintech Private Limited - - 11,864.71
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 49,150.00 25,555.39 -

80,902.66 87,349.96 11,864.71

Borrowings taken :
mValu Technology Services Private Limited 1,000.00
InCred Wealth Private Limited . 1,870.00
InCred Financial Services Limited s - 15,065.00 =
InCred Research Services Private Limited - - 6,000.00
Alpha Fintech Private Limited z a - : 61.00

21,065.00 2.870.00 61,00
Borrowings repaid :
mValu Technology Services Private Limited - 1,000.00
InCred Financial Services Limited 15.00
15.00 1,000.00
Investment in Associate:
Alpha Fintech Private Limited = 1,085.18 k:
1,085.18 1,
Interest paid on Borrowings:
mValu Technology Services Private Limited - |.40
InCred Wealth Private Limited 199.99 -
InCred Research Services Private Limited 11.90 -
211.89 1.40
Employes Stock Expense:
InCred Research Services Private Limited 2,75

275




InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited

CiN: U711 20MHT1926PTCI55036

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Emterprise over whl_ch I’.MP are Assoclate Compan
able to exercise significant

31st March 31st March 315t March 2024 31st March 2023 3]st March 2024 JIsth

KMP and Relatives of KMP

Transactions

2024 2023 20
Purchase of Equity Shares of Subsidiary Booth Fintech Private Limited;
InCred Financial Services Limited z - 1,736.49
1,736.49
Purchase of Investments:
InCred Financial Services Limited : - B.B05.17 7,399.36
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolic Managers Privaie Limited - - 3.031.16 - -
Alpha Fintech Private Limited = - L 2.476.61
Nisha Singh 1.581.35 .
Bhupinder Singh 1,329.00 . - - -
2.910.35 - 11,636.33 7.399.36 247661
Sale of Investments:
InCred Wealth Private Limited = . 74377
InCred Financial Services Limited - - 4:-375.23 -
InCred Research Services Private Limited - - B.65 -
Alpha Fintech Private Limited 2 - = 5%2.38
Saurabh Ihalaria 30,00 75,19 »
Manisha Bansal - 325.06
Bhupinder Singh 14000 - - = -
170000 40025 5, 1159.00 8.65 592.38
Profit/Loss on 5ale Investments:
InCred Research Services Private Limited r - E 640
Alpha Fintech Private Limited . . . .
InCred Capital Wealth Partfolio Managers Private Limited . . 4.098
Saurabh Jhalaria 0.14 -
Manisha Bansal {72.65) - ;
InCred Financial Services Limited 18.24
Bhupinder Singh 5.92 - - -
-66.73 0.14 2322 6,40
Imterest on Loan and Advances:
InCrec Wealth Private Limited 2 z 583.68 161.42
InCred Primie Finance Limited iformearly known as InCred Financial Services Limited 0,45 1.72
‘ / 3
InCred Research Services Private Limited = - 9.18 53.78 £
Alpha Fintech Private Limited - - - 250.50
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - 7 283 56 -
593.35 502.48 250.50
Branding Expenses
InCred Management and Technology Private Limited = - * 2.18
Referrel and Brokerage Expenses
InCred Wealth Private Limited 225.24 369.42
Incred Global Wealth Limited + - Ba.03 55.17
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 134.78 8818

Incred Global Wealth Pre. Lid, - 162.23
. - 444.05 715.00
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KMP and Relatives of KMP Enturpripe ovwr which KMPars
able to exercise significant

AMtmarch IVstMarch 5, L 2024 315t March 2023 315t March 2024 310

Associate Compan
Transactions

2024 2023 20
Depository Charges
InCred Capital Wealth Portfollo Managers Privaie Limited - - - 1.23
- - - 1.23
Expenses Reimbursement :
InCred Prime Finance Limited (farmerly known as InCred Financial Services Limited i 5670
¥
InCred Global Wealth Limited 332.08
InCred Glebal Wealth Pte Limited 160.18
InCred Financial Services Limited 48.13
InCred Capital Wealth Partfolio Managers Private Limited - - 20.27 2.26
= - 560.66 58.96
Reimbursement Income
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 1
Al
Slump Sale - Consideration
InCred Capital Wealth Portfollo Managers Private Limited = 340000
= . 340.00
Legal and Professional Expenses
Manisha Bansal - 49.05
- 49.05
Stamp duty on Sale of shares
InCred Capital Wealth Partfolio Managers Private Limited - - - 1.12
12
Business Support Services
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 5.52
InCred Research Services Private Limited = < 6.90
1242
Issue of equity shares upon scheme of Merger:
Ehupinder Singh 8.52
Saurabh |halaria 19.05
Nisha Singh 0.00
Godhuli Vishwanathan 32,65
MV Capital Partners (Through Its partriers Mr.Vivek Bansal and Mantsha Bansal) - - 10.89
6022 - 10.89
Securities premium on issue of Equity shares upon scheme of Merger:
Bhupinder Singh 330.62
Saurabh Jhalaria 739.70
Nisha Singh D.03
Godhuli Vishwanathan 1.267.83 =
MV Capital Partners (Throwgh its partners Mr.Vivek Bansal and Manisha Bansall ) - 422.67
2,338.18 g 42267

Issue of equity shares upon :
InCred Emplayes Welfare trust - . - 54.44
54.44
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Enterprise over which KMP are

KMFP and Relatives of KMP ¥ £
able to exercise significant

Associate Compan

Transactions
31st March 31st March st !
2024 2023 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31 st March 2024 20
Securities premium on issue of Equity shares :
InCred Employes Welfare trust - - - 2.950.86
- - - 2,950.86
Issue of CCPS:
InCred Wealth Private Limited - - - 11.75
= % = 11.75
Securities premium on issue of Equity shares ;
InCred Wealth Private Limited - . 1, BE8.25
= - - 1.868.25
Distributar commission
InCred Global Wealth Limited - * - 35.00
InCred Capital Wealth Partfollo Managers Private Limited = . ’ 12993
InCred Prime Finance Limited {farmerly known as InCred Financial Services 2.01
Limited) )
166.95
Purchase of Fixed Assets
InCred Financlal Services Limited - - (.25
0.25
Sale of Fixed Assets
InCred Helding Limited . .04
= - - 1.0
Profit on Sale of Fixed assers
InCred Helding Limited 0.35
0.35

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. For terms af loan provided to InCred Wealth Private Limited (formerly kno
Services Private Limited), Refer Note Mo, 6.

¢ Closing balances with Related parties as at 315t March 2024 and 31st March 2023:

Enterprise over which KMP are
able to exercise significant

3ist March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024

KMP and Relatives of KMP

Closing balance 3T1st March 31st March
2024 2023

Associate Compan
3st |
20

Trade payables:

InCred Financial Services Limited - - 17.95
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 8.31 T7.74
InCred Management and Technology Private Limited = - 2.18
InCred Glabal Wealth Limited = - 340.61 35.00
InCred Global Wealth Pte Limited 160.18

509.10 132.87

Trade Receivable:

InCred Holdipgs Limited s < 0.5%
InCred Financial Services Limited 5.41
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolic Managers Private Limited - (.89 29.04

5.30 29.63
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Enterprise over which KMP are

KMP and Relatives of KMP Associate Compan

. ble to exercise significant
Closing balance =
31st March 31st March Ist!
2024 2023 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 P
Other Receivable:
InCred Research Services Private Limited = - 2.70 ¥
InCred Global Insights Partners Private Limited - . 18.59
InCred Holdings Limited : 0.59
21.88
Other current liabilities
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolic Managers Private Limited - - 138.13
138.13

Other Payables:

InCred Capital Wealth Portfolle Managers Private Limited - - 0.99
InCred Holdings Limited 0.30
InCred Management and Technology Services Private Limited - - 011
InCred Financial Services Limited - - 2.03
= - 3.42 3
Borrowings (Including Interest Accrued)
InCred Financial Services Limited - - 13,902.24
InCred Research Services Private Limited ~ - 6,010.71 =
19,912.95 -
Advance receivable from Broker:
InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited - - 534.90 14.09
534.90 14.09

Advance Giventincluding Accrued Interest)

InCred Wealth Private Limited - - 29,386.89 487216

InCred Research Services Private Limited - ¥ - 25.01

InCred Capital Wealth Portfolio Managers Private Limited 1,039.99 2.800.93

InCred Employes Welfare trust = L 3.615.00 3,615.00 z
Alpha Fintech Private Limited 4,245.38
InCred Prime Finance Limited 2 : 360.00

34,401.88 11.313.10 4,245.38
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Note 43 : Employee Stock Option Plan

Description of share-based payment arrangements
Share option plans (equity-settled)

The Graup has Employee Incentive Plan under which opticns have been granted to eligible employees to be vested from time toe time, The group has established
share option plans that entitle the employees of the group to purchase the shares of the Company. Under these plans, helders of the vested options are entitled
to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the respective date of grant of options. The key terms and conditions related to the vesting
of grants under these plans are continued empleyment with the group from the date of grant of option tll the date of vesting, all options are to be settled by the
delivery of shares.

A, Measurement of fair values
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using Black Scholes Dption pricing model.

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-sertled share hased payment options granted
during the vear are as fallaws

The model inputs for options granted during

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ist April 2022
01 April 2023 Tst July 2022
01 July 2023 1 5th September 2022
01 Cctober 2023 st October 2022
Grant date 01 January 2024 1st January 2023
Cptlan Price Model Black Scholes Model Black Schales Model
Falr value of ESOP on Grant date IMR 43.72- INR 1848.19 INR 69.30 - INR 1298.43
Share price as an grant date MR 542,22 INR 1854 64 MR, 542.22 - INR, 1525.75
Exercise price INR, 10 7 INR. 26630 / INR, 266.30 and
INR.TSGS JINR.T331.10 INR.367.30
Expected volaiility (weighted average volatilityh A0 40%
Expected time to exercise shares 2 years from vesting 2 years from vesting
Risk- free interest rate (hased on government bonds)
T 3% 10 7.42% 5.71% to 7.50%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0. 00%
Weighted Average Fair Walue of ESOP on Grant date INR 266,78 - INR 1 387.32 INR 322.08 - INR 1126.02
Method used to determing expected volatility The expected valatility is  The expected volatility
based an price volatility of is based on price
listed companies in same volatility of listed
industry. coMmpanies in sama
B. Reconciliation of outstanding share options
Set out below s a summary of options granted under the plan;
Partieuiare Average exet;li:lse price Number of options
it As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Opeaning balance 12,97 666 2,41 697,00
Add: Options granted during the year 4,801,420 10,71, 768
Less: Options forfeited during the year 71,119 (6,723)
Less: Qptions exercised during the year 11,09,756) (9,076}
Less: Options lapsed during the year 2 :
Options outstanding as at the year end 15,898,211 12,597,666
Cptian exercizable of the above 5,38, 246 91,564
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of the year 8.20 - 8.73 8,98 - 9,47

C. Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions
Refer Mote 27 on employee benefit expense, for share based payment expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note 44 : Segment Information

The Parent Company (s primarily engaged In the business of financing and Investment Banking where as the Subsidiary companies are primarily engaged in providing Investment manage
Services. Further, the Group does not hawve any separate geographic segments other than India.

During the year ended March 31, 2024 |, the Group has been organised into three major cperating segments i.e. Investment Banking, Investment Management services and Wealth Management

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are sither specifically identifiable with individual segments or have been allocated to segments
allocation, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared

Incorme, Expenditure, assets and lhabilities which relates to the Company as a whale and not allecable to segments are disclosed under “unallocable segment”,

Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars 3 E Investment Wealth
Investment Banking Advisory Management Management
Segment Income from Operations 12.265.21 - 3.110.12 17.004.90
Other Intame 336.83 - 72.75 1300123

Add/iLess) : Finance income and other unallocable incomeinet of inter segment expenses

Total Segment Income 12,652.04 % 3,182.87 18306.13
Segment results (before depreciation & amortisation) 2997.78 {456.13) {1,553.69)
Exceptinnal Item 3IN7.00 - 249 57

Profit / (loss) before tax 1,883.49 + {734.87) {1,871.21)

Tax expenses

Current tax

MAT credit written of
Deferred tax {credit)
Pertaining ta earlier years

Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - * 2 E
(B) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Segment profit / (loss) for the year 1,883.49 - {734.87) (1,871.21)
Segment Assels 62,034.18 - 2.203.35 51.821.96
Segment Liabilities 54,755.86 . 1,192.21 30,434.72

Depreciation and Amortisation 797.28 = 2917 3752
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Year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars . i Investment Wealth
NBFC Investment Banking Advisory Management Management

Segment Income from Operations 540.07 (.594.84 1.20 604.99 B6,212.38
Other Income B6.75 (5.8}
Total Segment Income 540.07 6,931.59 1.20 599.11 6,212.38
Seqgment results (before depreciation & amortisation) 714.55 {1,305.76) 1.20 (2,357.48) {4,293.36)
Exceptional Item (2,603,000
Profit / (loss) before tax 714,55 (1,305.76) 1.20 (2,357.48) {6,896.36)
Tax expenses
Current tax
MAT credit written oft
Deferred tax (credit)
Pertaining ta earlier years
Other Comprehensive Income
(A) ltems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss {5.77) - 0.39 {19.07)
(B leems that will be reclassified to profit or foss E o 2
Segment profit / (loss) for the year J14.55 (1,311.53) 1.20 (2,357.09)
Segment Assels 10,270.20 0.1 802.28 21.644.07
Segment Liabilities 10,286.46 733.38 6,662.88
Depreciation and Amortisation 733.90 13.21 261.04
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Mote 45 : Business Combination
a. Business Combinations

The Board of Directars of the Group at their meeting held on 27th Seprember, 2021, had approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (the ‘Scheme’ with
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited, Clamant Tech Services Private Limited, MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited, InCred Wealth Private Limited and
InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited and the same was filed with various regalatory autharities ang National Company Law Tribunal {(NCLTH

The NCLT passed the final order dated 26¢th April, 2022 .The Scheme was made effective by of the Group, Clamant Tech Services Private Limited, MAPE Advisory
Group Private Limited and InCred Wealth Private Limited on 30th June 2022 and the relavant filing were done with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on 30th
June 2022

The Appolnted date of the Scheme s 15t April, 2022, and accordingly the books of account and financial statements effecting the Scheme have been prepared
with effect from 15t April, 2022,

Under the Scheme, the identified advisory business of MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited shall be demerged with InCred Capital Financial Services Private
Limited aned Clamant Tech Services Private Limited shall be amalgamated with InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited. Further, the Wealth (Distribution
of third party products) business of InCred Wealth Private Limited shall be demerged with InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited, far which the
company shall issue shares ta the shareholders of InCred Wealth Private Limited as Purchase Consideration. Further, with the discharge of purchase consideration
for demergers and amalgamation, sharehelders of the company will held majority sharehalding of the campany.

Accorchingly, the business combination has been treated as per Ind AS 103 and the Group has been sdentified as the accounting acguirer and Clamant Tech
Services Private Limited & MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited & InCred Wealth Private Limited {("acquires”) being the accounting acquiree,

As per Ind 45 103, these consolidated financial statements issued under the name of the company represent the cantinuation of the financial positions of
acquires except for share capital which is currently presented as per legal share capital of the company. Accordingly the assets, liabilities and reserves of
acquiree have been continueed at their pre-business combination carrying values and measured the fair value of identified assets and liabilities as per
requirements of Ind AS 103, The earnings per share figures presented in respect of comparative periods are those of the company and are accordingly not
comparable with the current period figures,

The accounting impact of the aforesald Scheme in the books of the company has been summarily presented as fallows,

{i). Goodwill /bargain purchase on business combinations (Clamamt Tech Services Private Limited)

Particulars Amount as on 31st
March 2023

(A) Met Assets and liabilities (Net Assets including ldentifiable Intangible Assets) recarded at fair value pursuant to amalgamation 2,389.80

(B Purchase consideration (Fair value of shares) 3,207,91

Goodwill (A-B) BIE.1]

(ii). Goodwill/bargain purchase on business combinations (MAPE Advisory Group Private Limited)

Particulars Amount as on 315t
March 2023

(A Met Assets and liabilities et Assets including Identifiable Intangible Assets) recorded at fair value pursuant ta demerger 299803

1B Purchase cansideration (Fair value of shares) 354376

Goodwill (A-B) 545.73

(iii). Capital Reserve on business combinations (InCred Wealth Private Limited)

Particulars Amount as on 31st
March 2023

(4] Met Assets and liabilities (Net Assets including Identifiable Intangible Assets) recorded at fair value pursuant ta demerger 1,828.66

(B) Purchase consideration (Fair value of shares) 1,748.27

Capital Reserve (A-B) (30.39)

As per the terms of the Scheme, the shareholders of Clamant Tech Services Private Limited shall receive equity shares as a consideration for amalgamation,
Further, shareholders of MAPE Advisory Croup Private Limited shall recelve either eguity shares or Class B Opticnally Convertible Redesmable Preference Shares
and Class A Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares, and shareholders of InCred Wealth Private Limited shall receive equity shares af InCred
Capital Fimancial Services Private Limited, as a consideration for demerger of identified advisory and wealth business respectively, whose equity conversion terms
would determine the purchase consideration described abowe,

b. As per the scheme of merger loan taken fram the Company by InCred Wealth Private Limited {subsequently transferred to InCred Wealth & Investmeant Services
Private Limited wide sheme of merger) had been converted inte equity for an aggregate amount of Rs. 20,01 1.24 lakhs. Pursuamt to the approval, the Company
was alloted 36,920,477 equity shares of the InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited,
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Mote 46 : Investment in Associates

The Groups interests in associates are:

Principle Place of
Business

Name of Associate

Method of Accounting

Proportion of Stake as
on 31st March 2024

Alpha Fintech Private Limited Inclia

Equity Method

45.07%

Name of Associate Principle Place of

Method of Accounting

Proportion of Stake as

Business on 315t March 2023
Alpha Fintech Private Limited Inclia Equity Method 31.21%
Summarised fimancial information In respect of Group’s assoclates is set cut below
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Summarised Statement of net assets

Financial assets 3,104 .45 149.40

Nan-Financial assets 333.94 366.54

Total assets (1) 343839 51594
Financial liabilities 4,603.31 399.63

Nan-Financial liabilities 42.71 30.32

Total liabilities {11} 4,646.03 428,95
Net assets (1- 1) (1,207.64) 85.99

Group's share % 45.07% 31.40%
Group's share in amount 1544 .34) 27.00

Carrying amount of Investment 2,456,560 1,145.50
Particulars Year ended Year ended

315t March 20249

31st March 2023

Summarised Staterment of Profit and Loss
Revenue from operaticn

Other incame

Total income (1)

Finance costs

Employes benefit EXPENGES

Depreciation, amortization and impal rment
Other expenses

Total expenses (1)

Loss before tax (111 = 111

Tax expense (V)

A, Loss after tax (V = III-IV)

B. Other Comprehensive income

Tatal Comprehensive incame

Group's share % for the year

Croup share in Amount in Profit and loss (A}
Croup share in Amount in Other Comprehensive Incame (B
Total Group share in Amount (A+B)

281.56 49.92
220,24 0.05
501.80 49,87
280,65 10.15
503.53 233.48
53,73 1.51
621.00 29.09
1,858.91 274.22
(1,357.11) (224.35)
(1,357.11) (224.35)
0.64 13.44
11,357.74) (237.79)
45.07% 31.40%
611.72) 70,45
0.29 4.22
(B11.43) (74.67)
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Note 47 - Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements to Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 201

As on 31st March 2024
Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other Comprehensive S
As a % of As a % of As a % of Other
Pame of thie Entity Amount Consolidated net Amount Consolidated Amount Comprehensive
assets Profit or Loss Income
Parent
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited (108.63) 0.22% 1,501.13 -67.85% 2.03 -5.82%
Subsidiary
InCred Assat Management Private Limited 1,717.45 3.42% 281,65 -1 2.73% {121} 3.46%
InCred Wealth & Inwestment Services Private Limited 33,207.94 66.04% {2.6719,.49) T18.39% 122100 63.27%
InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited {1,871.60) 372 {301.56) 13.63% (B.58) 24.56%
InCred Overseas Holding Private Limited 9,072.32 18.04% {6.67) .30 0.00%
Eoath Fintech Private Limited 3.916.34 7.79% 36377 -16.44% 0.00%
myalu Technology Services Private Limited 77004 1.53% 1498.07) 22.51% {5.36) 15.34%
InCred Value Plus Private Limited 18465 LERNE S (B5.05) 3. B4% o005
Associate
Alpha Fintech Private Limited (686.09) -1.36% 1611.72}) 27.65% .29 -0.82%
Mon Contralling Interest 4. 24600 B.44% 1236.56) 10,69k 0.00%
50,282.47 100,005 12,212.57) 100.00%) (34.93) 100.00%
As on 31st March 2023
Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other Comprehensive H
As a % of As a % of As a % of Other
Hing o the- By Amount Consolidated net Amount Consolidated Amount Comprehensive
assets Profit or Loss Income
Parent
InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited 12,962.53 27.90% (12.75) 0.2% (5. 77 23.60%
Subsidiary
InCred Asser Mamagement Private Limited |,808.55 3.89% 1908.21) 1 2.5% 0.39 -1 60%
InCred Wealth & Investment Services Private Limited 31,867.60 GR.60% {B,030.23) B3.0% (T4.8%) B0, 74%)
Wishuddha Capital Management LLP 0.00% (18,150 0.3% 0. 00%
InCred Alternative Investments Private Limited (110.83) D.24% {212.54) 2.5% .03
Associate
Alpha Fintech Private Limited {74.67) 0. 16% (70.45) 1.0 {4.22) 17.26%
4645318 100.00% (7,252.33) 100.0% (24.45) 100.00%
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Nate 45 : Ratio Analysis and its elements

Year ended Year ended % change during
Ratio Nisteratns Rannminatos 31st March 2024 315t March 2023 the year ,
Current ratic Current Assets Current Liabtlities 2.8 9.53 -77.16% Increase in wao
Deht- Equity Ratio Eorrawings Shareholders Equity 1.57 D.28 456.75% Increase due ti
Debrt Service Coverage ratio Net Operating Income Delbt Service {0.23) (0.65) 64.97% Decrease due |
Return on Egquity ratio Met Prafits after taxes Shareholder™s Equity {0.04) (0L 1B 71.82% Decrease in PB
Inventary Turnaver ratio B MA MN& MA NA NA
Trade Receivable Turnover Rato Met credit sakes Average Trade Receivable 13.59 7.39 83.77% Decrease due 1
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net credit purchases Average Trade Payabies 4.39 3.72 17.79% Decrease in ov
Working capital = Current assets
Net Capital Turnowver Ratio Total sales Current liabilities Pt 054 N NA
Met Profit ratic Met Profit Total sales (0.07 (0.48) -86.00% Decrease in PR
Capital Employed = Tangible MNet
Return on Capital Employed Earnings before interest and taxes  Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax 0.05 (0.18) -124.98% Decrease in lo:
Liabtlity
Return on Investment Profit an Sale of Investments Investment i.14 0.52 | | B.74% Increase In tre

Note 49 : Other Statutory

{Is The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initlated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

{il} The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,

{ilit The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{iv) The Campany have not traded or invested (n Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{v] The Campany is not required to file quarterly statement of current assets submitted to banks / financial institutions which are provided as security against the borrowings,

win tal i) On 07 November 2023, the Company had advanced Rs. 475.54 lakhs to an employes of InCred Financial Services Limited  for Investment purposes. Full details of the transaction are d
financial statemeants.
{iikOn 13 July 2023, the Company had advanced Rs, 800,00 lakhs to an employee of InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited for Investment purposes. Full details of the transaction are
financial statements.

{b) Except as disclosed above |, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personis) or entitylies), including fareign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
{iy directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) ar
{lih provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Iwiiy {a)On 23 May 2024, the Group had borrowed Rs. 5,000 lakhs from Manipal Education and Medical Group and the amount was used to further advance ICD loan to Jana Capital Limited for
non - convertibale debentures.

b On 30 March 2024, the Group had borrowed Rs. 3900 lakhs from InCred Financlal Services Limited and the amount was used to further given as advance of Rs. 3940 lakhs to InCred Wealih |

The transactions are n compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003}, Further the pro
1999 142 of 1999 are not applicable to the transactions.

{c) Except as disclosed below, the Company have not received any fund from any personisi or entityiies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in «
(it directly or indirectly lend or inwest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (LHtimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The transactions are in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 20013 and are nat violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003}, Further the pro
1999 (42 of 1999) are not applicable to the transactions.

{vili} The Company have not any such transaction which is not recarded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments wng
or survey ar any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1967,

{ix} There are no scheme of arrangements which have been filed by the Company under the Act and which have been approved by the competent authority u/s 232 ta 237 of the Act.
%1 The Company, i5 in compliance with the provisions of sec 2(87) read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

{xiy The Campany has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ar any other lender.

{xil} The Company has not revalued any property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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Note 50 : Disclosure relating to earnings and expenditure in forieign currency

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
315t March 2023

A, Expenditure in foreign currency

Referrel fees

Legal, professional and consultancy charges
Membership and subscription

Recruitment Charges

IT Expenses

Hatel Expenses

AIF Distributar Brakerage

Distribution fees, commission and related income
Conference and Seminar Charges

B, Earnings in foreign currency

Distribution fees, commission and refated income
Retalner fees

Advisory services

Consultancy Fees

80.50 1,228.49

67.51 119,82

23.08 5.02

20,17 17,56

] 7.65

5.10

2.03 124.00

d 43.91

1.30

193.29 1,553.26
71.35
20.66
18.58

- 4.11

110.58 4.11

Note 51 : Corporate Social Responsibility

The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 is INR 21,75 lakhs (315t March 2023 INR 19.82 lakhs).

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Amount spent during the year
(I Construction/ acquisition of any asset
(iiy On purposes other than () above

In cash

Deposited in specified fund

21.75

55.42

19.82

19.82

" The campany has transferred inspent amount to a Furnd specified in Schedule Vil to the Compamies Act, 20013 on 1 0th May 2023 10 compliaince with second

provise to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act for FY 22 23,

Note 52 ; Backup of Books of accounts and Audit Trail

a. As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022 Government has notified the Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022. As per the
amended rules back-up of the books of account/other books & papers maintained in electronic mode, including at a place outsice India, shall be kept in
servers physically located in India on a datly basis, The Cnmpan',,r's servers are physically located in India and back up is done on a dally basis. Thus the

Company is compliant with the requirements of the above notification.

b. The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) Facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, there are no instance of andit tradl feature being tampered

with,
Mote 53 ; Other notes to accounts

Previous year figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspand with the current year's classification / disclosure,
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